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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Adelphia Communications Corporation:

We have complcted an integrated audit of Adelphia Communications Corporation’s 2004 consclidated financial
statements and of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 and audits of its 2003 and 2002
consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Adelphia Communications Corporation {(*‘Adelphia”) and its subsidiaries and other
consolidated entities (Debtors-in-Possession from June 25, 2002), collectively, the “Company,” at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the
financial statement schedules (not presented herein) listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(ii) of the Company's 2004
Annual Report on Form 10-K present fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction
with the related consolidated financial statements. These financial statements and financial statement schedules are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and
financial statement schedules based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these slatements in accordance with the standards
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the
andit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements arc frce of material misstatement. An audit of
financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our andits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a
going concern, which contemplates continuity of the Company’s operations and realization of its assets and payment of its
liabilitics in the ordinary course of business. As more fully described in Note 2 to the accompanying consolidated financial
statements, on June 25, 2002, Adelphia and substantially all of its domestic subsidiaries filed a voluntary petition for
reorganization under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code. As more fully described in Note 9 to the accompanying
consolidated financial staternents, on September 30, 2002, Century/ML Cable Venture, a 50% owned equity method investment
of the Company, filed a voluntary petition for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code. In
addition, the Company is involved in material litigation, the ultimate outcome of which is not presently determinable. The
uncertainties inherent in the bankruptcy and litigation processes, the Company’s net capital deficiency and its recurring losses
from operations all raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Company is
currently operating its business as a Debtor-in-Possession under the supervision of the Bankruptcy Court and continuation of the
Company as a going concern is contingent upon, among other things, the confirmation of a plan of reorganization and
consummation of either the sale of substantially all of the Company’s United States assets to Time Warner NY Cable LLC, a
subsidiary of Time Warner Cable Inc., and Comcast Corporation or cmergence as a stand-alone company with sufficient
financing, settlement of claims and litigation, and the Company’s ability to generate sufficient cash from operations and to
obtain financing sources to meet its future obligations. If no reorganization plan is approved, it is possible that the Company's
assets may be liquidated. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments to reflect the possible future
effects on the recoverability and classification of assets or the amount and classification of liabilities that may result from the
outcome of these uncertainties,

As discussed in Notes I and 5 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2004, the
Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 46-R, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.
As discussed in Note 10 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2002, the Company
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. As discussed in Note 3
to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of computing amortization on
customer relationship intangible assets as of January 1, 2004.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, we have audited management's assessment, included in Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting appearing in Exhibit F to the Fourth Amended Disclosure Statement, that the Company did not maintain
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effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, because of the effect of the material weaknesses
related to (i) Access to Financial Applications and Data; (ii) Property and Equipment Accounting, and (iii) the Period-End
Financial Reporting Process, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company's management is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of inlernal control over
financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on management's assessment and on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.
An audit of internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, evaluating management's assessment, testing and evaluating the design and opcrating effectiveness of internal control,
and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s intemal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effcct on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more than a remote
likclihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected. The
following material weaknesses have been identified and included in management's assessment.

1. The Company did not maintain effective controls over access to financial applications and data,
including financial applications and data related to property and equipment, general ledger and financial
reporting. Specifically, ineffective controls included unrestricted access for information technology and
accounting personnel to programs and data, the lack of periodic, independent review and monitoring of
such access, and a lack of policies and procedures that govern security and access. This control deficiency
did not result in adjustments to the annual or interim financial statements. The existence of this control
deficiency could result in 2 material misstatement of the Company’s annual or interim financial statements
that would not be prevented or detected. Accordingly, this control deficiency constitutes a material
weakness.

2. The Company did not maintain effective controls over the accounting for property and equipment.
Specifically, the Company had (i) ineffective controls over its quarterly physical inventory of construction
materials, repairs and maintenance supplies and customer premise equipment, including lack of effective
inventory count tag control, ineffective or inaccurate inventory counts, and instances of non-compliance
with the Company’s policy regarding the conduct of physical inventories; (ii) ineffective controls over the
commencement of dcpreciation expense for capital assets placed in service; (jii) ineffective controls over
the appropriate review and approval of contractor work and materials used in connection with capital
projects; and (iv) inconsistent application of its limits of authority policy pursuant to which contractual or
other payment obligations associated with capital projects are approved. These control deficiencies
resulted in immaterial audit adjustments to the annual and interim financial statements. The existence of
these control deficiencies could result in the misstatement of property and equipment, depreciation expense
as well as repairs and maintenance expense that would result in a material misstatement of the Company’s
annual or interim financial statements that would not be prevented or detected. Accordingly, these control
deficiencies, in the aggregate, constitute a material weakness.
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3. The Company did not maintain effective controls over its period-end financial reporting process.
Specifically, the Company had (i) ineffective controls over the documentation, authorization and review of
journal entries; (ii) ineffective controls to ensure the accuracy of and restricted access to spreadsheets used
to support journal entries reflecied in the Company’s general Jedger and in its financial reporting process,
and (iii) ineffective controls to ensure the completeness of certain general ledger account reconciliations
conducted in connection with the period-end financial reporting process. These control deficiencies
resulted in immaterial audit adjustments to the annual and interim financial statements. These control
deficiencies could result in a material misstatement to annual or interim financial statements that would not
be prevented or detected. Accordingly, these control deficiencies, in the aggregate, constitute a material
weakness.

These material weaknesses were considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our
audit of the 2004 consolidated financial statements, and our opinion regarding the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting does not affect our opinion on those consolidaled financial statements.

In our opinion, management's assessment that the Company did not maintain effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in Intemal Control -
Integrated Framework issued by the COSO. Also, in our opinion, because of the effects of the material weaknesses described
above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has not maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework
issued by the COSO.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PriccwaterhouseCoopers LLP

McLean, Virginia
October 5, 2005
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ADELPHIA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Debtors-In-Possession)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(amounts in thousands, except share data)

December 31,
2004 2003
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash eqUIVALENIS. ....c...ceveuiiieeerinree e s $338,909 $252,661
Restricted cash (Note 3).......cc.ooeenee. 6,300 14,327
Accounts receivable, net (Note 3).... 116,613 139,007
Other current assets........ovvrvveeeennes 82,710 126,042
TOAl CUITCIE ASSEES..ve.veivuerreraereeeeeirersnsresestineesseesessmeensrees sebsessvasssasne st sasbeasabare e saraneasns 544,532 532,037
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash (INOE 3)....c.evreemiiiceeiein ettt 3,035 74,810
Investments in equity affiliates and related receivables (Note 9) 252,237 256,577
Property and equipment, net (NOEE 3} ..co.cvivrcmiiiiiie i s e e 4,469,943 4,534,386
Intangible assets, net (Note 3):

Franchise FIZHLS ... vveiovereier e st b e e e s saes 5,464,420 5,193,739

GoodWill....oieerererce e 1,628,519 1,511,875

Customer relationships and other 579,916 962,182
Other NORCUITENt ASSELS, MEL . ..vevreecieeirevreeeeeeeiierareeeeesieenes 155,586 131,135

T ORT ASSBES.cuvereneereerieierireiareeeeemsssseesisseesesretosssse s sasrassaaasassransensrersbrsesessnsnesrnsansssssnesrasne $13,098,188 $13,196,741
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT
Current liabilities:
ACCOUNES PAYADIE .....vivciecrenievr ettt s e st st s s er et e s $173,654 $198,208
Subscriber advance payments and deposits............cc.c.o.cooee. 33,159 28,913
Accrued liabilities (Note 18) 535,924 412,071
Deferred FEVENUE.....cvevivie s ereeeesin st rae s 33,296 29,281
Current portion of parent and subsidiary debt (Note 11) 667,745 347,119
Amounts due to the Rigas Family and Other Rigas Entities from Rigas Co-Borrowing
Entities (NOLES 52100 6).c...ecueeee ettt st s e s 460,256 —
Total current HaDIIIES .. ....v. i iereereee ettt eer e et e e e ee s ene e s s oo e seeneene 1,904,034 1,015,592
Noncurrent liabilities:
OLher HADIHHES 11eveivvieieeieieiveierereesiee e et creese e ses e bt saes s s e ebesab s e sa s e sa s assen e 35,012 129,141
Deferred revenue. 85,397 110,163
Deferred income taxes (INOte 15).....ccoiviiiiiviiniiiiiniin s s s 729,481 722,644
Total noncurrent HabIlIES ......ccvvveiieieirierer ettt e s 849,890 961,948
Liabilities subject to compromise (Notes 2 and 11) reerere e et 18,480,948 18,184,226
TOta]l HADIHES -...cveiieeivei vt e et eie e v v e re e es s e snesre s sns smr e e e sanenren reererean s 21,234,872 20,161,766
Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 2 and 17) _
Minority's interest in equity of SUDSIAIANY ....ccovvvrvciiiiiini i e 79,142 109,649
Stockholders' deficit (Note 13):
Series Preferred SOCK ..uwuecir e ene ettt et e s b abs 397 397
Class A Common Stock, $.01 par value, 1,200,000,000 shares authorized, 229,787,271

shares issued and 228,692,414 shares outstanding .........cocveevnrinmneicr e 2,297 2,297
Convertible Class B Common Stock, $.01 par value, 300,000,000 shares authorized,

25,055,365 shares issued and outstanding 251 251
Additional paid-in capital............ccooieieiiiinnns 12,071,165 12,071,165
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net (11,565) (9,680)
Accumulated defiCit .......c..oooiivinii i e (20,221,691) (18,310,818)
Treasury stock, at cost, 1,094,857 shares of Class A Common Stock 27,937) (27,937)

(8,187,083)  (6,274,325)

Amounts due from the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities, net (Note 6) ............coeviiiinnns (28,743) (800,349)
Total stockholders' defiCit .......cc.vvvveirinrereec i st (8,215,826)  (7,074,674)
Total liabilities and stockholders' defiCit.........ooooooiveiiiii e e $13,098,188 $13,196,741

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

5



ADELPHIA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Debtors-In-Possession)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Revenue:
Third party.
Rigas Family Entities (Note 6)

TOMBI TEVENUE......voteecinectnrenrtremierieascascoresecaesisbnes e st ssnas s s s ss s et ses s bansssbsassn b et

Costs and expenses:

Direct operating and programming:

Third party

Rigas Family Entities (Note 6)
Selling, general and administrative:

Third Party .c....covevnerervecrrcerne s

Rigas Family Entities (Note 6) .

Investigation and re-audit related fees (Note 2).......ccoceconenerieincrenisvenccncans

Compensation benefit on equity security transactions with the Rigas Family and Rigas

Family Entitics (Note 6}

Depreciation (Note 3)........
Amortization
Impairment of long-lived assets (NOte 10).....ccvcvervcnremmmnomiiessenes
Provision for uncollectible amounts due from TelCove (Note 7)
Provision for uncollectible amounts due from the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Enlities

(Note 6)
(Gains) losses on dispositions of Tong-lived assets

TOtal COSIS ANA EXPEINSES 1vvveveerevsrersaers e ssessrsessssiesesassss st bsasbsatsassssse st smss nssasssssssssssns

Operating loss

Other expense, net:

Interest expense, net of amounts capitalized (contractual interest was $1,188,036,
$1,156,116 and $1,115,595 during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively) (Notes 2 and 3) ...
Interest expense on debt securities held by the Rigas Family Entities {contractual interest
was $23,043 during 2004, 2003 and 2002) (Note 6)
Other expense, net (2004 and 2002 include $425,000 and $175,000 provision for
government settlement, respectively) (Notes 17 and 18)
Total other expense, net
Loss before reorganization expenses, income taxes, share of losses of equity affiliates,
minority's interest, discontinued operations and cumulative effects of accounting
change:

Rearganization expenses due to bankruptcy (Note 2)

Loss before income taxes, share of losses of equity affiliates, minority's interest,
discontinued operations and cumulative effects of accounting changes ........ocoveeerererenens

Income tax benefit {(expense) (Note 15)

Share of losses of equity affiliates, net (Note 9).

Minority's interest in loss of subsidiary

Loss from continuing operations before cumulative effects of accounting changes

Loss from discontinued operations (Note 7)

Loss before cumulative effects of accounting changes .

Cumulative effects of accounting changes:

Due to new accounting pronouncements (Notes 5 and 10)
Due to new method of amortization (NOIE 3).......veveereereneeierercrnmemereecenieseesresesevessssstsssissesesens
Net foss

Dividend requirements applicable to preferred stock (contractual dividends were $120,125,
$120,125 and $117,279 during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively (Note 13)):

Third party
Beneficial conversion feature,
Net loss applicable to common stockholders

Basic and diluted loss per weighted average share of common stock:

From continuing operations before cumulative effects of accounting changes...........ccoueeeee,
Loss from discontinued operations
Cumulative effects of accounting changes

Net Joss applicable to common stockholders

Year ended December 31
2004 2003
$4,143,388 33,569,017
4,143,388 3,569,017
2653417 2.386.347
329,427 258,288
— (21.242)
125318 52,039
961,840 846,097
159,682 162,839
83,349 17,641
— 5497
(4,641) —
4,308,392 3,717,506
(165,004) (148,489)
(402,627) (381,622)
(425,789) (963)
(828,416) (382,585)
(993,420) (531,074)
(76,553) (98,812)
(1,069,973) (629,886)
2,843 (117,378)
(7.926) (2,826)
16,383 25,430
(1,058,673) (724,660)
(571) (107,952)
(1,059,244) (832,612)
(588,782} —_
(262,847) —
(1.910,873) (832,612)
(8,007) (7.317)
$(1,918,880) $(835,929)
$(4.20) (2.88)
— (0.43)
(3.36) —
3(7.56) 3(3.31)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

2002

$3,214,800
1,151
3,215,951

2.246,978
9,555

253420
(15,173}
56,519

{101,000)
956,308
168,881

2,031,757
549,407

1,762,241
6,747
7,925,640
{4,709,689)

(748,382)
(10,343)

(148,765)
(907,490)

(5617,179)
(48.206)

(5,665,385)
(76,620
(119,764)
118,704
(5.743,065)
(39.457)
(5.782,522)

(1,406,306)

(7,188,828)

(55.,551)
(3.512)
$(7.247,891)

(23.11)
(0.16)
{5.60)

$(28.87)



ADELPHIA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Debtors-In-Possession)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS—Continued

(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Year ended December 31

2004
Pro forma amounts assuming the new amortization method is applied retroactively:

Loss before cumulative effect of accounting change $(1,059,244)
Net loss applicable to common stockholders. $(1,656,033)

Basic and diluted loss per weighted average share of common stock:
Loss before cumulative effect of accounting change $(4.20)
Net loss applicable to common stockholder: $(6.53)
Basic and diluted weighted average shares of common stock outstanding..........cceeveeee. 253,747,779

2003

$(842,229)
3(849,546)

$(3.35)
$(3.35)
253,747,638

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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$(5,984,548)
$(7,449.917)

$(24.08)
$(29.68)
251,030,834



ADELPHIA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Debtors-In-Possession)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS"
(amounts in thousands)

Year ended December 31
2004 2003
INEELOSS . cuvevciricinrecterinre st s e e s b es s srcassnsbr s eessne e cannanas $(1,910,873) $(832,612)
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax
Foreign currency translation adjustment ............coooi i (1,821) 8,193
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities:
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the period...........c...... 163 1,483
Less: reclassification adjustments for losses (gains) included in net loss (270) (10)
Other comprehensive income (10ss), before tax......occeveveveveioerveeneennn, (1,928) 9,666
Income tax (expense) benefit related to each item of other
comprehensive income:
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the period.................. (65) (596)
Reclassification adjustments for losses (gains) included in net loss....... 108 4
Other comprehensive income (JOSS), NE ...cevveerirrcerrnirerrinnn e (1,885) 9,074
Comprehensive J0SS, NEL.....cccoveirierr vttt eevee s s sessee e ee e $(1,912,758) $(823,538)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

2002
$(7,188,828)

(10,310)

(1,410)
1,829
(9,891)

564

(732)
(10,059)
$(7,198,887)



ADELPHIA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

{Debtors-In-Possession)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT

Balance, January 1, 2002.......
NELIOSS oo ircraiaes
Other comprehensive loss, net

Change in amounts due from
the Rigas Family and Rigas
Family Entities, net..............

Net proceeds from issuance of
Class A Common Stock

Issuance of Class A Common
Stock in connection with
acquisitions (Note 8).............

Net proceeds from issuance of
Series F Preferred Stock

Preferred stock dividend
requirements....

Spin-off of TelCove (Note 7)

Compensation benefit on
equity security transactions
with the Rigas Family and
Rigas Famlly Entities

Interest from Rigas Family
Entities related to purchase
of Adelphia securities

Options exercised ......

Adjustment for mark-up on
long-lived assets purchased
from Rigas Family Entities

Balance, December 31, 2002..
Net 0SS oo
Other comprehensive income,
net (Note 18) ... .
Change in amounrs due from
the Rigas Family and Rigas
Family Entities, net (Note 6).
Balance, December 31, 2003..
Net loss .. v "
Other comprehensn'e loss, net

Consolidation of Rigas
Co-Borrowing Entities

Balance, December 31, 2004 ..

Series
preferred
stock
$167

230

Common
stock
$2,128

400

20

$2,548

Additional
paid-in
capital

$9,267,860

1,007,007

46,450

557,618

(55,551)
1,346,500

(101,000)

2,569

(205)

(86)
12,071,165

12,071,165

$12,071,165

(amounts in thousands)

Acenmulated

other

comprehensive

income (loss)

$(8,695)

(10,059)

(18,754)
9,074

(9.680)

(1,885)

$(11,565)

Accumulated
deficit
$(10,289,378)
(7,188,828)

(17,478,206)
(832,612)

(18,310,818)
(1,910,873)

$(20,221,691)

Treasury
stock
$(27,937)

(27,937

(27,937)

$(27,937)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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Amounts
due from

the Rigas
Family and
Rigas Family
Entities,

net
$(2,032,827)

1,199,552

(833,275)

32,926
(800,349)

771,606
$(28,743)

Total
$(3,088,682)
(7,188,828)

(10,059)

1,199,552

1,007,407

46,470

557.848

(55,551)
1,346,500

(101,000)

2,569

(205)

(86)
(6.284,062)
(832,612)
9,074
32926
(7.074,674)
(1,910,873)
(1,885)

771,606
$(8,215,826)



ADELPHIA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Debtors-In-Possession)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(amounts in thousands)

Year ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Operating Activities:
Net loss ... $(1,910,873) $(832,612) $(7,188,828)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net ¢:
Compensation benefit on equity security transactions with the Rigas Family and Rigas
Family Entities.....coseeieiruisnsnnns — — (101,000)
Depreciation . 961,840 846,097 956,308
AMOTHZATION ..o oot seeebe s remae s enrenins 159,682 162,839 168,881
Impairment of long-lived assets .....cc.ccovevsrereierinccnninnnns 83,349 17,641 2,031,757
Provision for uncollectible amounts due from TelCOVE...oivvirmrviiiniririnnirereniens — — 549,407
Provision for uncollectible amounts due from the Rigas Family and Rigas Family
Entities....c.rveerneren — 5,497 1,762,241
(Gains) losses on dispositions of long-lived assets (4,641) — 6,747
Amortization of deferred financing costs........ 14,113 24,386 60,747
Impairment of cost and available-for-sale investments . 3,801 8,544 6,531
Cost allocations and charges to Rigas Family Entities, net .. —_— (30,986) (34,084)
Provision for government settlement 425,000 —_ 175,000
Other noncash gains (charges), net.............. 3,757 (1,931) (32,045)
Reorganization expenses due to bankruptcy... 76,553 98,812 48,206
Deferred income tax EXPENSE.....c..cc.vevee. 5,996 125,254 79,994
Share of losses of equity affiliates, net. 7.926 2,826 119,764
Minority's interest in loss of subsidiary (16,383) (25,430) (118,704)
Depreciation, amortization and other noncash charges related to discontinued
OPCTAHONS 1vv.vvvvvesersessereresessnrmasesseressesssessesenrsnesemsesesesbesemncessrsibsssessnsenssansesss s sssasssine 1,575 108,426 28,396
Cumulative effects of acCOUNtINE CHANEES ......covirereecireerri e eiinens 851,629 — 1,406,306
Change in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions and ’
divestitures:
ACCOUNIS TECEIVADIE . ..ot er ettt et s st ar e 25,959 (2,440) (8,163)
Other current and other noncurrent assets 43,506 (12,804) (10,897)
Accounts payable . (115,449) 33,821 618,758
Subscriber advance payments and deposits (1,761) 2,360 (1,962)
Accrued liabilities .... . . . (546) 95,847 216,645
DEFEITED FEVENUE.. ... veveecverereeeieesas e seseses b b et s eraantesesreemeeesemeaesesanssesemesensaeseenesnsness (26,447) (21,375) (52,067)
Net cash provided by operating activities before payment of reorganization expenses ..... 588,586 604,772 687,938
Reorganization expenses paid during the period.......vimicmi e (76,894) (96,915) (36,643)
Net cash provided by operating achivities ......c.cevvimrerrerennisininsce s 511,692 507,857 651,295
Investing Activities:
Expenditures for property and equipment (820,913) (723,521) (1,235,884)
Expenditures for acquisitions and other intangibles... (5,047) (7,830) (7,898)
Investment in and advances to affiliates................. (5,667) (8,034) (84,725)
Cash advances to the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities — (106,860) (327,581)
Cash received from the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entitics - 168,293 213,268
Proceeds from sale of assets .. 14,161 3,712 35,659
Change in restricted cash.... . 79,802 148,345 (236,741)
Net cash used in INVESHNG ACHVILIES ......vueeeverresercsesisissrs s st nssrssssessins (737.664) (525,895) (1,643,902)
Financing Activities:
Proceeds from DIP Facility.... 804,851 77.000 200,000
Proceeds from debt...... . — — 2,370,000
Repayments of debt . (478,363) (28,678) (2,949,991)
Payment of deferred financing costs ... . (14,268) (1,253) (46,733)
Issuance of Class A Common Stock, net of issuance costs . — — 1,007,410
Issuance of Series F Preferred Stock, net of issuance costs . — — 557,848
Payment of preferred stock dividends — - (43,771
Net cash provided by financing activities 312,220 47,069 1,094,763
Increase in cash and cash equivalents....... 86,248 29,03] 102,156
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year......... 252,661 223,630 121,474
Cash and cash equivalents at end 0f Year .........ccocviviiiinncmnioes $338,909 $252,661 $223,630

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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ADELPHIA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Debters-In-Possession)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1: Background and Basis of Presentation

Adelphia Communications Corporation ("Adelphia™), its consolidated subsidiaries and other consolidated entities
(collectively, the "Company") are engaged primarily in the cable television business. The cable systems owned by the Company
are located in 31 states and Brazil. Effective January 1, 2004, the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board
("FASB") Interpretation ("FIN") No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities (as subsequently revised in December 2003,
"FIN 46-R") and began consolidating cerfain cable television entities owned by members of John J. Rigas' family (collectively,
the "Rigas Family") that are subject to co-borrowing arrangements with the Company (the "Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities”). The
Company has concluded that the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities represent variable interest entities for which the Company is the
primary beneficiary. Accordingly, all references to the Company prior to January 1, 2004 exclude the Rigas Co-Borrowing
Entities and all references to the Company subsequent to January 1, 2004 include the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities. As a result
of the consolidation of the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entitics for periods commencing in 2004, the Company's results of operations,
financial position and cash flows are not comparable to prior periods. For additional information, see Note 5.

Prior to January 1, 2004, these consolidated financial statements do not include the accounts of any of the entities in
which members of the Rigas Family directly or indirectly held controlling interests (collectively, the "Rigas Family Entities").
The Rigas Family Entities include the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities, as well as other Rigas Family entities {the "Other Rigas
Entities"). The Company believes that under the guidelines which existed for periods prior to January 1, 2004, the Company did
not have a controlling financial interest, including majority voting interest, control by contract or otherwise in any of the Rigas
Family Entities. Accordingly, the Company did not meet the criteria for consolidation of any of the Rigas Family Entities.

In June 2002, Adelphia and substantially all of its domestic subsidiaries (the "Debtors"), filed voluntary petitions to
reorganize (the "Chapter 11 Cases") under Chapter 11 of Title 11 ("Chaptcr 11") of the United States Code (the "Bankruptcy
Code") in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York (the "Bankruptcy Court”). The Rigas
Co-Borrowing Entities did not file for bankruptcy protection. Effective April 20, 2005, Adelphia entered into definitive
agreements with Time Warner NY Cable LLC ("TW NY") and Comcast Corporation ("Comecast”) which provide for the sale of
substantially all of the Company's U.S. assets. For additional information, see Note 2.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes continuity of
operations, realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the ordinary course of business, and do not purport to show,
reflect or provide for the consequences of the Debtors' Chapter 11 reorganization proceedings. In particular, these consolidated
financial statements do not purport to show: (i) as to assets, the amount that may be realized upon their sale or their availability
to satisfy liabilities; (ii) as to pre-petition liabilities, the amounts at which claims or contingencies may be settled, or the status
and priority thereof: (iii) as to stockholders' equity accounts, the effect of any changes that may be made in the capitalization of
the Company; or (iv) as to operations, the effect of any changes that may be made in its business.

In May 2002, certain Rigas Family members resigned from their positions as directors and executive officers of the
Company. In addition, the Rigas Family owned common stock with a majority of the voting power in Adelphia and was not able
to exercise such voting power since the Debtors filed for protection under the Bankruptcy Code in June 2002. Prior to May
2002, the Company engaged in numerous transactions that directly or indirectly involved members of the Rigas Family and
Rigas Family Entities. For additional information, sec Note 6. Pursuant to the Consent Order of Forfeiture entered by the United
States District Court for the Southern District of New York (the "District Court") on June 8, 2005 (the "Forfeitare Order™), all
right, title and interest of the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities in the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities, (other than
Coudersport Television Cable Co. ("Coudersport”) and Bucktail Broadcasting Corporation ("Bucktail")), certain specified real
estate and any securities of the Company were forfeited to the United States on June 8, 2005 and such assets and securitics are
expected to be conveyed (subject to forfeiture proceedings before a federal judge to determine if there are any superior claims) to
the Company pursuant to an agreement between the Company and United States Attorney's Office for the Southern
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ADELPHIA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Debtors-In-Possession)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—Continued

District of New York (the "U.S. Attorney") dated April 25, 2005 (the "Non-Prosecution Agreement") as discussed in Note 17.

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Adelphia and all of its subsidiaries that were directly or
indirectly controlled by Adelphia prior to the bankruptcy petition. Although the Company is operating as a debtor-in-possession
in the Chapter 11 Cases, the Company's ability to control the activities and operations of its subsidiaries that are also Debtors
may be limited pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code. However, because the bankruptcy proceedings for the Debtors are
consolidated for administrative purposes in the same Bankruptcy Court and will be overseen by the same judge, the financial
statements of Adelphia and its subsidiaries have been presented on a combined basis, which is consistent with consolidated
financial statemenis (see Note 2). All inter-entity transactions between Adelphia, its subsidiaries and, beginning in 2004, the
Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities have been eliminated in consolidation.

Note 2: Bankruptcy Proceedings and Sale of Assets of the Company
Overview

On June 25, 2002 ("Pctition Datc"), the Debtors filed voluntary petitions to reorganize under Chapter 11 of the
Bankruptcy Code in the Bankruptcy Court. On June 10, 2002, Century Communications Corporation ("Century"), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of Adelphia, filed a voluntary petition to reorganize under Chapter 11. The Debtors, which include
Century, are currently operating their business as debtors-in-possession under Chapter 11. Included in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements are subsidiaries that did not file voluntary petitions under the Bankruptcy Code, including the
Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities. The assets and liabilities of the non-filing subsidiaries, excluding the Rigas Co-Borrowing
Entities, are not considered material to the consolidated financial statements. The asscts and liabilities of the Rigas
Co-Borrowing Entities as of January 1, 2004 are presented in Note 5.

On July 11, 2002, a statutory committee of unsecured creditors (the "Creditors' Committee') was appointed, and on
July 31, 2002, a statutory committee of equity holders (the "Equity Committee” and, together with the Creditors' Committee, the
"Committees") was appointed. The Committees have the right to, among other things, review and object to certain business
transactions and may participate in the formulation of the Debtors' plan of reorganization. Under the Bankruptcy Code, the
Debtors were provided with specified periods during which only the Debtors could propose and file a plan of reorganization (the
"Exclusive Period") and solicit acceptances thereto (the "Solicitation Period"). The Debtors received several extensions of the
Exclusive Period and the Solicitation Period from the Bankruptcy Court with the latest extension of the Exclusive Period and the
Solicitation Period being through February 17, 2004 and April 20, 2004, respectively. The Debtors filed a2 motion requesting an
additional extension of the Exclusive Period and the Solicitation Period. However, the Equity Committee filed a motion to
terminate the Exclusive Period and the Solicitation Period and other objections were filed regarding this request. The
Bankruptcy Court has extended the Exclusive Period and the Solicitation Period until the hearing on the motions is held and a
determination by the Bankruptcy Court is made. No hearing has been scheduled.

On February 25, 2004, the Debtors filed their proposed joint plan of reorganization (the "Stand-Alone Plan"), which
contemplated their emergence from bankruptcy as a stand-alone entity, and related Disclosure Statement with the Bankruptcy
Court. On April 22, 2004, Adclphia announced that it intended to pursue a sale of the Company while simultanecusly pursuing
the Stand-Alone Plan. On September 21, 2004, Adelphia formally launched its sale process in which potential bidders were
invited to submit preliminary indications of interest in Adelphia and its subsidiaries or one or more Company-designated clusters
of cable systems. On November 1, 2004, Adelphia, based on the non-binding indications of interest, invited qualified bidders to
further participate in the sale process and to submit final legally binding bids in accordance with the bidding procedures
approved by the Bankruptcy Court. Final bids were due January 31, 2005. Adelphia received a number of bids that related to the
acquisition or recapitalization of the Company, in its entirety, or the acquisition of one or more clusters of assets.

On February 4, 2005, the Debtors filed their proposed First Amended Joint Plan of Reorganization and related First
Amended Disclosure Statement with the Bankruptcy Court. This plan contemplated the possibility of either: (i) emergence from

bankruptcy as a stand-alone entity; (ii) distribution of proceeds resulting from a sale or other corporate transaction involving one
or more companies in addition to the Debtors; or (iii) emergence from
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ADELPHIA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Debtors-In-Possession)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—Continued

bankruptcy as part of a stand-alone entity after having sold certain clusters of cable systems and distributed the proceeds of such
sales.

On June 25, 2005, the Debtors filed their proposed Second Amended Joint Plan of Reorganization and related Second
Amended Disclosure Statement with the Bankruptey Court. The Plan contemplates, among other things, consummation of the
Sale Transaction (defined below) and distribution of the cash and Class A common stock of Time Warner Cable, Inc. ("TWC")
(the "TWC Class A Common Stock") received pursuant to the Sale Transaction to the stakeholders of the Debtors in accordance
with the Plan.

On September 28, 2005, the Debtors filed their proposed Third Amendcd Joint Plan of Reorganization (the "Plan™) and
related Third Amended Disclosure Statement (the "Disclosure Statement™) with the Bankruptcy Court. The Plan contemplates,
among other things, consummation of the Sale Transaction (defined below) and distribution of the cash and TWC Class A
Common Stock received pursuant to the Sale Transaction to the stakeholders of the Debtors in accordance with the Plan.

Sale of Assets

Effective April 20, 2005, Adelphia entered into definitive asset purchase agreements with TW NY and Comcast,
pursuant to which TW NY and Comcast will purchase substantially all of the Company's U.S. assets and assume certain of its
liabilities (the "Sale Transaction"). Upon the closing of the Sale Transaction, Adelphia will receive approximately $12.7 billion
in cash and shares of TWC Class A Common Stock, which are expected to represent 16% of the outstanding equity securities of
TWC as of the closing and are to be listed on the New York Stock Exchange. Such percentage assumes the redemption of
Comcast's inferest in TWC and is subject to adjustment for issuances pursuant to employee stock programs (subject to a cap) and
issuances of securities for fair consideration. The purchase price payable by TW NY and Comcast is subject to certain
adjustments. TW NY is a subsidiary of TWC, the cable subsidiary of Time Warner Inc. ("Time Warner"). TWC and Comcast
and certain of their affiliates have also agreed to swap certain cable systems and unwind Comcast's investments in TWC and
Time Warner Entertainment Company, L.P., a subsidiary of TWC ("TWE"). The Sale Transaction does not include the
Company's interest in Century/ML Cable Venture ("Century/ML Cable"), a joint venture that owns and operates cable systems
in Puerto Rico, which Century and ML Media Partners, L.P. ("ML Media") separately agreed, on June 3, 2005, to sell to San
Juan, Cable LLC ("San Juan Cable"). For additional information see Note 6.

As part of the Sale Transaction, Adelphia has agreed to transfer to TW NY and Comcast the assets related to the cable
systems that were nominally owned by the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities and are managed by the Company (such Rigas
Co-Borrowing Entities, are herein referred to as the "Managed Cable Entities"). Pursuant to the Forfeiture Order, all right, title
and interest of the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities in the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities (other than Coudersport and
Bucktail} have been forfeited to the United States. Pursuant to the Non-Prosecution Agreement, the Company expects to obtain
ownership of all of the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities, other than Coudersport and Bucktail, (Coudersport and Bucktail together
served approximately 5,000 subscribers (unaudited) in July 2005) and, accordingly, Adelphia expects to be able to transfer to
TW NY and Comecast (subject to forfeiture proceedings before a federal judge to determine if there are any superior claims) the
assets of the Managed Cable Entities (other than Coudersport and Bucktail) as part of the Sale Transaction. If the Company is
unable to transfer all of the assets of the Managed Cable Entities to Comcast and TW NY at the closing of the Sale Transaction,
the initial purchase price payable by Comcast and by TW NY would be reduced by an aggregate amount of up to $600,000,000
and $390,000,000, respectively, but would become payable to the extent such assets are transferred to TW NY and Comcast
within 15 months of the closing. Adelphia believes that the failure to transfer the assets of Coudersport and Bucktail to TW NY
and Comcast will result in an aggregate purchase price reduction of approximately $23,000,000, reflecting a reduction to the
purchase price payable by TW NY of approximately 315,000,000 and by Comcast of approximatcly $8,000,000. For additional
information, see Note 17.

Pursuant to a separate agreement, dated as of April 20, 2005, TWC, among other things, has guaranteed the obligations
of TW NY under the asset purchase agreement between TW NY and Adelphia.

Until a plan of reorganization is confirmed by the Bankruptcy Court and becomes effective, the Sale Transaction
cannot be consummatcd. The closing of the Sale Transaction is also subject to the satisfaction or waiver of conditions customary
to transactions of this type, including, among others: (i) receipt of applicable regulatory approvals, including the consent of the
Federal Communications Commission (the "FCC") to the transfer of certain
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ADELPHIA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Debtors-In-Possession)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—Continued

licenses and any applicable approvals of local franchising authorities to the change in ownership of the cable systems operated
by the Company, to the extent not preempted by section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code; (ii) expiration or termination of the
applicable waiting period under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended; (iii) the offer and sale
of the shares of TWC Class A Comimon Stock to be issued in the Sale Transaction having been exempted from registration
pursuant to an order of the Bankruptcy Court confirming the Plan or a no-action letter from the staff of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the "SEC™), or a registration statement covering the offer and sale of such shares having been declared
effective; (iv) the TWC Class A Common Stock to be issued in the Sale Transaction being freely tradable and not subject to
resale restrictions, except in certain circumstances; (v) approval of the shares of TWC Class A Common Stock to be issued in
the Sale Transaction for listing on the New York Stock Exchange; (vi) entry by the Bankruptcy Court of 2 final order confirming
the Plan and, contemporaneously with the closing of the Sale Transaction, consummation of the Plan; (vii) satisfactory
settlement by Adelphia of the claims and causcs of action brought by the SEC and the investigations by the United States
Department of Justice (the "DoJ™); (viii) the absence of any material adverse effect with respect to TWC's business and certain
significant components of the Company's business (without taking into consideration any loss of subscribers by the Company's
business (or results thereof) already reflected in the projections specified in the asset purchase agreements or the purchase price
adjustments); (ix) the number of eligible basic subscribers (as the term is used in the purchase agreements) served by the
Company's cable systems as of a specified date prior to the closing of the Sale Transaction not being below an agreed upon
threshold; (x) the absence of an actual change in law, or proposed change in law that has a reasonable possibility of being
enacted, that would adversely affect the tax treatment accorded to the Sale Transaction with respect to TW NY; (xi) a filing of an
election under Section 754 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Internal Revenue Code"), by each of
Century-TCI California Communications, L.P. ("Century-TCI"), Parnassos Communications, L.P. ("Parnassos") and Westemn
NY Cablevision L.P. ("Western NY Cablevision"); and (xii) the provision of certain audited and unaudited financial information

by Adelphia.

The closing under each purchase agreement is also conditioned on a contemporaneous closing under the other purchase
agreement. However, pursuant to a letter agreement, dated as of April 20, 2005, and the asset purchase agreement between
Adelphia and TW NY, TW NY has agreed to purchase the cable operations of Adelphia that Comcast would have acquired if
Comcast's purchase agreement is terminated prior to closing as a result of the failure to obtain FCC or applicable antitrust
approvals. In such event and assuming TW NY received such approvals, TW NY will pay the $3.5 billion purchase price to have
been paid by Comcast, less Comcast's allocable share of the Habilities of Century-TCI, Parnassos and Western NY Cablevision,
which shall not be less than $549,000,000 or more than $600,000,000. Consummation of the Sale Transaction, however, is not
subject to the consummation of the agreement by TWC, Comcast and certain of their affiliates to swap certain cable systems and
unwind Comecast's investments in TWC and TWE, as described above. There is no assurance that TW NY would be able to
obtain the required FCC or applicable antitrust approvals for the transaction contemplated by the letter agreement.

The purchase agreements with TW NY and Comcast contain certain termination rights for Adelphia, TW NY and
Comcast, and further provide that, upon termination of the purchase agreements under specified circumstances, Adelphia may be
required to pay TW NY a termination fee of approximately $353,000,000 and Comcast a termination fee of $87,500,000.

As described above, on September 28, 2005, the Debtors filed the Plan and the Disclosurc Statement with the
Bankruptcy Court that reflects the terms of the Sale Transaction. Certain fees are due to the Company's financial advisors upon
successful completion of a sale, which are calculated as a percentage (0.11% to 0.20%) of the sale value. Additional fees may be
payable depending on the outcome of the sales process. Such fees cannot be determined until the closing of the Sale Transaction.
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(Debtors-In-Possession)
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Confirmation of Plan of Reorganization

For the Plan to be confirmed and become effective, the Debtors must, among other things:
e obtain an order of the Bankruptcy Court approving the Disclosure Statement as containing "adequate information";

«  solicit acceptance of the Plan from the holders of claims and equity interests in each class that is impaired and not
deemed by the Bankruptcy Court to have rejected the Plan;

e obtain an order from the Bankruptcy Court confirming the Plan; and

e consummate the Plan.

To complete these steps, the Bankruptcy Court must first hold a hearing to determine if the Disclosure Statement
contains adequatc information; the hearing to approve the Disclosure Statement has been scheduled for October 20, 2005.
Sccond, the Bankruptcy Court must find that the Disclosure Statement contains adequate information and the Debtors must
solicit the acceptance of the Plan. Third, before it can issue a confirmation order, the Bankruptcy Court must find that cither each
class of impaired claims or equity interests has accepted the Plan or the Plan meets the requirements of the Bankruptey Code to
confirm the Plan over the objections of dissenting classes. In addition, the Bankruptcy Court must find that the Plan meets
certain other requirements specified in the Bankruptcy Code.

Pre-petition Obligations

Pre-petition and post-petition obligations of the Debtors are treated differently under the Bankruptey Code. Due to the
commencement of the Chapter 11 Cases and the Debtors' failure to comply with certain financial and other covenants, the
Debtors are in default on substantially all of their pre-petition debt obligations. As a result of the Chapter 11 filing, all actions to
collect the payment of pre-petition indebtedness are subject to compromise or other treatment under a plan of reorganization.
Generally, actions to enforce or otherwise effect payment of pre-petition liabilities are stayed against the Debtors. The
Bankruptcy Court has approved the Debtors’ motions to pay certain pre-petition obligations including, but not limited to,
employee wages, salaries, commissions, incentive compensation and other related benefits. The Debtors have been paying and
intend to continue to pay undisputed post-petition claims in the ordinary course of business. In addition, the Debtors may assume
or reject pre-petition executory contracts and uncxpired leases with the approval of the Bankruptcy Court. Any damages
resulting from the rejection of executory contracts and unexpired leases are treated as general unsecured claims and will be
classified as liabilities subject to compromise. For additional information concerning liabilities subject to compromise, see

below,

The ultimate amount of the Debtors' liabilitics will be determined during the Debtors' claims resolution process. The
Bankruptcy Court established a bar date of January 9, 2004 for filing proofs of claim against the Debtors' estates. A bar date is
the date by which proofs of claim must be filed if a claimant disagrees with how its claim appears on the Debtors' Schedules of
Liabilities. However, under certain limited circumstances, claimants may file proofs of claims after the bar date. As of the bar
date, approximately 17,000 proofs of claim asserting in excess of $3.2 trillion in claims were filed and, as of August 31, 2005,
approximately 18,000 proofs of claim asserting approximately $3.8 trillion in claims were filed, in each case including
duplicative claims, but excluding any estimated amounts for unliquidated claims. The aggregate amount of claims filed with the
Bankruptcy Court far exceeds the Debtors' estimate of ultimate liability. The Debtors currently are in the process of reviewing,
analyzing and reconciling the scheduled and filed claims. At present, the allowed amounts of such claims are not determinable,
and the Debtors expect that the claims resolution process will take significant time to complete. As the amounts of the allowed
claims are determined, adjustments will be recorded in liabilities subject to compromise and reorganization expenses due to
bankruptcy.
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The Debtors have filed several omnibus objections to certain of the claims, seeking to eliminate in excess of $2.7
trillion in claims, consisting primarily of duplicative claims. Certain claims addressed in such objections were either: (i) reduced
and allowed; (ii) disallowed and expunged; or (iii) subordinated by orders of the Bankruptcy Court. Hearings on certain claims
objections are also scheduled for October 6 and October 25, 2005, Certain other objections have been adjourned to allow the
parties to continue to reconcile such claims. The Debtors have filed an additional omnibus objection which seeks to eliminate,
reduce and/or subordinate in excess of $900 billion of claims asserted against the Debtors by Leonard Tow and Claire Tow
(together, the "Tows") and the various trusts that are controlled by the Tows. Simultaneously with the filing of such omnibus
objection, the Company and certain other Debtors commenced an adversary proceeding in the Bankruptey Court by filing a
complaint against Leonard Tow seeking to: (i) avoid and recover certain unauthorized post-petition transfers and/or fraudulent
transfers totaling approximately $14,000,000 (the "Avoidable Transfers"); (ii) disallow Leonard Tow's claims pending the retumn
of Avoidable Transfers; and (iii) subordinate Leonard Tow's claims. Additional omnibus objections may be filed as the claims

resolution process continues.
Debtor-in-Possession ("DIP") Credit Facility

In order to provide liquidity following the commencement of the Chapter 11 Cases, the Debtors entered into a
$1,500,000,000 debtor-in-possession credit facility (as amended, the "DIP Facility"). On May 10, 2004, the Debiors entered into
a $1,000,000,000 extended debtor-in-possession credit facility (the "First Extended DIP Facility"), which amended and restated
the DIP Facility in its entirety. On February 25, 2005, the Debtors entered into a $1,300,000,000 further extended
debtor-in-possession credit facility (the "Second Extended DIP Facility"), which amcnded and restated the First Extended DIP
Facility in its entirety. For additional information, see Notc 11.

Exit Financing Commitment

On February 25, 2004, Adelphia executed a commitment Ietter and certain related documents pursuant to which a
syndicate of financial institutions committed to provide to the Debtors up to $8,800,000,000 in exit financing (the "Exit
Financing Facility™). Following the Bankruptcy Court's approval on June 30, 2004 of the exit financing commitment, the
Company paid the exit lenders a nonrefundable fee of $10,000,000 and reimbursed the exit lenders for certain expenses they had
incurred through the date of such approval, including certain legal expenses. In light of the agreements with TW NY and
Comcast, on April 25, 2005, the Company informed the exit lenders of its election to terminate the exit financing commitment,
which termination became effective on May 9, 2005. As a result of the termination, the Company recorded a charge of
$58,267,000 during the second quarter of 2005, which represents previously unpaid commitment fees of $45,428,000, the
nonrefundable fee of $10,000,000 and certain other expenses. As of December 31, 2004, $39,267,000 was included in other

noncurrcnt assets, net.
Going Concern

As aresult of the Company's filing of the bankruptcy petition and the other matters described in the following
paragraphs, there is substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The accompanying
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes continuity of operations and
realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the ordinary course of business, and in accordance with Statement of
Position 90-7, Financial Reporting by Entities in Reorganization Under the Bankruptcy Code ("SOP 90-7"). The consolidated
financial statements do not include any adjustments that might be required should the Company be unable to continue to operate
as a going concern. In accordance with SOP 90-7, all pre-petition liabilities subject to compromise have been segregated in the
consolidated balance sheets and classified as liabilities subject to compromise, at the estimated amount of allowable claims.
Interest expense related to pre-petition liabilities subject to compromise has been reported only to the extent that it will be paid
during the Chapter 11 proceedings. In addition, no preferred stock dividends have been accrued subsequent to the Petition Date.
Liabilities not subject to compromise are separalely classified as current or noncurrent. Revenue, expenses, realizcd gains and
losses, and provisions for losses resulting from reorganization are reported separately as reorganization expenses due to
bankruptcy. Cash used for reorganization items is discloscd in the consolidated statements of cash flows.
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The ability of the Debtors to continue as a going concem is predicated upon numerous matters, including:

L 4

Presentation

having a plan of reorganization confirmed by the Bankruptey Court and it becoming effective;

obtaining substantial exit financing if the Sale Transaction is not consummated and the Company is Lo emerge
from bankruptey under a stand-alone plan, including working capital financing, which the Company may not be
able to obtain on favorable terms, or at all. A failure to obtain necessary financing would result in the delay,
modification or abandonment of the Company's development and expansion plans and would have a material
adverse effect on the Company;

obtaining consideration sufficient to settle pre-petition labilities subject to compromise if the Sale Transaction is
not consummated, the amount of which is not known at this time because the rights and claims of the Debtors'
various creditors will not be known until the Bankruptey Court confirms a plan of reorganization;

extending the Second Extended DIP Facility through the effective date of a plan of reorganization in the event the
Sale Transaction is not consummated before the maturity date of the Second Extended DIP Facility, A failure to
obtain an extension to the Second Extended DIP Facility would result in the delay, modification or abandonment
of the Company's development and expansion plans and would have a material adverse effect on the Company,

remaining in compliance with the financial and other covenants of the Second Extended DIP Facility, including its
Jimitations on capital expenditures and its financial covenants through the effective date of a plan of
reorganization;

being able to successfully implement the Company's business plans, decrease basic subscriber losses and offset the
negative effects that the Chapter 11 filing has had on the Company's business, including the impairment of
customner and vendor relationships;

resolving matcrial litigation;

renewing franchises; failure to do so will result in reduced operating results and potential impairment of assets;
achieving positive operating results, increasing net cash provided by operating activities and maintaining
satisfactory levels of capital and liquidity considering its history of net losses and capital expenditure requirements

and the expected near-term continuation thereof; and

motivating and retaining key executives and employees.

For periods subsequent to the Petition Date, the Company has applied the provisions of SOP 90-7. SOP 90-7 requires
that pre-petition liabilities that are subject to compromise bc segregated in the consolidated balance sheets as liabilities subject to
compromise and that revenue, expenses, realized gains and losses, and provisions for losses resulting directly from the
reorganization due to the bankruptey be reported separately as reorganization expenses in the consolidated statements of
operations. Liabilities subject to compromise are reported at the amounts expected to be allowed, even if they may be settled for
Tesser amounts, Liabilities subject to compromise consist of the following (amounts it thousands):
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December 31,

2004 2003

Parent and subSidiary debt...........cecieeiiviiiieiiecice et e eresr e en $ 11,560,684 $ 11,560,684
Parent and subsidiary debt under co-borrowing credit facilities........cc.ocvceviervvenennenne 4,576,375 4,576,375
Accounts Payable ......ccoeevceeiir e 954,858 1,059,231
ACCTued HabilitIes. ... covieeiiieeiierer e e rrerert e ear e e et eeaeesssae e sraesasae e e e e enren e s 1,240,237 839,142
Series B Preferred S10CK ...ovieiiii et et 148,794 148,794
Liabilities Subject 10 COMPIOMIISE. e veveerriiereeeeearerererres i eeesseees s beeceeear e neesneessnees $ 18,480,948 $ 18,184,226

The Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities are jointly and severally obligated with certain of the Debtors to the lenders with
respect to borrowings under certain co-borrowing facilities ("Co-Borrowing Facilities"). Borrowings under the Co-Borrowing
Facilities have been presented as liabilities subject to compromise in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as collection
of such borrowings from the Debtors is stayed. Collection of such borrowings from the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entitics has not
been stayed and actions may be taken to collect such borrowings from the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities. However, the Rigas
Co-Borrowing Entitics would not have sufficient assets to satisfy claims for all liabilities under the Co-Borrowing Facilities.

Following is a reconciliation of the changes in liabilities subject to compromise for the period from the Petition Date
through December 31, 2004 (amounts in thousands):

Balance @t PEION DALe ... ccoceivrieeirieireiiseeietee s et eeesteree s testassseessaeeeeabtescbeessnseessrensrsessesenesssanssannnasessrnns $ 18,017,513
Contract rejections...c...eveereereevnionnns 2,611
Balance at December 31, 2002 ...c.ocivviieiiee v e rreesrr e sriresssbaesseses i eser et e s tanresra s sae e see e sabbbs s e esae 18,020,124
Series B PrefeITEd SEOCK ...ciiecieciiiveierieireteesreerarssnes e e ernesse e s seesmessaens she s ssesbeteacesaeneneerans snnensneessareesans 148,794
CONTACE LEJECHIONS 1.1 eev et emieiiieeaeet et etta et et ees e me e e smees e e et e e b oaseeatar e s et eae eecomeeme s e aae st smeamsen neennnbats 18,308
SEUIEITIEIILS. ... .oeievievereeieeieee et eesueeevensreassesrbastaesbsasasasaaressarsassees srasaanesesansbesrasonsessesansasssnssstansasasssrnenne (3,000)
Balance al December 31, 2003 ... et e e e e e s e s e s s e st be e e s s arese et snrabrasae e ee e ineen 18,184,226
Increase in government settlement reserve (see Note 17)... . 425,000
CONITACE FEJECLIONS 1. v ctreeeseeeenr e iees rrseee st eesae e e sre s saeesnes e se shssaesbb et be s eoseecebtssbernesbe s e s nnsnsserbansbesabanss 3,156
ST IEITIEIES. .. e vvee st eeeeereeeereearessttestbesobeentaessetensnsansbssenessessasesnsessbt bt e sbessae s v Rt b bsson e eR b e s n s e s sme st e e srannree (131,434)
Balance at December 31, 2004 .......coooiiiiiiiieeieerreeitreeesteererrreesesravsaresssersesanresesnsasestssetsassonaansesasmnnessssnee $ 18,480,948

The amounts presented as liabilities subject to compromise may be subject to future adjustments depending on
Bankruptcy Court aclions, completion of the reconciliation process with respect to disputed claims, determinations of the
secured status of certain claims, the values of any collateral securing such claims or other events. Such adjustments may be
material to the amounts reported as liabilities subject to compromise.

Amortization of deferred financing fees related to pre-petition debt obligations was terminated effective on the Petition
Date and the unamortized amount at the Petition Date ($134,208,000) has been included as an offset to liabilities subject to
compromise as an adjustment of the net carrying value of the related pre-petition debt. Similarly, amortization of the deferred
issuance costs for the Company's redeemable preferred stock was also tcrminated at the Petition Date. For periods subsequent to
the Petition Date, interest expense has been reported only to the extent that it will be paid during the Chapter 11 proceedings. In
addition, no preferred stock dividends have been accrued subsequent to the Petition Date.

Reorganization Expenses due to Bankruptcy and Investigation and Re-audit Related Fees

Only those fees directly related to the Chapter 11 filings are included in reorganization expenses due to bankruptcy.
These expenses are offset by the interest earned during reorganization, Certain reorganization expenses
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ADELPHIA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Debtors-In-Possession)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—Continued

are contingent upon the approval of a plan of reorganization by the Bankruptcy Court and include cure costs, financing fees and
success fees. The Company is currently aware of certain success fees that potentially could be paid upon the Company's
emergence from bankruptcy to third party financial advisors retained by the Company and the Committees in connection with
the Chapter 11 Cases. Currently, these success fees are estimated to be between $6,500,000 and $19,950,000 in the aggregate. In
addition, Adelphia's Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") and Chief Operating Officer ("COQO") are cligible to receive equity
awards of Adelphia stock with a minimum aggregate fair value of $17,000,000 upon the Debtors' emergence from bankruptcy.
Such awards may be increased up to a maximum aggregate value of $25,500,000 at the discretion of the board of directors of
Adelphia (the "Board"). As no plan of reorganization has been confirmed by the Bankruptcy Court, no accrual for such
contingent payments or equity awards has been recorded in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. See Note 17 for
additional information. The following table sets forth certain components of reorganization expenses for the indicated periods
{amounts in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Professional fEES......c.ivvvrveiieireirsesiesressrerersesearssnsesraesesserenasnsenrassenessnnensnnssreses $ 78308 $ 81,948 $ 47,500
Contract rejections...... 3,156 18,308 2,611
Interest earned during reorganization .. (3,457) (4,390) 2,779)
OthEr ..o et e e (1.454) 2,946 874
Reorganization expenses due to bankauptCy.......o.vcveeir v e crreeincieec oo cnesen s $_76,553 § 98.812 $ 48206

The Company has incurred certain professional fees that, although not directly related to the Chapter 11 filing, relate to
the investigation of the actions of the Rigas Family management and related efforts to comply with applicable laws and
regulations. These expenses include the additional audit fees incurred for the year ended December 31, 2001 and prior, as well as
legal fees, forensic consultant fees and legal defense costs paid on behalf of the Rigas Family. These expenses have been
included in investigation and re-audit related fees in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
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ADELPHIA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Debtors-In-Possession)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—Continued

Condensed Financial Statements of Debtors

The Debtors' condensed consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2004 is as follows (amounts in thousands):

Assets:
TO1A] CUITENE ASSELS ... eeeeieecereerirereeriessariarsameners e ere et essarsersar s ss s e abe s sasaas s o sbbba bob b e tab e e esbansonransensbansan
Property and equipment, net ....
INtangible ASSELS, NEL ....eieirieieicere e ettt et s
Other noncurrent assets

QLI 2L I T O OO OO OO T PR SSUTN

Liabilities and Stockholders' Deficit:

Liabilities:

Other CUITENE HHADIIIEIES. .. e.evvercerrieeie i rr e cse et eeserses e saes e e b s e st e b b ssbnar e saeneesaasssaneresnns
Current portion of parent and subsidiary debt
Total noncurrent HABIHLES. .......o.oocoiiii et e e e b s
Liabilities SUDJECt 10 COMPIOIIISE. ... c..eirut it oo ecr et et e s bbb s s s s a s raebe

Total liabilities

N OTIEY'S TRIETESE. e evrvevvererivasessreceesaenserercrseene s en se s es s sens s b b e b ebes st s s s e s s r s s aereneaanrse s en s srens

Stockholders' deficit:

SEries PIEfEITEA SLOCK ... cuierereirtrierre o e rreaes e s e b e e r s en s s b s b e b esteb e bbbk ebbebbea s bbb e b en saes
Common StocK....ueeeerioeinncens

Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated ofher comprehensive INCOME, NEL ....cciviiiinriii e ens s ea e
Accumulated deficit
Treasury stock, at cost

Amounts due from the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities, Net..........ccoovverviinicririnincionone v,
Total stockholders' deficit
Total liabilities and stockholders' deficit...........c.coovvmiiiiic e
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$ 624,572
4,323,142
7,174,967

406,414

$ 12,529,095

$ 755512
667,605
843,274

18,480,948
20,747,339

79,142

397

2,548
9,566,968
826
(17,059,560)
(27,937)

(7,516,758)
(780,628)

(8,297,386)
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ADELPHIA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Debtors-In-Possession)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—Continued

The Debtors’ condensed consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2004 is as follows
(amounts in thousands): .

$ 3,934,732

REVEIIUE .. ..o eeectreieeee e e e et te e st bte s e seaear e e e e oo sea et ae e as sttt e e e et e e eambseas o s ae sen s mamedeeam e naneaananssanres
Costs and expenses:

Direct operating and programming...... 2,532,193
Selling, general and administrative......... 310,060
Investigation and re-audit related fees ... 108,065
DEPreCiation ..eovveveriiseissiesceeeisnieee st sresesse e eres s st r et e e e anana e 920,343
Amortization .......co.coeveveceennns 151,966
Impairment of long-lived assets................. 77,751

Gains on dispositions 0f I0ng-liVEd SSELS.......covvermiriiriiienre it e s bbb s (4,641)
Total costs and €XpPenses......ccovrerrevviinninenns 4,095,737
Operating 10SS......ovvveirniieinnnnininennn, (161,005)
Interest expense, net of amounts capitalized ..... (385,137)
Other expense, Net.....covviirenneiininveconiessnen . (427,047)
Reorganization expenses due to bankruptcy ..... (76,553)
Income tax benefit......cocoovivieiinennnn. s evsesessaninitetaesen i r—eeeetantersanaatsseea et b e b raatt e anranrreeaesatbabenetenans 3,483
Share of losses of equity affiliates, HEt........ccoovciir i e e e (7,926)
Minority's interest in loss of subsidiary ............... 16,383
Loss from continuing operations ........cc.cecevvveerivasinsreninens (1,037,802)
Loss from discontinued OPEIAtIONS. .......oviiiiiiiiinii et e e bbb e e e (571)
Loss before cumulative effects of accounting changes........... . (1,038,373)
Cumulative effects of accounting Changes...........co.o i (262,847)
INEELOSS. cveevvevieerrertetreereeseee e st ssesbesetesse ees e sar e es e anteae e aee et e e se ket st eae e s ebon e e e e e oo ae e s e e $ (1,301,220)

Following is condensed consolidated cash flow data for the Debtors for the year ended December 31, 2004 (amounts in
thousands):

Net cash provided by (used in):

OPETALNE ACHVIHES 1. evevoerreeitees et et e ba e emee oo et s st n et e et es bbbt s e et ss b s § 462,012
Investing activities $ (687,713)
FINANCING ACHVIEIES ....vrvsrireesereecirereiercts ettt s s b ses s eaesa s sas e e e ses s r s s eanb b amesa s $ 312,220

Note 3: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Bankruptcy

As a result of the Debtors' Chapter 11 filings, these consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with SOP 90-7. For additional information, see Note 2.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist primarily of money market funds and United Statcs Government obligations with maturities
of three months or less when purchascd. The carrying amounts of cash equivalents approximate their fair values.
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ADELPHIA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Debtors-In-Possession)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—Continued

Restricted Cash

Details of restricted cash are presented below (amounts in thousands):

December 31,
2004 2003
Current restricted cash:
Dispute related to acquisition(a) § 3,618 § 13215
Other....oovveie e 2.682 1,112

$ 6,300 $_ 14327

Current restricted cash
Noncurrent restricted cash:

Tranche B LOAN(D).....ccoveirerimnintiniinsseiineimriss s e s asssssr st o s s e s 5 — § 45,000

Agreement with insurance provider(c).... — 28,662

(8711753 SRRSOV RpRR 3,035 1,148
Noncarrent FESIICEEA CASR 1.vvvveieveirrccerir e seserre sttt s b e e e s s sa s ar e s san e et emn s $ 3,035 § 74810
(a) Cash receipts from customers that were placed in trust as a result of a dispute arising from the acquisition of a cable

system (see Note 8)

(by Proceeds received from the $200,000,000 Tranche B Loan made pursuant to the DIP facility that were subject to letter
of credit agreements or other restrictions pursuant to the DIP Facility

(c) Amounts that are required for the payment of franchise fees pursuant to an agreement with an insurance provider

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are reflected net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. Such allowance was $37,954,000 and
$40,108,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The allowance for doubtful accounts is established through a charge
to direct operating and programming expenses. The Company assesses the adequacy of this reserve periodically, evaluating
general factors such as the length of time individual receivables are past due, historical collection experience, and the cconomic
and competitive environment.

Investments

All publicly traded marketable securities held by the Company are classified as available-for-sale securities and are
recorded at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from changes in fair value between measurement dates for
available-for-sale securities are recorded net of taxes as a component of other comprehensive income (loss). Unrealized losses
that are deemed to be other-than-temporary are recognized currently. Investments in privately held entities in which the
Company does not have the ability to exercise significant influence over their cperating and financial policies are accounted for
at cost, subject to other-than-temporary impairment. The Company's available-for-sale securities and cost investments are
included in other noncurrent assets, net in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Investments in entities in which the Company has the ability to excrcise significant influence over the operating and
financial policies of the investee are accounted for under the equity method. Equity method investments are recorded at original
cost, subject to othcr-than-temporary impairment, and adjusted quarterly to recognize the Company's proportionate share of the
investees' net income or loss after the date of investment, additional contributions or advances made, and dividends received.
The equity method of accounting is suspended when the Company no longer has significant influence, for example, during the
period that investees are undergoing corporate reorganization or bankruptcy proceedings. The Company's share of losses is
generally limited to the extent of the Company's investment unless the Company is committed to provide further financial
support to the investee. The excess of the Company's investment over its share of the net assets of each of the Company's
investees has been attributed to the franchise rights and customer relationship intangibles of the investee. Pursuant to Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets ("SFAS No. 142"), the Company
does not amortize the excess basis to the extent it has been attributed to goodwill and

22

F-22



ADELPHIA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Debtors-In-Possession)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—Continued

franchise rights. As discussed below under "/niangible Assets,” the Company has determined that franchise rights have an
indefinite life, and therefore are not subject to amortization.

Changes in the Company’s proportionate share of the underlying equity of an equity method investee, which result from
the issuance of additional equity securities of the equity investee, are reflected as increases or decreases to the Company's
additional paid-in capital.

On a quarterly basis, the Company reviews its investments to determine whether a decline in fair value below the cost
basts is other-than-temporary. The Company considers a number of factors in its determination including: (i) the financial
condition, operating performancc and near term prospects of the investee; (ii) the reason for the decline in fair value, be it
general market, industry specific or investee specific conditions; (iii) the length of time that the fair value of the investment is
below the Company's carrying value; and (iv) changes in value subsequent to the balance sheet date. If the decline in estimated
fair value is deemed to be other-than-temporary, a new cost basis is established at the then estimated fair value. In situations
where the fair value of an investment is not evident due to a lack of public market price or other factors, the Company uses its
best estimates and assumptions to arrive at the estimated fair valuc of such an investment. The Company's assessment of the
foregoing factors involves a high degree of judgment, and the use of significant estimates and assumptions.

Derivative and Other Financial Instruments

SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended ("SFAS No. 133"), requires
that all derivative instruments be recognized in the balance shect at fair value. In addition, SFAS No. 133 provides that for
derivative instruments that qualify for hedge accounting, changes in fair value will either be offset against the change in fair
value of the hedged assets, liabilities or firm commitments through earnings or recognized in stockholders' equity as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) until the hedged item is recognized in eamnings, depending on
whether the derivative hedges changes in fair value or cash flows. The ineffective portion of a derivative's change in fair valuc
will be immediately recognized in earnings.

The Company has entered into interest rate exchange agreements, interest rate cap agreements and interest rate collar
agreements with the objective of managing its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates. However, the Company has not
designated these agreements as hedging instruments pursnant to the provisions of SFAS No. 133. Accordingly, changes in the
fair value of these agreements were recognized currently and included in other expense, net through the Petition Date. Changes
in the fair value of these agreements subsequent to the Petition Date have not been recognized, as the amount to be received or
paid in connection with these agreements will be determined by the Bankruptcy Court. For additional information, see Note 11,

Business Combinations

The Company has accounted for business combinations using the purchase method of accounting. The results of
operations of the acquired business have been included in the Company's consolidated results from the date of the acquisition.
The cost to acquire companies, including transaction costs, has been allocated to the underlying net assets of the acquired
company based on their respective fair values. Any excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair values of the identifiable
net assets acquired has been recorded as goodwill. The value assigned to the Class A common stock, par value $0.01 per share
("Class A Common Stock"), issued by Adelphia as consideration for acquisitions is generally based on the average market price
for a period of a few days before and after the date that the respective terms were agreed to and announced. The application of
purchase accounting requires a high degree of judgment and involves the usc of significant estimates and assumptions.
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ADELPHIA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Debtors-In-Possession)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—Continued

Property and Equipment

The details of property and equipment and the related accumulated depreciation are set forth below for the indicated
periods (amounts in thousands):

December 31,

2004 2003

Cable diStribution SYSLEIMIS......ecvee veretieeieeereestenitinre e s eteiese e cerat et e ren ebaenn s enaeresbebesees $ 7,357,896 $ 6,608,704
Support equipment and buildings.... . 556,203 689,838
Land..ccoviiciiviercii e 54,091 51,979
7,968,190 7,350,521

Accomulated depreciation ..........c.evviieeiies e (3,498,247} (2,816,135}
Property and equipment, REL ...t $ 4,469,943 $ 4,534,386

Property and equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. In accordance with SFAS No. 51, Financial
Reporting by Cable Television Companies ("SFAS No. 51"), the Company capitalizes costs associated with the construction of
new cable transmission and distribution facilities and the installation of new cable services. Capitalized construction and
installation costs include materials, labor and applicable indirect costs. Installation costs include labor, material and overhead
costs related to: (i) the initial connection (or "drop™) from the Company's cable plant to a customer location; (ii) the replacement
of a drop; and (iii) the installation of equipment for additional services, such as digital cable or high-speed Internet ("HSI"). The
costs of other customer-facing activities, such as reconnecting customer locations where a drop already exists, disconnecting
customer locations and repairing or maintaining drops, are expensed as incurred. The Company's methodology for capitalization
of internal construction labor and internal and contracted third party installation costs (including materials) utilizes standard
costing models based on actual costs. Materials and external labor costs associated with construction activities are capitalized
based on amounts invoiced to the Company by third parties.

The Company captures data from its billing, customer care and engineering records to determine the number of
occurrences for each capitalizable activity, applies the appropriate standard and capitalizes the result on a monthly basis.
Periodically, the Company reviews and adjusts, if necessary, the amount of costs capitalized utilizing the methodology described
above, based on comparisons (o actual costs incurred. Significant judgment is involved in the development of costing models
and in the determination of the nature and amount of indirect costs to be capitalized.

Improvements that extend asset lives are capitalized and other repairs and maintenance expenditures are expensed as
incurred.

Subject to the change noted below for set-top boxes, depreciation is computed on the straight-line method using the
following useful lives:

Classification Useful Lives

Cable distribution systems:
Construction SqUIPIMENL.........ccviiiiieniii i s e e bt rores 12 years
Cable plant 9 to 12 years
Set-top boxes, remotes and MOAEMS. .....co.eeveeieirernicecree ettt s rereeneane 3 to 5 years (see below)
Studio equipment R 7 years
Advertising eqUIPITIENT .....c.veuerveerrerie et seeee oo e s s e et 5 years
Tools and test SqUIPIMENT........cc..ccoiierieriiie et e e e 5 years

Support equipment and buildings:
Buildings and imMPTOVEIMCHLS ......veeveererereeererrcereesetsrn s serreseesr et resissrsseessessssersas 10 to 20 years
OFFICE FUITIEUTE. ... cveveee et et e e et s eas sh e bes e ene e e erra s easeb e a e e besrsaebees 10 years
Aircraft.....ooviniinnns 10 years
Computer equipment 3to7 years
Office equipment ..........cc.coocciinininaencenns 5 years
VERICIES ..ottt e s s e e e b e S years
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ADELPHIA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Debtors-In-Possession)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—Continued

The Company periodically evaluates the useful lives of its property and equipment. Effective January 1, 2004, the
Company changed the useful life used to calculate the depreciation of standard definition digital set-top boxes from five years to
four years due to the introduction of advanced digital set-top boxes which provide high definition television ("HDTV") and
digital video recording capabilities, and the expected migration of new and existing customers to these advanced digital set-top
boxes. In addition, consumer electronics manufacturers continue to include advanced technology necessary to receive digital and
HDTV signals within television sets, which the Company expects to further contribute to the reduction in the useful life of ils
set-top boxes. The impact of this change in useful life on the Company's operating results for the year ended December 31, 2004
was an $111,849,000 increase to the Company's net loss and a $0.44 increase to the Company's net loss per common share.

The useful lives used to depreciate cable plant that is undergoing rebuilds are adjusted such that property and
equipment to be retired will be fully depreciated by the time the rebuild is completed. In addition, the useful lives assigned to
property and equipment of acquired companies are based on the expected remaining useful lives of such acquired property and
equipment. Upon the sale of cable systems, the related cost and accumulated depreciation is removed from the respective
accounts and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in eamings.

Intangible Assets

Franchisc rights represent the value attributed to agreements with local authorities that allow access to homes in cable
service areas acquired in connection with a business combination. Pursuant to SFAS No. 142, the Company does not amortize
acquired franchise rights as the Company has determined that such rights have an indefinite life. Costs to extend and maintain
the Company's franchise rights are expensed as incurred.

Goodwill represents the excess of the acquisition cost of an acquired entity over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired. Pursuant to SFAS No. 142, the Company does not amortize goodwill.

Following is a reconciliation of the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the periods indicated (amounts in
thousands):

Corpurate

Cable and Other Total

Balance at January 1, 2003 ...t s $ 1,503,838 $ 3,846 $ 1,507,684
ACQUISTHON . ...ceeeermerrsi ettt st ae e b sss s sns e 4,191 — 4,191
Balance at December 31, 2003 1,508,029 3,846 1,511,875
Consolidation of Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities (Note 5) 116,844 — 116,844
10]131= SR OSSO U O VOO RO PO PO e (200) (200}
Balance at December 31, 2004 ......oiveevrevirviierieerceeer e sseesene e senes $ 1,624,873 $ 3646 $ 1,628,519

Customer relationships represent the value attributed to customer relationships acquired in business combinations and
are amortized over a 10-year period. Beginning in 2004, the Company began amortizing its customer relationships using the
double declining balance method. Customer relationships were amortized using the straight-line method prior to 2004. The new
method of amortization was adopted to better recognize the attrition patterns of our customer relationships and has been applied
to customer relationships acquired prior to 2004, The effcct of the change in 2004 was to decrease amortization expense by
$23,072,000. The application of the new amortization method to customer relationships acquired prior to 2004 resulted in an
additional charge of $262,847,000 which has been reflected as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations. The proforma amounts shown in the consolidated statements of operations
have been adjusted for the effect of retroactive application on amortization, changes in impairment of long-lived assets and
minority's interest in loss of subsidiary which would have been made had the new methed been in effect. Amortization of
customer relationships and other aggregated $145,357,000, $157,019,000 and $159,451,000 during 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. Based solely on the Company's current amortizable intangible assets, the Company expects that amortization
expense of amortizable intangible assets will be approximately $113,000,000, $102,000,000, $100,000,000, $97,000,000 and
$80,000,000 during 2005, 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009, respectively. The details of customer relationships and other are sct forth
below for the indicated periods (amounts in thousands):
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(Debtors-In-Possession)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—Continued

As of December 31,

2004 2003

GrOSS CAITYINE VAIUE ... e.veuieeereereirei st ot e ens s s bbb rae b s bbb n bt s o $ 1,674,138 § 1,620,941
Accumulated amortization... (1,094,222} (658,759)
Net CATYING VAIUL. ... oiveeieie ettt esb s e e svs s e b b e $§ 579916 $ 962,182

For the year ended December 31, 2004, goodwill, franchise rights and customer relationships and other increased
$116,844,000, $354,029,000 and $38,888,000, respectively, due to the January 1, 2004 consclidation of the Rigas Co-Borrowing
Entities.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Pursuant to SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets ("SFAS No. 144™), the
Company evaluates property and equipment and amortizable intangible assets for impairment whenever current events and
circurnstances indicate the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If the carrying amount is greater than the expected future
undiscounted cash flows to be generated, the Company recognizes an impairment loss equal to the excess, if any, of the carrying
value over the fair value of the asset. The Company generally measures fair value based upon the present value of estimated
future net cash flows of an asset group over its remaining useful life. The Company utilizes an independent third party valuation
firm to assist in the determination of fair value for the cable assets. With respect to long-lived assets associated with cable
systems, the Company groups systems at a level which represents the lowest level of cash flows that are largely independent of
other assets and liabilities. The Company's asset groups under this methodology consist of seven major metropolitan markets and
numerous other asset groups in the Company's geographically dispersed operations.

Pursuant to SFAS No. 142, the Company evaluates its goodwill and franchise rights for impairment, at least annually
on July 1, and whenever other facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of goodwill and franchise rights may
not be recoverable. The Company evaluates the recoverability of the carrying amount of goodwill at its operating regions. These
operating regions make up the Company's cable operating segment determined pursuant to SFAS No. 131, Disclosures about
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information, as further discussed in Note 16. For purposes of this evaluation, the
Company compares the fair value of the assets of each of the Company's operating regions to their respective carrying amounts.
The Company estimates the fair value of its goodwill and franchise rights primarily based on discounted cash flows, current
market transactions and industry trends. If the carrying value of an operating region were to exceed its fair value, the Company
would then compare the implied fair value of the operating region's goodwill to its carrying amount, and any excess of the
carrying amount over the fair value would be charged to operations as an impairment loss. The fair value of goodwill represents
the excess of the operating region's fair value over the fair value of its identifiable net assets. The Company evaluates the
recoverability of the carrying amount of its franchise rights based on the same asset groupings used to evaluate jts long-lived
assets under SFAS No. 144 because the franchise rights are inseparable from the other assets in the asset group. These groupings
are consistent with the guidance in Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") Issue No. 02-7, Unit of Measure for Testing
Impairment of Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets. Any cxcess of the carrying value over the fair value for franchise rights is
charged to opcrations as an impairment loss.

The evaluation of long-lived assets for impairment requires a high degree of judgment and involves the use of
significant estimates and assumptions. For additional information, see Note 10.

Internal-Use Software

The Company capitalizes certain direct development costs associated with internal-use software, including external
direct costs of material and services, and payroll and related benefit costs for employees devoting time to the software projects.
Such costs are amortized over an estimated useful life of three years, beginning when the assets are substantially ready for use.
Amounts capitalized for internal-use software were $22,502,000, $14,882,000 and $15,250,000 during 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. Amortization of internal-use softwarc costs was $14,325,000, $5,820,000 and $9,430,000 for 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The net book value of internal-use software at December 31, 2004 and 2003 was $42,059,000 and $35,678,000,
respectively. Internal-use software costs are included in other noncurrent assets, net in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets.
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Deferved Financing Fees

In general, costs associated with the issuance and refinancing of debt are deferred and amortized to interest expense
using the effective interest method over the term of the related debt agreement. However, in the case of deferred financing costs
related to pre-petition debt obligations, amortization was terminated effective on the Petition Date and the unamortized amount
at the Petition Date ($134,208,000) is included as an offset to liabilities subject to compromise at the Petition Date and at
December 31, 2004 and 2003 as an adjustment of the net carrying value of the related pre-petition debt. Deferred financing fees
related to the DIP facilities and the Exit Financing Facility of $46,589,000 and 812,774,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively, are included in other noncurrent asscts, net in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Minority's Interes!

Recognition of minority's interest share of losses of consolidated subsidiaries are limited to the amount of such
minority's allocable share of the common equity of those consolidated subsidiaries.

Foreign Currency Translation

Assets and liabilities of the Company's cable operations in Brazil, where the functional currency is the local currency,
are translated into U.S. dollars at the exchange rate as of the balance sheet date, and the related translation adjustments are
recorded as a component of cther comprehensive income (loss). Revenue and expenses are translated using average exchange
rates prevailing during the period.

Transactions with the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities

The Company has had significant involvement, directly or indirectly, with the Rigas Family and numerous legal
entitics owned by the Rigas Family. The involvement ranges from engaging in joint business transactions, such as co-borrowing
arrangements, to managing cable system operations, participating in centralized cash management and accounting functions,
advancing funds, purchasing goods or services and engaging in numerous other formal and informal transactions or
arrangements, The Rigas Family Entities include the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities as well as Other Rigas Entities with varying
degrees of involvement with the Company. The Company does not hold equity interests in any of the Rigas Family Entitics.
Following is a discussian of the Company's significant accounting policies related to transactions with the Rigas Family and
Rigas Family Entities. As discussed in Notes 5 and 6, effoctive January 1, 2004, the Company began consolidating the Rigas
Co-Borrowing Entities. On April 25, 2005, Adelphia and the Rigas Family entered into an agreement to settle Adelphia's lawsnit
against the Rigas Family. For additional information, see Note 17.

Until mid-2002, the Company disbursed significant amounts of money directly to or on behalf of the Rigas Family
Entities. The Company continues to fund the cash needs for the payment of interest on co-borrowing debt for the Rigas
Co-Borrowing Entities. Generally, amounts funded to or on behalf of the Rigas Family Entities were recorded by the Company
as advances to those entities and are included as amounts due from the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities. The amounts
due from the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities also include interest expected to be reimbursed by the Rigas
Co-Borrowing Entities (considered probable of collection) on the portion of the co-borrowing debt attributable to those entities.
Interest was deferred or otherwise not charged to the Rigas Family or the Rigas Family Entities if the amounts were not
considered probable of collection or writien agreements supporting such charges could not be located. No accounting
recognition is given in the Company's financial statements for the amounts deferred.

Amounts due from the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities is presented as a reduction of stockholders' equity as: (i)
approximately half of the advances were used by those entitics 1o acquire Adelphia securities; (ii) these advances occurred
frequently; (iii) there were no definitive debt instruments that specified repayment terms; and (iv) there was no demonstrated
repayment history.

Where a contractual agreement or similar arrangement exists for management services, the fees charged are based on
the contractually specified terms. In the absence of such agreements, the fees charged by the Company to the Managed Cable
Entities are based on the actual costs incurred by the Company. Amounts charged subsequent to January 1, 2004 have been
eliminated in consolidation. All other transactions prior to January 1, 2004 betwcen the
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Company and the Rigas Family Entities have been reflected in the Company's consolidated financial statements based on the
actual cost of the related goods or services.

The Company followed the principles outlined in SFAS No. 114, Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a
Loan{"SFAS No. 114"), and SFAS No. 118, Accounting by Creditors for Impairments of a Loan—Income Recognition and
Disclosures ("SFAS No. 118"), to establish its policies related to both the recognition of interest due from the Rigas Family
Entities and to determine impairment of advances to the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities. As previously mentioned,
interest attributed to a particular Rigas Family Entity is recognized as amounts due ffom the Rigas Family and Rigas Family
Entities in the Company's consolidated financial statements as long as none of the underlying receivable balance due from that
entity is impaired. Once all or a portion of the receivable balance due from a Rigas Family Entity is impaired, the reimbursement
of intercst is no longer recognized on any of the debt attributable to that Rigas Family Entity because collection is not probable.

The Company evaluated impairment of amounts due from the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities at each balance
sheet date and whenever other facts and circumstances indicated the carrying value may have been impaired, on an
entity-by-entity basis, which considers the legal structure of each entity to which advances were made. The Company was
unable to evaluate impairment based on the present value of expected future cash flows from repayment because the advances
generally do not have supporting loan documents, interest rates, repayment terms or history of repayment. The Company
considered such advances as collateral-backed loans and measured the expected repayments based on the estimated fair value of
the underlying assets of each respective entity at the balance sheet dates. The evaluation is based on an orderly liquidation of the
underlying assets and does not apply current changes in circumnstances to prior periods. For example, the most significant
impairment recognition occurred in June 2002 when the Debtors filed for bankruptcy protection due to the dramatic cffect that
the filing had on the value of the underlying assets available for repayment of the advances. No increases in underlying asset
values were recognized following bankruptcy. Any amounts ultimately recovered in excess of recorded amounts will be
recognized as income at the time of recovery.

Management believes that the amounts charged to the Rigas Family Entities and reflected in the accompanying
consolidated staternents of operations with respect to management fees and interest cxpense are reasonable.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from video and HSI service is recognized as services are provided. Credit risk is managed by disconnecting
services to customers whose accounts are delinquent for a specified number of days. Consistent with SFAS No. 51, installation
revenue obtained from the connection of subscribers to the cable system is recognized in the period installation services are
provided to the extent of related dircct selling costs. Any remaining amount is deferred and recognized over the estimated
average period that customers are expected to remain connected to the cable system. Installation revenue was less than related
direct selling costs for all periods presented. The Company classifies fees collected from cable subscribers for reimbursement of
fees paid to local franchise authorities as a component of service revenue because the Company is the primary obligor to the
local franchise authority. Revenue from advertising sales associated with the Company's media serviccs business is recognized
as the advertising is aired. Certain fees and commissions related to advertising sales are recognized as costs and expenses in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Programming Launch Fees and Incentives

From time to time, the Company enters into binding agreements with programming networks whercby the Company is
to receive cash, warrants to purchase common stock or other considcration in exchange for launch, channel placement or other
considerations with respect to the carriage of programming services on the Company's cable systemns. Amounts received or to be
received under such arrangements are recorded as deferred revenue and amortized, generally on a straight-line basis, over the
contract term, provided that it is probable that the Company will satisfy the carriage obligations and that the amounts to be
received are reasonably estimable. Where it is not probable that the Company will satisfy the carriage obligations, or where the
amounts to be received are not estimable, recognition is deferred until the specific carriage obligations arc met and the
consideration to be received is reasonably estimable. The amounts recognized under these arrangements generally are reflected
as reductions of costs and expenses. However, amounts recognized with respect to payments received from shopping and other
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programming networks for which the Company does not pay license fees and consideration received in connection with
interactive services, are reflected as revenue. At the time that the Company's launch, carriage or other obligations are terminated,
any remaining deferred revenue associated with such terminated obligations is recognized and included in other expense, net in
the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. The Company’s advertising expense was $96,842,000, $88,379,000 and
$61,026,000 during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company applies the intrinsic value-based method of accounting prescribed by Accounting Principles Board
{"APB") Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued 10 Employees ("APB Opinion No. 25"), and related interpretations to
account for the Company's fixed plan stock options. Under this method, compensation expense for stock options or awards that
are fixed is required to be recognized over the vesting period only if the current market price of the underlying stock exceeds the
exercise price on the date of grant. SFAS No. 123, dccounting for Stock-Based Compensation ("SFAS No. 123"), established
accounting for stock-based employee compensation plans. As allowed by SFAS No. 123, the Company has elected to continue
to apply the intrinsic value-based method of accounting prescribed by APB Opinion No. 23, and has adopted the disclosure
requirements of SFAS No. 123, as amended by SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—TIransition and
Disclosure—an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 123 and by SFAS No. 123-R, Skare-Based Payment ("SFAS No. 123-R").
The foilowing table illustrates the effects on net loss and loss per common share as if the Company had applied the fair value
rccognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to stock-based employee compensation (amounts in thousands, except per share
amounts):

Year Ended December 31
2004 2003 2002
Net 1088, a8 1EPOIted.....ccvoveiuirreir ittt s $ (1,910,873) § (832,612) § (7,188,828)
Deduct compensation expense determined under fair value method, net of
$0 taxes for all YEars oo v v vecereeerc et (167) (L,077) (1,079
Pro forma NELLOSS..ouuveerveerirnerererieeei s s s e s $ (1,911.040) $ (833.689) $ (7.189,907)
Loss per share:
Basic and diluted—as reported ..o oot e 3(7.56) $3.31) $(28.87)
Basic and diluted—pro forma ........ccccocccivrnimnncn i $(7.56) $(3.31) $(28.88)

The grant-date fair values underlying the foregoing calculations are based on the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.
Adclphia has not granted stock options since 2001. With respect to stock options granted by Adelphia in 2001, the key
assumptions used in the model for purpose of these calculations were as follows:

2001
RISK-TTEE IMECTCSE TALE ......everesrienrevieieveeeie e st et ersebensentsae e eas sreese e seesap e s b e s ebas R s oAb s b e R T e b bas 4 e ebsvaneR e s st em s eseeresee e assesceses 4.17%
VOLALIEY . ... et evveeteaeareemris s s ebeseerm s s con e b s sb e e e eh s e s b e s s eR s b e s e s b e s en s or keSS S b e b Rs 4 ebr s e S a R b s st 54.8%
Expected life (in years) ..... - 3.77
DHVIAENA YIBIA......eee ettt e s s e sh e b a R ph e e s e et e e b 0%

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for its income taxes using the asset and liability method. Under the asset and liability method,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. In addition, deferred tax
assets are also recorded with respect to net operating loss and other tax attribute carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or
settled. Valuation allowances are
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established when realization of the benefit of deferred tax assets is not deemed to be more likely than not. The effect on deferred
tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share ("EPS")

Basic EPS is measured as the eamnings or loss attributable to common stockholders divided by the weighted average
outstanding common shares for the period. Net earnings (loss) is reduced (increased) by preferred stock dividends and accretion
and the value of beneficial conversion features of preferred stock to arrive at eamnings (Joss) attributable to common
stockholders. Diluted EPS is similar to basic EPS but presents the dilutive effect on a per share basis of potential common shares
(e.g. convertible securities, options, etc.) as if they had been converted at the beginning of the periods presented, or at original
issuance date, if latcr. Potential dilutive common shares that have an anti-dilutive effect (e.g., those that increase income per
share or decrease loss per share) are excluded from diluted EPS.

Adelphia has Class A Common Stock and Convertible Class B common stock, par value $0.01 per share ("Class B
Common Stock”, and together with the Class A Common Stock, the "Adelphia Common Stock™).

Potential common shares were not included in the computation of diluted EPS because their inclusion would be
anti-dilutive. At December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, the number of potential common shares was 87,072,964, 87,082,474 and
87,464,763, respectively. Such potential common shares consist of stock options to acquire shares of Class A Common Stock,
and preferred securities and debt instruments that are convertible into shares of Class A Common Stock. The foregoing potential
common share amounts do not take into account the assumed number of shares that might be repurchased by the Company upon
the exercise of stock options,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States ("GAAP") requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affcct the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenue and expenses. Significant estimates are involved in the determination of: (i) asset impairments; (ii) the
recorded provisions for contingent liabilities; (iii) the carrying amounts of liabilities subject to compromise; (iv) estimated useful
lives of tangible and intangible assets; (v) internal costs capitalized in connection with construction and installation activilies;
{vi) the recorded amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities; (vii) the allowances provided for uncollectible amounts with
respect to the amounts due from the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities and accounts receivable; (viii) the allocation of the
purchase price in business combinations; and (ix) the fair value of derivative financial instruments. Actual amounts, particularly
with respect to matters impacted by proceedings under Chapter 11, could vary significantly from such estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period balances to conform to the current presentation.

Note 4: Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, Accounting Changes and Ervor Corrections—a replacement of APB
Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3, ("SFAS No. 154"}, which provides guidance on the accounting for and reporting of
accounting changes and error corrections. In general, in the absence of explicit transition requirements for new pronouncements,
SFAS No. 154 requires retrospective application of the effects of changes in accounting principle to prior periods’ financial
statements, unless it is impracticable to determine the effects of the change. The provisions of SFAS No. 154 are effective for
accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. The adoption of SFAS
No. 154 is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's consolidated results of operations or financial position.

In March 2005, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retivement
Obligations, an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143 ("FIN 47"), which addresses the financial accounting and reporting

obligations associated with the conditional retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs. FIN
47 requires that, where there is an unconditional obligation to perform asset retirement
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activity even thongh there is uncertainty as to the timing and/or the method of settlement may be conditional on a future event,
companies must recognize a liability for the fair value of the conditional asset retirement if the fair value of the liability can be
reasonably estimated. The requirements of FIN 47 are effective for fiscal periods ending after December 15, 2005. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of FIN 47.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123-R. Generally, SFAS No. 123-R requires the Company to recognize
the grant-date fair value of stock options as compensation expense in its consolidated statements of operations at the date the
options arc issued to cmployees. SFAS No. 123-R applies to all stock options and other share-based payments granted after
December 31, 2005 and to previously granted awards that are either unvested as of the adoption date or are modified afier the
adoption date. The Company is required to adopt SFAS No. 123-R in the first quarter of 2006.

The Company has not granted any stock options since the Petition Date and does not anticipate granting any new
options. In addition, all options currently outstanding will be fully vested prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123-R. Accordingly,
at this time, the adoption of SFAS No. 123-R will not have an impact on the Company's consolidated results of operations.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, Exchanges of Nonmonetary Asseis—an amendment of APB
Opinion No. 29, ("SFAS No. 153"). In general, SFAS No. 153 requires that exchanges of nonmonetary assets should be
measured based on the fair value of the assets exchanged, unless the entity's future cash flows are expected to change
significantly as a result of the exchange. The provisions of SFAS No. 153 are effective for nonmonetary asset exchanges
occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005, and are to be applied prospectively. The adoption of SFAS No. 153 is
not expected to have a material impact on the Company's consolidated results of operations or financial position.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, Inventory Cosis—an amendment of ARB No. 43, ("SFAS No.
[51™). In general, SFAS No. 151 requires that inventory costs such as idle facility expense, freight, handling costs and spoilage
be recognized as current period charges regardless of whether they meet the "abnormal” criterion of Accounting Research
Bulletin No. 43, Inventory Pricing. The provisions of SFAS No. 151 are effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2005, and are to be applied prospectively The adoption of SFAS No. 151 is not expected to have a
material impact on the Company's consolidated results of operations or financial position.

In March 2004, the EITF reached a consensus on Issue No. 03-6, Participating Securities and the Two-Class Method
under FASB Statement No. 128 ("EITF No. 03-6"), which addresses the calculation and disclosure of earnings per share for
companies with participating convertible securities or multiple classes of common stock. EITF No. 03-6 is effective for fiscal
periods beginning after March 31, 2004, The adoption of EITF No. 03-6 did not have an impact on the Company's calculation or
disclosure of earnings per share.

31

F-31



ADELPHIA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Debtors-In-Possession)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—Continued

Note 5: Variable Interest Entities

FIN 46-R requires variable interest entities, as defined by FIN 46-R, to be consolidated by the primary beneficiary if
certain criteria are met. The provisions of FIN 46-R must be applied to variable interest entities that are not special purpose
entities, as defined in FIN 46-R, no later than the end of the first interim period or annual reporting date ending after March 15,
2004, and variable intcrest entities that are special purpose entities no later than the first interim or annual reporting date ending
after December 15, 2003. None of the Company's variable interest entities are special purpose entities.

The Company has concluded that the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities, which include the Managed Cable Entities,
represent variable interest entities for which the Company is the primary beneficiary, as contemplated by FIN 46-R. The Rigas
Co-Borrowing Entities do business under the Adelphia name, are managed by the Company and rely on the Company in order to
provide services to their custorners. In addition, the Company will absorb the majority of the expected losses of the Rigas
Co-Borrowing Entities. Accordingly, effective January 1, 2004, the Company began consolidating the Rigas Co-Borrowing
Entities on a prospective basis and, as such, has not restated previously issued financial statements. The assets and liabilities of
the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities are included in the Company's consolidated financial statements at the Rigas Co-Borrowing
Entities' historical cost because these entities first became variable interest entities and Adelphia became the primary beneficiary
when Adelphia and these entities were under the common control of the Rigas Family. As a result of the adoption of FIN 46-R,
the Company recorded a $588,782,000 charge as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle as of January 1, 2004.
The Company is reporting the operating results of the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities in the "cable” segment. See Note 16 for
further discussion of the Company's business segments.

As discussed in Note 17, on April 25, 2005, the Company entered into an agreement with the U.S. Attomey. Adelphia
also consented to the entry of a final judgment in the July 24, 2002 SEC civil enforcement action (the "SEC Civil Action”)
thereby resolving the SEC's claims against Adelphia. Concurrently, Adelphia and the Rigas Family entered into an agreement to
settle Adelphia's lawsuit against the Rigas Family, and the Rigas Family entered into an agreement with the U.S. Attomey.
These agreements are collectively referred to as the "Government Settlement Agreements.”

Certain subsidiaries of Adelphia and the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entitics arc jointly and severally liable for all amounts
borrowed pursuant to certain Co-Borrowing Facilities (see Notes 6 and 11 for additional information). Prior to the consolidation
of the Rigas Co- Borrowing Entities, the Company reflected the full amounts outstanding under such Co-Borrowing Facilities as
debt in the balance sheet of the Company, without regard to the atiribution of such co-borrowings between the Company and the
Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities, because of the joint and several liability under these Co-Borrowing Facilities.

Tn addition to the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities, the Rigas Family owned, prior to forfeiture to the United States on June
8, 2005, at least 16 additional entities that could be considered variable interest entities under FIN 46-R. None of these Other
Rigas Entities is engaged in the cable business or is a co-borrower under the Company's credit agreements. Certain of these
Other Rigas Entities are holding companies that acquired debt and equity securities of the Company and one of the Company's
subsidiaries. The business activities of certain other of the Other Rigas Entities are not known. The Company has made an
exhaustive effort to obtain the information necessary to determine whether these Other Rigas Entities are variablc interest
entities and, if so, whether the Company is the primary beneficiary. The Company has requested, but has not been provided,
financial statements of the Other Rigas Entities. Responses to the Company's request indicate that the Other Rigas Entities are
unable to provide the necessary financial information to the Company. Accordingly, the Company has not applied the provisions
of FIN 46-R to the Other Rigas Entities because the Company does not have sufficient financial information to perform the
required evaluations. The most significant assets believed to be owned by the Other Rigas Entities consist of Adelphia securities
that were purchased from the Company. The most significant liabilities of the Other Rigas Entities of which the Company is
aware are the amounts owed to the Company with respect to the purchase of such Adelphia securities and other transactions, as
described in greater detail in Note 6. The Company believes that its maximum exposure to future loss in its statement of
operations as a result of its involvement with the Other Rigas Entities is equal to the net carrying value of its advances to the
Other Rigas Entities, or approximately $28,743,000 at December 31, 2004. The net carrying value represents the application of
the market price to the Adelphia securities held by such entities and does not give effect to the terms of the Plan.
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Pursuant to the Forfeiture Order, all right, title and interest of the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities in the Rigas
Co- Borrowing Entities (other than Coudersport and Bucktail), certain specified real estate and any securities of the Company
were forfeited to the United States on Junc 8, 2005 and such assets and securities are expected to be conveyed (subject to
completion of forfeiture proceedings before a federal judge to determine if there are any superior claims) to the Company
pursuant to the Non-Prosecution Agreement. See Note 17 for additional information.

The consolidation of the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities resulted in the following impact to the Company’s consolidated
balance sheet as of January 1, 2004 (amounts in thousands):

Assets:
OTET CUITENE ASSELS. c1veeunerenrieeeeveesreereeresaesber recensesassnsrerssessrersmsanssesmeseuessreesaaeanssterbs e saneasneearseasaeansnesnsnesnann $ 10,157
Property and equipment, net 144,951
INEAnZIbIE SSEES, MEE ... ..ot e e s 509,761
Other noncurrent assets. 7,140
Total assets........ccveen. $ 672,009
Liabilities(d):
Amounts due to the Rigas Family and Other Rigas Entities from Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities(a)................. $ 460,256
Other cUITEnt HADIITIES. . e cvive it irieere e et et et ers e ab e bt s e s 21,158
Other noncurrent liabilities 7,771
Stockholders' Deficit(d):
ACCUMUIALED GEFICE .. cveeeveetiveere et eiree e e ereeer st cenee s e et st ot be s b b e b b s e e s s b e s saasbe s snssacea e s b e sassan e b bp s et e s (588,782)
Amounts due to the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities from the Rigas Family and Other Rigas Entities(b)... —
Amounts due to Adelphia from the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities(C).....ecveereverierrimnnnncniie s 771,606
Total liabilities and StoCKholAers' AefICit.........coveeevivererireierrririrereersreree e creserccemimr e e srs s s sammeeesbesarsnnesensnsanns $ 672,009
(a) As a result of the January 1, 2004 consolidation of the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities, the Company has reflected a

$460,256,000 payab]e from the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities to the Rigas Family and Other Rigas Entities as a current liability
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The Company has determined that this liability to certain Other Rigas Entities
has no legal right of set-off against amounts due to the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities from the Rigas Family and Other Rigas
Entitics. In goneral, amounts due to the Rigas Family and Other Rigas Entities from the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities are
unsecured, have no maturity date, have no specific repayment terms and have no specific terms for accrual of interest. No
interest has been accrued with respect to this liability. As a result of the Government Settlement Agreements, this liability will
not be paid. Settlement of this liability will be recognized by the Company when these amounts are settled or the underlying
securities are transferred to the Company.

(b) Represents $416,500,000 for amounts due to the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities from the Rigas Family and Other Rigas
Entities less an allowance for uncollectible amounts of $416,500,000. See Note 6 for additional information.

(c) Represents the elimination due to consolidation of amounts due to Adelphia from the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities of
$929,431,000 less an allowance for uncollectible amounts of $157,825,000.

@ Liabilities and stockholders' deficit exclude co-borrowing indebtedness attributable to the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities
of $2,846,156,000 and the related receivable as all of the co-borrowing indebtedness attributable to the Rigas Co- -Borrowing
Entities is already reflected in the Company's accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
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The consolidation of the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities resulted in the following impact to the Company's consolidatcd
statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2004 (amounts in thousands):

REVEIIUC .. e e tereeeeurreseieeeseeeeeeasessaaesssseesssresassaeeiasesanrmeesosasbesbobans bt bsn et sarasiassaseosbbsonsantan sbeanr b sae st saneanennenrras $ 194,089
Costs and expenses:
Direct operating and PrOZIAMININEG. ._........ccccirroiriierstss et ettt es e et seeesss s ebsr e e nsnns et eaces s emsnnens 114,846
Selling, general and administrative:
TRITA PAIEY .. cvveveerrrsereererirssensesereeeeresss se s saesss s easebesasmsrbnar s ve st sr e s ba e sas s rs e b ot seeae s st e et s st b b sn AR s 12,206
Investigation and re-audit related fees......c..ovrviviiiiirii i e 17,233
DDEPTECHALION .. .vvvveeesemcreraneeerentet o ses s e eseas sosbersassa e s s ee s e R e s e Rs R e r seb s ea b eE SR s ot e b e s e 38,533
ATTIOTHZAtON ..v.vveeveesserveeeiseesssiaestessosseeseesaesseereeas e se et easeen e s e eeeemeohsssses sae s s ereeasea s s ebsaaaassess e saessenas saessnane 7,716
Impairment of long-lived assets ... 5,598
TOtal COSLS AN EXPENSES ... rveneeerereeeircecirteiiieieiensse et sre s ar e s sasmema et e e se s s aassa s b ab e e r st snasesennensnnins 196,132
OPEIANG JOSS. ...t e ee et erera et s e s b e s R e (2,043)
OUNET ICOIMIC. «. . veeeeeeereaseraeenseneesisssesssas s sansasasssesaeeassserarbaeteeses e saabast e sesssmreeassasba s b en s srRnrnrvesabsanbasaessasrrnans 1,091
INICOMIE 1AX EXPEISE. vsvrsesrreseseererserenssnssoscorsasacssasesssasar s sn e e ba s b ea s ss s senes e s s st s e e s s SR E RS SR sn b b b 00 (85)
Loss before cumulative effects of accounting Changes. .....ocovvviriciin i e (1,037)
Cumulative effects of accounting changes..... O TSRO UUOR U OO (588,782)
INEEOSS(R) crevvvvsveverarevereserrsessss someoesessssemens sos e s seb bt s s eaabe e s s s a b b R na b eh A n e s e b 4 b b a e Stk e $ (589,819)

(a) Net loss excludes amounts related to co-borrowing interest expense as the expense is reflected in the Company's
consolidated financial statements.

In addition to the Rigas Family Entities, the Company performed an evaluation under FIN 46-R of other entities in
which the Company has a financial interest. The Company concluded that no further adjusiments to its consolidated financial
statements were required as a result of these evaluations and the adoption of FIN 46-R.

Note 6: Transactions with the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities

The Company has had significant involvement, directly or indirectly, with the Rigas Family and numerous legal
entities owned by the Rigas Family. The involvement ranges from engaging in joint business transactions, such as co-borrowing
arrangements, to managing cable system operations, participating in centralized cash management ("CMS") and accounting
functions, advancing funds, purchasing goods or services and engaging in numerous other formal and informal transactions or
arrangements. At December 31, 2004, the Company did not hold cquity interests in any of the Rigas Family Entities. Pursuant to
the Forfeiture Order, all right, title and interest of the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities in the Rigas Co-Borrowing
Entities (other than Condersport and Bucktail), certain specified real estate and any securities of the Company were forfeited to
the United States on June 8, 2005, and such assets and securities are expected to be conveyed (subject Lo the completion of
forfeiture proceedings before a federal judge to determine if there are any superior claims) to the Company pursuant to the
Non-Prosecution Agreement.
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The following table shows the amounts due from the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities net of the allowance for
uncollectible amounts and amounts due from the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities prior to the 2004 consolidation of the Rigas

Co-Borrowing Entities under FIN 46-R, as described in Note 5 (amounts in thousands):

December 31, December 31,

2004 2003

Amounts due from the Rigas Family and Other Rigas Entities..............c..cooee.. $ 2,630,770 $ 2,214,270
Arsaunits due from Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities™ ......cocoooceevveieieiieinssriieeeene — 929,431
Amounts due before allowance for uncollectible amounts..... 2,630,770 3,143,701

Aliowance for uncollectible amMOURtS .....c.ccvveceveeiiree e e (2,602,027} {2,343.352)

Agiounts due from the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities, net ...................... $§ 28743 $§ 800349
* On January 1, 2004, the Company began consolidating the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities in accordance with FIN 46-R.

As such, amounts due from the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities have been eliminated.

In connection with the Government Settlement Agreements, amounts owed between Adelphia (including the forfeited
Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities which are expected to be conveyed to Adelphia) and the Rigas Family and Other Rigas Entities
wiil not be collected or paid. Settlement of the $28,743,000 included in the table above, as well as the $460,256,000 due from
the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities to the Rigas Family and Other Rigas Entities as discussed in Note 5, will be recognized by the

Corapany when these amounts are settled or the underlying sccurities are transferred to the Company.
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Changes in the amounts due from the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities are presented below in total and
separately for amounts due from the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities and the Rigas Family and Other Rigas Entities for the
indicated periods (amounts in thousands):

Amounts due from:
The Rigas Total amounts

Rigas Family and due before
Co-Borraowing Other Rigas deducting
Entitics Entities allowance
Balance at January 1, 2002...........ccocovrrireiierscinneenreenesienserenses e senees $ 972,025 $ 1,636,416 $  2,608441
Funding by the Company for operations and other activities............... 112,650 214,931 327,581
Deposits in the Company's CMS for operations and other actxvmes (174,258) (27,489) (201,747)
Deposits in the Company's CMS for interest on the Adelphia debt
securities held by the Rigas Family and the Other Rigas Entities...... — (11,521) (11,521)
Management fees and other costs charged by the Company to the
Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities .........voveiiieionnecrcen e iecencnnnenenns 17,494 — 17,494
Co-Borrowing interest charged to Rigas Family Entities .................... 10,556 — 10,556
Purchase of Adelphia securities by Rigas Family Entities............c...... — 393,569 393,569
Sale of land owned by Rigas Family Entities.......c..cccvoerioecenieciennn — (465) (465)
Net revenuc earned from cooperative advertising arrangement with
INFHLP ..ottt snce et re e sir e e s smnc e e srena srmeeen — 1,151 1,151
Programming rights charges from NFHLP .... — (9,961) (9,961)
Production reimbursements from NFHLP...............cocooniiiininncies — 406 406
Net change in liabilities incurred under Company contracts for
expenses of the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities..........coveevveercvcerennnene 20,928 — 20,928
Other activity, net .......oocoveirireiicieecncnee (3.305) 18,003 14,698
Balance at December 31, 2002 .....cccoiivieviiriiiieee e, 956,090 2,215,040 3,171,130
Funding by the Company for operations and other activities............... 96,086 7 96,093
Deposits in the Company's CMS for operations and other activities ... (168,290) (3) (168,293)
Management fees and other costs charged by the Company to the
Rigas Co-Borrowing ENtitics .....ccocveevervrrieiinienesiesecrererereesiesens 22,217 — 22,217
Amounts to fund legal defense of the Rigas Family..........c.cocveiiinns 10,767 — 10,767
Net change in liabilities incurred under Company contracts for
expenses of the Rigas Co-Borrowing Enfities..........cocoveconvncnrenens 3,018 — 3,018
Other activity, net 9,543 {d74) 8,769
Balance at December 31, 2003 ...oevvieieiciiee e enr e e 929,431 2,214,270 3,143,701
Consolidation of amounts due to the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities
from the Rigas Family and Other Rigas Entities............cccoceeevnenne. — 416,500 416,500
Amounts due from Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities eliminated due to
CONSOHAALION. ... vttt (929431} — {929.431)
Balance at December 31, 2004 ......cccoovioiiiiiiine e e 3 — $ 2.630.770 $ 2,630.770

The Company has separately assessed the collectibility of the amounts due from the Rigas Family and each of the
Other Rigas Entities at the end of each reporting period. Prior to the Petition Date, the Company considered these amounts to be
collateral-backed loans under SFAS No. 114 and SFAS No. 118. The Company adjusted the allowance for uncollectible
amounts based on increases or decreases in the estimated values of the underlying net assets of the Rigas Family and each of the
Other Rigas Entities available for repayment of amounts advanced. The Company's assessment of collectibility was based on an
orderly sale of the Rigas Family's and Other Rigas Entities’ underlying assets and did not apply current changes in circumstances
to prior periods. The most significant impairment recognition occurred in June 2002 when the Debtors filed for bankruptcy
protection due to the dramatic
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effect that the filing had on the value of the underlying assets available for repayment of the advances. Subsequent to the Petition
Date, the Company ceased the recognition of increases in the values of the underlying assets of the Rigas Family and Other
Rigas Entities. Once an allowance had been established against all or part of the amount owed to the Company by a Rigas
Family Entity, the Company adopted the cost recovery method for purposes of recognizing co-borrowing interest. Under this
method, the full amount of interest is deferred until such time as the underlying principal is fully recovered. No aceounting
recognition is given in the Company's financial statements for the amounts deferred.

Changes in the allowance for uncollectible amounts due from the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities and the Rigas Family
and Other Rigas Entities are presented below (amounts in thousands):

Allowance for uncollectible
amounts due from:

Total
The Rigas allowance
Rigas Co- Family and for
Bourrowing Other Rigas uncollectible
Entities Entities amounts
Balance at January 1, 2002................ $ (100,375) $ (475,239) $ (575,614)
Provision for uncollectible amounts . (51,953) (1,710.288) (1.762,241)
Balance at December 31, 2002 .............. (152,328) (2,185,527) (2,337,855)
Provision for uncollectible amounts ... (5.497) — (5.497)
Balance at December 31, 2003 ...v.oeiciiiieirirecie s ccere e e anr e (157,825) (2,185,527) (2,343,352)
Elimination of the allowance for amounts due from Rigas
Co-Borrowing Entities due to consolidation.............. 157,825 — 157,825
Consolidation of the allowance for amounts due to the Rxgas
Co-Borrowing Entities from the Rigas Family and Other Rigas
EIHIES ..ottt e e e srtneee e n e sassvesomenssrnassabs e snanbeons — (416,500) {416.500)
Balance at December 31, 2004 ...ooveeovveeivreeeceierecererrneerernssensesrenassenns 3 —  $ (2.602,027) $ (2,602,027)

Amounts due from the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities

As a result of the consolidation of the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities, the $929,431,000 receivable from the Rigas
Co-Borrowing Entities at December 31, 2003 and the related $157,825,000 allowance for uncollectible amounts were eliminated
from the Company's consolidated balancce sheet as of January 1, 2004,

Amounts due from the Rigas Family and Other Rigas Entities

Because the Company and the Rigas Family and Other Rigas Entities were under common control during the periods in
which the amounts due from the Rigas Family and Other Rigas Entities were accumulated, the receivable balance, net of the
allowance for uncollectible amounts, has been reported as an addition to stockholders' deficit in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements. In general, amounts due from the Rigas Family and Other Rigas Entities are unsecured and have no
maturity date and no specified terms for the accrual of interest.

As aresult of the January 1, 2004 consolidation of the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities, the amounts due from the Rigas
Family and Other Rigas Entities include $416,500,000 due to the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities from the Rigas Family and Other
Rigas Entities, offsct by an allowance for uncollectible amounts of $416,500,000, which was established prior to January 1,
2004. These amounts do not include $460,256,000 that the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities owe to the Rigas Family and Other
Rigas Entities for which the Company has determined that there is no legal right of set-off against amounts due to certain other
Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities from the Rigas Family and Other Rigas Entities. As a result of the Government Settlement
Agreements, neither the amounts receivable nor the amounts payable will be collected or paid.
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Impact of Transactions with the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities on Consolidated Statements of Operations

Transactions occurring on or after January 1, 2004 between the Company and the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities are
eliminated in consolidation. The effects of various transactions between the Company and the Rigas Family and Rigas Family
Entities on certain line items included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations are surnmarized below for the
indicated 2003 and 2002 periods (amounts in thousands):

Year ended December 31,

2003 2002
Revenue:
Net revenue from cooperative advertising arrangement with NFHLP(@).........coooooviiieeiviiercrens 3 — § 1151
Expenses:
Direct operating and programming:
Programming rights and other expenses paid to NFHLP(a) ...................................................... b3 — $§ 996l
Production reimbursements from NFHLP(a)........... . . — (406)
Total included in direct operating and Programming .........ccoceeevee e sr e s i — $ 9,555

Selling, general and administrative:
Management fees and other costs charged by the Company to the Managed Cable Entities(b)...  $ (22,217) § (17,494)
Management fees and other costs charged by the Rigas Family and Other Rigas Entities to the

COMPANYIC) 1 1rvverererarerireierenriesibistasare st ere s eas b e s e s e b a e b as b es s e eas s sos ab s ag e s haResaas b se e e see s 975 2,321
Total included in selling, general and administrative .......c.ccovveciiiic i $ (21.242) $ (15.173)
Interest expense on Adelphia debt securities held by Other Rigas Entities ..........ocoovviviovieinencn. 3 — 8 (10,343)

(a) Amounts Charged to the Company from NFHLP. During 2002, Niagara Frontier Hockey, L.P., a Delaware limited
partnership owned by the Rigas Family ("NFHLP"), charged the Company for broadcast rights to the Buffalo Sabres hockey
games and for luxury suites, tickets, advertising and other entertainment costs, Also during 2002, the Company received net
revenue and reimbursements for production costs from NFHLP related to a cooperative advertising arrangement between the
Company and NFHLP. The amounts charged to and received by the Company pursuant to these arrangements are set forth in the
foregoing table summarizing the effects of transactions with the Rigas Family Entities in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations.

During 2002, the Company recorded an increase to the allowance against its advances to NFHLP of $68,796,000. Such
increase reflects amounts required to adjust the carrying value to net realizable value. The 2002 increase includes a $38,077,000
charge related to the Company’s decision to discontinue funding and to seek a buyer for NFHLP and 2 $30,719,000 charge
related to the Company's conclusion, afier conducting negotiations with several potential buyers, that it would not recover any of
its advances to NFHLP. The Company received no proceeds in connection with the closing of the sale of NFHLP in April 2003.

The Company charged management fees and interest to NFHLP during 2002. Due to the fact that collectibility was not
assured, the Company did not recognize any income with respect to such management fees and interest, The Company used
facilities owned by NFHLP from 1999 through the second quarter of 2003. No rent was charged to the Company for the use of
such facilities. The Company rencvated such facilities in 2000 at a cost of $849,000. The book value of such renovation costs
was written-off by the Company in 2003 when the property was vacated. In 2000, the Company guaranteed a third party loan to
NFEHLP with an aggregate principal amount of $27,637,000, which guarantee was collateralized by letters of credit. The
Company was relieved of this contingent obligation as a result of the April 2003 sale of NFHLP.

38

F-38



ADELPHIA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Debtors-In-Possession)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—Continued

During the first quarter of 2002, NFHLP and certain of its subsidiaries filed voluntary petitions to reorganize under
Chapter 11, and during the fourth quarter of 2003, NFHLP and certain of its subsidiaries asserted certain claims against the
Company. For additional information, see Note 17.

®) Management Fees and Other Costs Charged by the Company to the Managed Cable Entities. The Company
provides management and administrative services, under written and unwritten enforceable agreements, to the Managed Cable
Entities.

In circumstances where a written management agreement exists, 2 management fee is charged to the Managed Cable
Entity in accordance with the written agreement. Such management agreements generally provide for a management fee based
on a percentage of revenue plus reimbursements for expenses incurred by the Company on behalf of the Managed Cable
Entities. Under unwritien agreements, the Company charges the Managed Cable Entities their share of costs incurred by the
Company, as well as reimbursable expenses. Such charges are generally based upen the Managed Cable Entities' share of
revenue or subscribers, as appropriate. The management fees actually paid by the Managed Cable Entities are generally limited
by the terms of the applicable Co-Borrowing Facility. The amounts charged to the Managed Cable Entities pursuant to these
arrangements are included in management fees and other charges to the Managed Cable Entities in the foregoing table and have
been reflected as a reduction of selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002. Effective January 1, 2004, these fees and cost allocations have
been climinated upon consolidation of the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities.

©) Management Fees and Other Costs Charged by the Rigas Family and Other Rigas Eniilies lo the Company.
The Rigas Family and Other Rigas Entities provided services to the Company in exchange for consideration that may or may not
have been equal to the fair value of such goods and services, as summarized in the following table (amounts in thousands):

Year Ended

December 31,
2003 2002

Services provided to the Company by the Rigas Family and Other Rigas Entities:
Management SEFVICES(1)..ooc.o.oii ittt e $975 $1,300
Facility management and maienance ServiceS(2) .. .o uriiiiioriiirriie e et — 860
Rent paid to the Rigas Family and Other Rigas Entitics(3)...... “w  — 74
10111 L C: ) OO OO PSP PO r PSSP TSP POT NGO TSP P PSP PSSR . — 87
Total charges for services provided by the Rigas Family and Other Rigas Entities...........ooooiiiiiiinns 3975 $2.321

Capital goods acquired from Other Rigas Entities

Furniture, fixtures and related design and installation SErviCes(5)........cocvmiiiriirrrenncni e $— 82,167
Capital IMProvemeEnts(2) .. ...c.comeeerimmeeersiins e . = 70
Total charges for capital goods acquired from Other Rigas Entities $— $2,237

) Charges for services arose from Adelphia's 99.5% limited partnership interest in Praxis Capital Ventures, L.P.
("Praxis"), a consolidated subsidiary of Adelphia. Praxis was primarily engaged in making private equity investments in the
telecommunications market. Adelphia committed to provide $65,000,000 of capital to Praxis, of which $8,500,000 was invested
by Praxis during 2002 and 2001. The Rigas Family owns membership intcrests in both the Praxis general partner and the
company that manages Praxis. The Praxis management company charged a management fee to Adelphia at an annual rate equal
to 2% of the capital committed by Adelphia. Adelphia recorded an expense for management fees of $975,000 and $1,300,000
for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. During 2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company
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recorded reserves of $800,000, $300,000 and $148,000 respectively, against the carrying value of certain Praxis investments.

By order dated October 20, 2003, the Debtors rejected the Praxis partnership agreement under applicable bankruptcy law.
Rejection may give rise to pre-bankruptcy unsecured damage claims that are included in liabilities subject to compromise at the
amounts expected to be allowed. As of December 31, 2004, the Company had accrued $1,300,000 in management fees due
under the Praxis partnership agreement for the periods prior to rejection of the partnership agreement.

2) Through December 2002, Wending Creek Farms, Inc. ("Wending Creek"), an entity owned by the Rigas Family,
performed various facility management and maintenance services for the Company. Wending Creek also performed capital
improvements for the Company.

3) The Company rented various condominiums and apartments, as well as certain office and warehouse space, from the
Rigas Family and the Other Rigas Entities.

4 Represents amounts charged by the Other Rigas Entities for various administrative and other services.

(5) The Company purchased furniture, fixtures and related design and installation services from certain of the Other Rigas
Entities. Due to the fact that the Company and such Other Rigas Entities were under commeon control at the time such purchases
were made, such Other Rigas Entities' mark-up on such transactions, which aggregated $205,000 for 2002, was treated as an
adjustment of additional paid-in capital.

Other Transactions with the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities

Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities. The Company performs all of the cash management functions for the Rigas
Co-Borrowing Entities using the CMS. As such, positive cash flows of the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities are generally deposited
into the Company's cash accounts. Negative cash flows, which represent the payment of interest on co-borrowing debt for the
Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities, are generally deducted from the Company’s cash accounts. In addition, the personnel of the Rigas
Co-Borrowing Entities are employees of the Company, and substantially all of the cash operating expenses and capital
expenditures of the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities are paid by the Company on behalf of the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities.
Charges to the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities for such expenditures are determined by reference to the terms of the applicable
third party invoices or vendor agreements. Although this activity affects the amounts due from the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities,
prior to the consolidation of the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities, the Company did not include any of these charges as related party
transactions to be separately reported in its consolidated statements of operations. Effective January 1, 2004, such amounts are
included in the Company's consolidated statements of operations. The most significant of these expenditures incurred by the
Company on behalf of the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities during 2003 and 2002 include third party programming charges,
employee related charges and third party billing service charges which are shown in the following table (amounts in thousands):

Year ended December 31,

2003 2002
Programming charges from third party Vendors ... $ 48,228 $ 43,404
Employee related charges........oo.vvvnieiniiinins e . 20,543 20,522
Billing charges from third party VERAOTS ..........ccooviviiimio i 3.009 2.662

S 71,780 5 _66.588

Prior to Janvary 1, 2004, the Company recognized all of the liabilities incurred under these arrangements on behalf of
the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities. At December 31, 2003, $51,644,000 was included in accrued liabilities in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet.

During 2004 and 2003, various stipulations and orders were approved by the Bankruptcy Court that caused the
Managed Cable Entities to pay approximately $28,000,000 of legal defense costs on behalf of certain members of the Rigas
Family. As a result of the consolidation of the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities, $17,000,000 of such
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defense costs have been included in investigation and re-audit related fees in the accompanying consolidated statement of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2004.

In connection with the Government Settlement Agreements, the Company agreed to pay the Rigas Family an additional
$11,500,000 for legal defense costs, which was paid and expensed by the Company in June 2005. The Government Settlement
Agreements release the Company from further obligation to provide funding for legal defense costs for the Rigas Family.

Purchase of Adelphia Securities by Other Rigas Entities. Adelphia issued debt securities to certain Other Rigas Entities
in 2002. Details of the securities issued to these Other Rigas Entities are set forth in the following table (dollars in thousands):

Total
Purchase purchase
price on price to
agreement Interest Other Rigas
Date issued Securities purchased by Other Rigas Entitics date factor Enfities
$400,000 aggregate principal amount of 3.25%
Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2021 (the "3.25%
January 22, 2002 Notes™) under an agreement dated April 19, 2001%............ $391,000 $2,569 $393,569
* The 3.25% Notes held by the Other Rigas Entities were convertible into Class B Common Stock and the 3.25% Notes

held by the public were convertible into Class A Common Stock. All terms, including the conversion ratios, of the 3.25% Notes
held by the public were otherwise identical to the 3.25% Notes held by the Other Rigas Entities. For additional information, see
Note 11.

The Company did not receive cash as a result of the issuance of the 3.25% Notes to the Other Rigas Entities, but rather
the purchase price has been reflected as an increase to amounts due from the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The price discount received by the Other Rigas Entities of $9,000,000 for the 3.25%
Notes was amortized to interest expense over the life of the securities with such amortization ceasing at the Petition Date
consistent with the Company’s treatment of other debt instruments. The securities purchase agreement also provided that the
Other Rigas Entities be charged interest on the purchase price of the securities from the agreement date through the issuance date
(the “snterest factor™). The interest factor for the 3.25% Notes has been reflected as an adjustment to additional paid-in capital.
See Note 11 for further discussion regarding additional debt securities held by the Other Rigas Entities.

In 2001, the Company agreed to issue 7,500,000 shares of Class B Common Stock and 2,000,000 shares of 7.5%
Series E Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, with a par value of $0.01 per share ("Series E Preferred Stock"), to the Other
Rigas Entities no later than August 12, 2002 for aggregate cash consideration of $202,550,000. As the equity securities were to
be issued to entities controlled by the Rigas Family, certain of whom were employees of the Company, the Company recognized
compensation expense of $101,000,000 in 2001 based on the difference between the purchase price of the securities and their
market price, in accordance with APB Opinion No. 25. The Company recognized a compensation benefit of $101,000,000
during 2002 as no shares were issued under the agreement.

Pursuant to the Forfeiture Order, all right, title and interest of the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities in the Rigas
Co-Borrowing Entities (other than Coudersport and Bucktail), certain specified real estate and any securities of the Company
were forfeited to the United States on June 8, 2005 and such assets and securities are expected to be conveyed (subject to
forfeiture proceedings before a federal judge to determine if there are any superior claims) to the Company pursuant to the
Non-Prosecution Agreement. The Company will recognize the benelits of such conveyance when it occurs. For additional
information, see Note 17.

Century/ML Cable. In conncction with the December 13, 2001 settlement of a dispute, Adelphia, Century,
Century/ML Cable, ML Media and Highland Holdings ("Highland"), a Rigas Family Entity, entered intoa Leveraged

Recapitalization Agreement (the "Recap Agreement") pursuant to which Century/ML Cable agreed to redeem ML Media's 50%
interest in Century/ML Cable (the "Redemption”) on or before September 30, 2002 for a
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purchase price between $275,000,000 and $279,800,000, depending on the timing of such redemption. Among other things, the
Recap Agreement provided that: (i) Highland would arrange debt financing for the Redemption; (ii) Highland, Adelphia and
Century would jointly and severally guarantee debt service on debt financing for the Redemption on and afier the closing of the
Redemption; and (iii) Highland and Century would own 60% and 40% interests, respectively, in the recapitalized Century/ML
Cable. Under the terms of the Recap Agreement, Century's 50% interest in Century/ML Cable was pledged to ML Media as
collateral for Adelphia's obligations. On or about December 18, 2001, Adelphia placed $10,000,000 on deposit on behalf of
Highland as eamest funds for the transaction. During June of 2002, ML Media withdrew the $10,000,000 from escrow following
the Bankruptcy Court's approval of the release of these funds to ML Media. Simultaneously with the execution of the Recap
Agreement, ML Media, Adelphia and certain of its subsidiaries entered into a stipulation of settlement, pursuant to which certain
litigation between them was stayed pending the Redemption. By order dated Septemnber 17, 2003, Adelphia and Century rejected
the Recap Agreement under applicable bankruptcy law. Adelphia has not accrucd any liability for damage claims related to the
rejection of the Recap Agrcoment. Adelphia and Century/ML Cable have challenged the Recap Agreement and the Redemption
as unenforceable on fraudulent transfer and other grounds, and Adelphia, Century, Highland, Century/ML and ML Media are
engaged in litigation regarding the enforceability of the Recap Agreement. In this regard, ML Media filed an amended complaint
against Adelphia on July 3, 2002 in the Bankruptcy Court. On April 15, 2004, the Bankruptcy Court dismissed all counts of
Adelphia's challenge of the Recap Agreement except for its allegation that ML Media aided and abetted a breach of fiduciary
duties in connection with its execution. The court also allowed Century/ML Cable's action to avoid the Recap Agreement as a
fraudulent conveyance to proceed. For additional information concerning this litigation, see Note 17.

On June 3, 2005, Century and ML Media entered into an interest acquisition agreement ("IAA") to sell their interests in
Century/ML Cable for $520,000,000 (subject to certain potential purchase price adjustments as defined in the IAA) to San Juan
Cable. Consummation of the sale is subject to approval by the Bankruptcy Court in Century/ML Cable's separate Chapter 11
case, confirmation of a plan of reorganization of Century/ML Cablc, the receipt of financing by the buyers and other customary
conditions, many of which are outside the control of Century/ML Cable, Century and M. Media. There can be no assurance
whether or when such conditions will be satisfied. The sale of Century/ML Cable will not resolve the pending litigation among
Adelphia, Century, Highland, Century/ML Cable and ML Media.

Margin Loans. Certain members of the Rigas Family and certain of the Other Rigas Entitics cntered into margin loan
agreements with various investment banks and other financial institutions and pledged equity and debt securities issued by the
Company to secure such loans. Although the total amount of these margin loans is unknown, from July 2000 to May 2002,
ceriain members of the Rigas Family and certain of the Other Rigas Entities have made approximately $252,000,000 of
payments in connection with margin calls. Funds for these margin call payments came from the CMS, and are included in
"Funding by the Company for operations and other activities" in the preceding summary table of changes in the "Amounts due
Jfrom the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities."

Timber Rights. Tn February 2000, the Company acquired timber rights for a 3,656-acre parcel of property from an
unrelated third party for a cash purchase price of $26,535,000. Simultaneously, one of the Other Rigas Entities purchased the
3,656-acre parcel of land for a cash purchase price of $465,000. The timber rights sale agreement contained a provision
stipulating that ownership of the timber rights would be transferred to such Other Rigas Entities as a part of the consideration to
be received by the Other Rigas Entities for any change in control transaction that would cause the cumulative voting percentage
of the Rigas Family in Adelphia to fall below 50%. On June 13, 2002, both the land and timber rights were sold to an unrelated
third party for an aggregate cash purchase price of $20,000,000. In connection with such sale, the Company recorded a $465,000
decrease to the amounts due from the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities and a $6,747,000 loss on disposition. Such loss is
included in gains (losses) on disposition of long-lived assets in the accompanying 2002 consalidated statement of operations.

Coudersport Golf Course. Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2000, the Company commenced construction of a golf
coursc on land near Coudersport, Pennsylvania. Although the Company owned a small portion of this land, the majority was
owned by the Other Rigas Entities. The Company paid for and capitalized all costs of construction, which costs amounted to
$13,571,000 through May 2002 when construction was ceased. As a result of the decision to cease construction, the Company
recorded an impairment loss of $13,236,000 during the second guarter of 2002.
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As discussed in Note 10, such loss is included in impairment of long-lived assets in the accompanying 2002 consolidated
statement of operations.

Briar'’s Creek Golf Membership. On QOctober 31, 2000, the Company paid $600,000 to acquire a membership interest
in Briar's Creek Golf, LL.C and $100,000 for a Founder's membership deposit. Such membership was used primarily by
members of the Rigas Family. The Company also paid dues totaling $6,000 per year in connection with this membership. For
purposes of the accompanying consolidated financial siatements, all of the costs and expenses associated with this membership
have been treated as costs and expenses of the Company. The $600,000 membership interest was written off by the Company
during the second quarter of 2002. Such write-off is included in impairment of cost and available-for-sale investments in the
accompanying 2002 consolidated staternent of operations. The Company resigned its Founder's membership interest in May
2004 and will receive a refund of an amount approximating the $100,000 deposit over a three-year period.

Use of Company Assets. Prior to June 2002, members of the Rigas Family used the Company aircraft at the expense of
the Company. The Company also paid corporate credit card invoices submitted by members of the Rigas Family. Due to the
pature of the charges and the lack of documentation submitted by the Rigas Family members, the Company is unable to
determine which portions of these expenditures were personal in nature or related to the business affairs of the Rigas Family
Entities. Accordingly, all of the amounts paid by the Company with respect to these items have been accounted for as expenses
of the Company in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Rigas Family Employees. Through May 2002, John J. Rigas and his sons Michael J. Rigas, Timothy J. Rigas and
James P. Rigas cach served as an executive officer and director of the Company and Peter L. Venetis, John J. Rigas' son-in law,
served as a director of the Company. In addition, Ellen Rigas Venetis, the daughter of John J. Rigas, was employed by the
Company to perform certain community services during 2002 for an annual salary of $61,000. Ms. Venetis never served as an
officer or director of the Company. The Company has treated all wages paid to members of the Rigas Family as expenses of the
Company.

Ergodrts, Inc. and SongCatcher Films, LLC. From 1998 through 2002, the Company advanced funds to ErgoArts,
Inc., an entity wholly-owned by John J. Rigas and Ellen Rigas Venetis, and SongCatcher Films, LLC, an entity in which John J.
Rigas and Ellen Rigas Venetis held equity interests. At December 31, 2004, the outstanding balance due to the Company from
ErgoArts and SongCatcher Films under these arrangements was approximately $677,000 and $3,100,000, respectively. The
advances lo ErgoArts were made principally in connection with the development and potential production of documentary films.

Registration Rights. Substantially all of the shares of Class A Common Stock, Class B Common Stock and securities
convertible into Class A or Class B Common Stock owned by the Other Rigas Entities have been registered by Adelphia on
registration statements or are subject to pre-bankruptcy registration rights agreements or arrangements for registration in the
future.

Other Agreements with the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities

Rigas Family Agreement. On May 23, 2002, Adelphia entered into an agreement (the "Rigas Family Agreement”) with
John J. Rigas, Timothy J. Rigas, James P. Rigas and Michael J. Rigas, acting in their individual capacitics and on behalf of each
entity directly or indirectly controlled by any or all of them (collectively, the "Contracting Rigas Family Members") that, among
other items, provided for: (i) the resignation of the Coniracting Rigas Family Members from their positions as executive officers
of Adelphia and members of the Board; (ii) the placement of all shares of Adelphia Common Stock owned by the Contracting
Rigas Family Members into a voting trust until all obligations of the Contracting Rigas Family Members to the Company for
borrowed money are satisfied, with the voting of such shares to be directed by a special committee of the Board through
Adelphia's 2004 annual meeting and thereafier (o be voted in proportion to the votes cast by all other holders of Adelphia shares;
(iii) the use of all of the free cash flow of the Managed Cable Entities to repay amounts owed by the Contracting Rigas Family
Members as primary obligors in
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respect of the Co-Borrowing Facilitics and the pledge of the Contracting Rigas Family Members' equity interests in the Managed
Cable Entities to the Company until all amounts owed by the Contracting Rigas Family Members to the Company in respect of
borrowed money are satisfied; (iv) the transfer of the stock or assets of the Managed Cable Entities from the Contracting Rigas
Family Members to the Company in exchange for a payment equal 1o the taxes incurred by the Contracting Rigas Family
Members as a result of such transfer and a reduction in the amounts owed by the Contracting Rigas Family Members as primary
obligors in respect of the Co-Borrowing Facilitics, with the amount of such reduction to be based on third party appraisals, less
the payment with respect to taxes to be incurred by the Contracting Rigas Family Members in connection with such transfer;

(v) the transfer of approximately $567,000,000 of the Company's debt held directly or indirectly by the Contracting Rigas
Family Members to the Company in exchange for an equivalent reduction in the amounts owed by the Contracting Rigas Family
Members to the Company in respect of existing stock purchase agreements and as primary obligors in respect of the
Co-Borrowing Facilities; (vi) the pledge of all shares of Adelphia Common Stock owned dircetly or indirectly by the
Contracting Rigas Family Members to secure the repayment of the Co-Borrowing Facilities and the repayment of any
indemnification payments made by the Company to Contracting Rigas Family Members pursuant to the terms of the Rigas
Family Agreement; (vii) the accrual of interest on amounts owed by the Contracting Rigas Family Members under the
Co-Borrowing Facilities at a rate of 6% per annum, to be paid on December 31, 2006, or earlier if amounts due under the
Co-Borrowing Facilities are prepaid; (viii) the transfer of a 3,656 acre parcel of land underlying certain timber rights of the
Company by the Contracting Rigas Family Members to the Company in exchange for a $465,000 reduction in the amounts
owed by the Contracting Rigas Family Members as primary obligors in respect of the Co-Borrowing Facilities; (ix) the
Company's honoring its prior commitment to provide severance arrangements to John J. Rigas, including a $1,400,000 annual
cash payment for three years, lifetime healthcare coverage for Mr. Rigas and his spouse, the use of office space, equipment and a
secretary, vested stock options exercisable for their term and the use of the Company's aircrafl in certain limited circumstances;
and (x) the termination of the aforementioned severance arrangements in the event Mr. Rigas is convicted of a felony.

Pursuant to the Plan and in accordance with the Bankrupicy Code, the Company intends to reject the Rigas Family
Agreement, Except for the accrual of the severance arrangements for John J. Rigas, no economic effect had been given to the
Rigas Family Agreement in the consolidated financial statements. As of December 31, 2004, $2,717,000 of severance had been

accrued for John J. Rigas.
Note 7: TelCove
Spin-off and Bankruptcy

TelCove, Inc. ("TelCove™) owned, operated and managed entities that provided competitive local exchange carrier
("CLEC") telecommunications services. On January 11, 2002 (the "TelCove Spin-off Date"), the Company completed a
transaction (the "TelCove Spin-off") whereby all of the shares of common stock of TelCove owned by Adelphia were distributed
in the form of a dividend to holders of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock. On the TelCove Spin-off Date, the
Company owned 78% of the outstanding common stock and 96% of the total voting power in TelCove. The TelCove Spin-off
resulted in the distribution of net liabilities of $1,346,500,000, which have been reflected as an increase to additional paid-in
capital in the accompanying consolidated statement of stockholders' deficit. The TelCove Spin-off excluded certain CLEC
systems which the Company purchased from TelCove in 2001 and 2000 (the "CLEC Market Assets").

On March 27, 2002 (the "TelCove Petition Date"), TelCove and certain of its direct subsidiaries commenced voluntary
cases to reorganize under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code in the Bankruptcy Court. Subsequently, on June 18, 2002, certain
indirect subsidiaries of TelCove also commenced voluntary cases to reorganize under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code in the
Bankruptcy Court. TelCove and its direct and indirect subsidiaries that have commenced Chapter 11 filings are collectively
referred to herein as the "TelCove Debtors." From the TelCove Spin-off Date through the TelCove Petition Date, the Rigas
Family Entities owned a controlling interest in TelCove, and accordingly, the Company and TelCove were under the common
control of the Rigas Family during that period. Subsequent to the TelCove Spin-off and prior to the TelCove Petition Date, the
Company provided additional funding of $15,510,000 to TelCove in the form of unsecured advances to fund operations. As
discussed in greater detail below, the Company also provided funding of $15,000,000 to the TelCove Debtors in May 2002 in
the form of a debtor-in-possession credit and security agreement (the "TelCove DIP Credit Agresment"),

TelCove, as an unrestricted borrower under a joint bank credit facility with certain of Adelphia's subsidiaries (the
"Subsidiary Borrowers") and a Rigas Family Entity, was credited with proceeds aggregating $500,000,000 from unsecured
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borrowings under this facility during 2000. The Subsidiary Borrowers are jointly and severally liable for all borrowings under
this joint bank credit facility. As such, the full amount borrowed by TelCove under this joint bank credit facility has been
reflected in the balance sheets of the Subsidiary Borrowers. Through December 31, 2001, both TelCove and the Subsidiary
Borrowers were included in the Company's accompanying consolidated financial statements.

At the TelCove Spin-off Date, the Company recorded a receivable from TelCove of $518,897,000 representing the net
effect of $500,000,000 related to the principal amount of the borrowings attributed to TelCove under the joint credit facility and
$18,897,000 of additional advances that resulied primarily from costs incurred by the Company in connection with the
development of TelCove's billing system. All of such amounts including the $15,510,000 of unsecured advances were fully
reserved during 2002,

In April 2002, the TelCove Debtors entered into the TelCove DIP Credit Agreement with Adelphia and one of the
Rigas Family Entities (collectively, the *TelCove DIP Lenders"). Pursuant to the TelCove DIP Credit Agreement, the TelCove
DIP Lenders committed to provide TelCove with a $135,000,000 revolving credit facility. The TelCove DIP Credit Agreement
was structured such that Adelphia was responsible for loaning the first $67,500,000 and the Rigas Family Entily was responsible
for loaning the second $67,500,000. The TelCove DIP Credit Agreement was to mature on the earlier of April 2004, the
effectiveness of TelCove's reorganization plan or the occurrence and continuance of an event of default. Loans under the
TelCove DIP Credit Agreement were to bear interest at a rate equal to a prime rate plus 3.75% per annum, subject to adjustment
during the continuance of any event of default. The TelCove DIP Credit Agreement also provided for a facility fee of 1% of the
unborrowed loan commitment and for the payment by TelCove of deferred financing fees of $4,050,000. No interest or fees
were ever received from TelCove. In April 2002, the Bankruptey Court approved an interim order for $27,000,000 of
borrowings under the TelCove DIP Credit Agreement pending a final hearing. In May 2002, Adelphia loaned $15,000,000 of
such approved borrowings to TelCove, but did not provide the remaining $12,000,000 that had been approved by the
Bankruptey Court. In August 2002, the TelCove Debtors closed on an alternative debtor-in-possession credit agreement with an
unrelated third party that, with the Company’s consent, subordinated the priority of the Company's claims pursuant to the
TelCove DIP Credit Agreement. As a result, the Company recorded a reserve against the entire $15,000,000 loaned to TelCove

during 2002.

In connection with the 2000 and 2001 acquisitions of certain CLEC systerns, the Company entered into management
agreements with TelCove to manage the local telecommunications fransmission systems for the Company. The management
agreements, which had an initial term of three years, contained automatic renewals for successive three-year periods, unless the
Company gives notification that it is terminating such agreements. TelCove was also eligible to receive a quarterly performance
bonus at the discretion of the Company. During 2003 and 2002, the aggregate amount charged to the Company pursuant to these
management agreements was $3,045,000 and $4,170,000, respectively. The Company provided management and record keeping
services to TelCove in accordance with applicable agreements. The agreements provided for a reasonable charge for the costs of
providing services to TelCove plus reimbursement of applicable out-of-pocket costs. Due to the fact that collectibility was not
assured, the Company recognized the amounts charged to TelCove on a cash basis. The Company recognized $1,215,000 of
such charges and reimbursements as reductions of its costs and expenses during 2003. The Company did not receive any
reimbursements from TelCove in 2002.

The foregoing management agreements were effectively superceded by a management agreement executed on April 7,
2004 in connection with the settlement of a dispute between the Company and TclCove, as described below.

On December 3, 2003, the Debtors and TelCove entered into a2 Master Reciprocal Settlement Agreement pursuant to
which the parties, among other things, memorialized their agreement relating to their ownership and use of certain shared assets.
On March 23, 2004, the Bankruptcy Court approved the Master Reciprocal Settlement Agreement.

Global Settlement Agreement

On February 21, 2004, the Debtors and TelCove executed a global settlement agreement (the "Global Settlement") that
resolved, among other things, certain claims put forth by both TelCove and Adelphia. The Global Scttlement provided that, on
the closing date, the Company would transfer to TelCove certain scttlement consideration, including approximately $60,000,000
in cash plus an additional payment of up to $2,500,000 related to certain outstanding payables, as well as certain vehicles, real
property and intellectual property licenses used in the operation of TelCove's businesses. Additionalty, the parties executed
various annexes to the Global Settlement (collectively, the "Annex Agreements") that provided, among other things, for: () a
five-year business commitment

45

F-45



ADELPHIA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Debtors-In-Possession)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—Continued

to TelCove for telecommunication services by the Company; (ii) future use by TelCove of certain fiber capacity in assets owned
by the Company; and (jii) the mutual release by the parties from any and all liabilities, claims and causes of action that either
party had or may have had against the other party. Finally, the Global Setilement provided for the transfer by the Company to
TelCove of the CLEC Market Assets together with the various licenses, franchises and permits related to the operation and
ownership of such assets. On March 23, 2004, the Bankruptcy Court approved the Global Settlement. The Company recorded 2
$97,902,000 liability during the fourth quarter of 2003 to provide for the Global Settlement. The Annex Agreements became
effective in accordance with their terms on April 7, 2004.

On April 7, 2004, the Company paid $57,941,000 to TelCove, transferred the economic risks and benefits of the CLEC
Market Assets to TelCove pursuant to the terms of the Global Settlement and entered into a management agreement which
provided for the management of the CLEC Market Assets from April 7, 2004 through the date of transfer to TelCove.

On August 20, 2004, the Company paid TelCove an additional $2,464,000 pursuant to the Global Settlement in
connection with the resolution and release of certain claims. On August 21, 2004, the CLEC Market Assets were transferred to

TelCove.
Discontinued CLEC Operations

As aresult of the Global Settlement discussed above, the Company transferred the CLEC Market Assets together with
the various licenses, franchises and permits related to the operation and ownership of such assets to TelCove. The Company has
presented the CLEC Market Assets, including the cost of the Global Settlement, as discontinued operations in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements. The following table presents the summarized results of operations of the CLEC Market Assets
included in discontinued operations for the indicated periods (amounts in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
REVENUE ... ...eeiiieeeeeiceeeecrciesr e s et e e e aase s se s re e e e s s barneees s sassannees s s b e baesesees $ 9,057 $ 37,026 $ 52,506
Costs and expenses:
Direct operating and programming 7,074 33,431 62,282
Selling, general and administrative 828 2,354 1,171
Depreciation and amortization ............ . 1,271 10,465 27918
(07117 ST PP TR UV OPT PR 455 826 592
Total costs and EXPENSES.....covverririviriiiiin it 9,628 47,076 91,963
Provision for cost of Global Settlement..... — 97.902 —
Loss from discontinued operations ........cceevrccinensinineenis e $ (57H) $ (107.952) $ (39.457)

Note 8: Acquisition

On February 14, 2002, Adelphia issued 2,112,305 shares of Class A Common Stock valued at $46,470,000 to Verizon
Media Ventures, Inc. d/bfa Verizon Americast ("Verizon Media Ventures") in exchange for cable television assets serving
approximately 47,300 basic subscribers (unaudited) in California. Subsequently, certain franchise authorities filed suit against
Verizon Media Ventures and the Company asserting that Verizon Media Ventures had not received approval from the franchise
authorities for the sale as required by the applicable franchise agreement. See Note 17 for further information. On May 14, 2002,
a temporary restraining order was granted to unwind a portion of the sale of certain assets and allow the sale of others. Because
Verizon Media Ventures had vacated the area, thc Company was required to provide service on behalf of Verizon Media
Ventures to subscribers in the franchise area. In addition, the Company was prohibited from using any funds received from these
subscribers and was required to place all such funds in a trust account.
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The Company recorded the portion of the purchase price related to the areas affected by the restraining order as a
$22,585,000 deposit from Verizon Media Ventures, and allocated the remaining purchase price to property and equipment
($9,651,000), franchise rights ($6,635,000), customer relationships (84,271,000) and goodwill (§3,328,000). In April, 2003,
upon appeal, the preliminary injunction was vacated, and the Company, upon request, was cntitled to use the funds placed in
trust. As a result, the portion of the purchase price that had been reflected as a deposit from Verizon Media Ventures in 2002 was
allocated to property and equipment (37,435,000), franchise rights ($6,142,000), customer relationships ($3,954,000) and
goodwill ($4,190,000) during the second quarter of 2003. During the peried in which the restraining order was in effect, the
Company deferred both revenue and expenses related to the subscribers residing in the affected franchise area. The net profit of
$864,000 during the restraining order pericd was recorded as a reduction of the purchase price in the second quarter of 2003,
upon relief from the preliminary injunction.

Note 9: Investments in Equity Affiliates and Related Receivables

The Company has various investments accounted for under the equity method. The following table includes the
Company's percentage ownership interest and the carrying value of its investments and related rcceivables as of the indicated
dates (dollars in thousands):

December 31,

Percentage
ownership at December 31,
2004 2004 2003
Century/ML Cable(a) 50% § 243,806 $ 240,542
Oher oo e e various 8,341 16,035
Investments in equity affiliates and related
TECEIVADIES .iecversiireiiee st er e e $ 252237 § 256,577

The following table includes the Company's share of losses of its equity affiliates, including excess basis amortization
and write-downs to reflect other-than-temporary declines in value for the indicated periods (amounts in thousands):

Year ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
Century/ML Cable(@). ..uv.ecrevereeeeecererin s cassssasassssanes $ — $ — b 3,128
Devon Mobile(b) — — (123,327)
OHHET 1. evvevveetvestisrsebeeas e s e s e s mases sreemben s e serreesheareeasesben et e e canerreenen st saenaes (1.926) (2.826) 435
Share of losses of equity affiliates, Net..........ccoeimiviciiincneinricenenn e $ (7.926 $ (2,826 $ (119,764)

(a) Century/ML Cable

Century/ML Cable owns, operates and manages cable systems located in Puerto Rico. Century/ML Cable is a joint
venture between ML Media and Century. As both Century and ML Media have substantial participatory rights in the
management of Century/ML Cable, the Company used the equity method to account for its investment in Century/ML Cable
until September 30, 2002, when Century/ML Cable filed a voluntary petition to reorganize under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy
Code. Following the Chapter 11 filing, the Company suspended the use of the equity method and began to carry its investment
in Century/ML Cable at cost. The Company has evaluated its investment in Century/ML Cable for an other-than-temporary
decline in fair value below the cost basis in accordance with its policy and concluded that the estimated fair value exceeded its
cost basis. This bankruptcy proceeding is administered separately from that of the Debtors. Century/ML Cable is operating its
business as a debtor-in-possession and, along with its subsidiary, Century/ML Cable Corporation, continues to provide service to
its subscribers. Century/ML Cable Corporation did not file for reorganization under Chapter 11. At this time, Century/ML Cable
is expected to generate sufficient cash to fund foreseeable operations and capital requirements. The Century/ML Cable
Chapter 11 filing is not expected to have a material impact on the operations of Ceniury/ML Cable Corporation.
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On June 3, 2005, Century and ML Media entered into the IAA to sell their interests in Century/ML Cable for
$520,000,000 (subject to certain potential purchase price adjustments as defined in the IAA) to San Juan Cable. Consummation
of the sale is subject to approval by the Bankruptcy Court in Century/ML Cable's separate Chapter 11 case, confirmation of a
plan of reorganization of Century/ML Cable, the receipt of financing by the buyers and other customary conditions, many of
which are outside the control of Century/ML Cable, Century and ML Media. There can be no assurance whether or when such
conditions will be satisfied. The sale of Century/ML Cable will not resolve the pending litigation among Adelphia, Century,
Highland, Century/ML Cable and ML Media.

On August 9, 2005, Century/ML Cable filed its Plan of Reorganization (the "Century/ML Plan") and related Disclosure
Statement (the "Century/ML Disclosure Statement") with the Bankruptcy Court. By order dated August 18, 2005, the
Bankrupicy Court approved the Century/ML Disclosure Statement. On September 7, 2005, the Bankruptcy Court confirmed the
Century/ML Plan. The Century/ML Plan is designed to satisfy the conditions of the IAA with San Juan Cable and provides that
all third-party claims will either be paid in full or assumed by San Juan Cable under the terms set forth in the IAA.
Consummation of the Century/ML Plan is subject to certain conditions, including the concurrent sale of the interests in
Century/ML Cable pursuant to the IAA. There can be no assurance whether or when such conditions will be satisfied. The
Century/ML Plan, if consummated, will not resolve the pending litigation among Adelphia, Century, Highland, Century/ML
Cable and ML Media.

The excess of the Company's investment in Century/ML Cable over the Company’s proportionate share of Century/MIL
Cable's net assets was $175,441,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003.

The Company provides management, programming and record keeping services to Century/ML Cable. In connection
with the execution of the Recap Agreement among Century/ML Cable, ML Media and one of the Rigas Family Entities in
December 2001, as further discussed in Note 6, the parties agreed to increase the management fees from 5% to 10% of
Century/ML Cable's revenue plus reimbursable expenses. In June 2003, the management fees charged to Century/ML Cable
were reduced to 5% of Century/ML Cable's revenue plus reimbursable expense in connection with the Debtors' rejection of the
Recap Agreement. The Company has provided reserves against any management fees charged in excess of 5%. During the
period in which the Company used the equity methed to account for Century/ML Cable, the Company eliminated 50% of the
management fee from Century/ML Cable against the Company's share of Century/ML Cable's losses. After deducting such
eliminations and reserves, the net Century/ML Cable management fees included as a reduction of selling, general and
administrative expenses in the Company's accompanying statements of operations were $4,200,000, $4,053,000 and $2,280,000
during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. In addition to management fees, the Company is reimbursed by Century/ML Cable
for programming expenses and other amounts paid on Century/ML Cable's behalf. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the
amounts receivable from Century/ML Cable for such fees and reimbursements, net of applicable reserves, were $23,442,000 and
$20,088,000 respectivcly. Such receivables are included with the Company's investment in Century/ML Cable in the foregoing
table. :

As further described in Note 17, ML Media and Adelphia are engaged in litigation regarding the Recap Agreement and
other matters.

(b) Devon Mobile Communications L.P. ("Devon Mobile")

Pursuant to the Agreement of Limited Partnership of Devon Mobile dated as of November 3, 1995 (the "Devon Mobile
Limited Partnership Agreement"), the Company owned a 49.9% limited partnership interest in Devon Mobile. An unrelated
third party (the "Devon General Partner") owned the remaining 50.1% general partnership interest. The Devon General Partner
also held 60% of the voting rights in a management committee that was created by the terms of the Devon Mobile Limited
Partnership Agreement (the "Devon Mobile Management Committee”). The Company held the remaining voting rights in the
Devon Mobile Management Committee. James P. Rigas, a member of the Rigas Family, was the Company’s representative on
the Devon Mobile Management Committee until May 2002, when he resigned from his position with Adelphia.

Devon Mobile, through its subsidiaries, held licenses to operate regional wircless telephone businesses in several states.
In late May 2002, the Company notified the Devon General Partner that it would likely terminate certain discretionary
operational funding to Devon Mobile. The Company waived its right to participate in the Devon Mobile Management
Committee on June 14, 2002. On August 19, 2002 (the "Devon Mobile Petition Date"), Devon Mobile and certain of its
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subsidiaries filed voluntary petitions for relief under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code in the United States Bankruptcy Court
for the District of Delaware (the "Devon Mobile Bankruptey Court”). Pursuant to Devon Mobile's joint plan of liquidation,
which was approved by the Devon Mobile Bankruptcy Court in October 2003, the Company's interests in Devon Mobile were

extinguished.

The Company used the equity method to account for its limited partnership interest in Devon Mobile through the
Devon Mobile Petition Date. Due to the inability of thc Devon General Partner to absorb its share of Devon Mobile's losses, the
Company recognized 100% of Devon Mobile's losses under the equity method. During 2002, the Company recognized a charge
of $113,962,000 to: (i) write-off its equity investment of $11,356,000; (ii) write-off its receivables from Devon Mobile of
$67,820,000; and (iii) to accrue a liability for a $34,786,000 guarantee of an accounts payable obligation to one of Devon
Mobiie's vendors. Such charge is included in share of losses of equity affiliates, net in the accompanying consolidated statements
of operations. The accrued liability for the guarantee of the accounts payable obligation is presented as a liability subject to
compromise in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

The Company charged fees to Devon Mobile pursuant 1o a services agreement dated December 29, 2000. Such fees
included management fees of $400,000 per month. During 2002, management fees aggregated 32,400,000 and were eliminated
against the Company's 100% share of Devon Mobile's losses.

As further discussed in Note 17, the Company and Devon Mobile are involved in litigation.
Note 10: Ympairment of Long-Lived Assets
A summary of impairment charges for long-lived assets is set forth below (amounts in thousands):

Year ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Property and €QUIPITICNI(A) ..vvc.vevevseriiiiris it $ — $ 17,000 $ —
Intangible assets, net:

Franchise fghtS(B) . cveee. e eveverercomrm et srisessneas s s en s e 83,349 641 1,212,860

GOOAWIIL(D) ¢eeve ettt sttt s et e es s et ene — — 755,905

OHher ASSELS () . cvoeure e cricrcre e et e st ena et a s e sr e sve s s s bbb e s e s sr e b s — — 62,992

Impairment 0f 1ong-lived assets.......coovemiieiiinininii i e $ 83349 § 17.641 $ 2,031,757

(a} Property and Equipment

In light of the declining values associated with cable systemns in Brazil, as evidenced by the sale of other Brazilian cable
entities during 2003, the Company performed an evaluation of its Brazilian cable operations during 2003. As a result of this
evaluation, the Company recorded an impairment charge to write-down the assets of this operation to their estimated fair market

value.
(b) Cable Impairments

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS No. 142 and performed its transitional impairment evaluation
of the carrying value of goodwill and franchisc rights as of January 1, 2002, As a result of this evaluation, the Company recorded
impairment charges to write-down goodwill by $881,610,000 and franchise rights by $524,696,000 to their respective estimated
fair values. Such charges are reflected in cumulative effects of accounting changes in the accompanying consolidated statements
of operations.

As a result of the Debtors' Chapter 11 filing, the Company performed an evaluation of the carrying amounts of
goodwill and franchise rights in accordance with SFAS No. 142 and an evaluation of long-lived assets in accordance with SFAS
No. 144, as of June 30, 2002. As a result of these evaluations, the Company recorded impairment charges to write-down
goodwill by $755,905,000 and franchise rights by $1,212,860,000 to their respective estimated fair values. The Petition Date of
the Chapter 11 filing substantially coincided with the Company's annual impairment testing date.
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The Company, as a result of its annual impairment test, recorded additional impairments of $83,349,000 and $641,000

in 2004 and 2003, respectively, related to franchise rights. The 2004 impairment was primarily driven by subscriber losses. No
events occurred during 2004, 2003 or the remainder of 2002 that would require additional impairment tests to be performed.

(¢) Other assets

The Company began developing an internal operation's, call center and billing system ("Convergence") in 1998. After a
careful evaluation of the functionality and usability of Convergence, the Company decided in 2002 not to pursue continued
deployment and terminated additional funding for and abandoned the system. As a result of this decision, the Company
recognized an impairment charge of $49,756,000 during 2002 to write-off all capitalized costs associated with Convergence.

As discussed in Note 6, as a result of the Company's decision to cease construction of a golf course, the Company
recorded an impairment charge of $13,236,000 in 2002.
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Note 11: Debt

The carrying value of the Company's debt is summarized below for the indicated periods (amounts in thousands).
Although the Company has timely paid all interest due under the DIP facilities, they are classified as a current liability as the
Company has received and may require future waivers to prevent or cure certain defaults under the DIP facilities. See Note 2 for
additional information.

December 31,

2004 2003
Current portion of parent and subsidiary debt:
Secured:
First Extended DIP Facility(a) § 627176 $ 276,032
Capital lease ODHZAONS .....coviiviriiiininiii e 39,657 70,159
Unsecured other subsidiary debt 912 928
Current portion of parent and subsidiary debl..........c.ceivenvnninniinnnne e $ 667745 $ _ 347.119
Liabilities subject to compromise:
Parent debt—unsectred (D) .....cocovmrrerniieiceee e s
SOOI TIOLES . oeeervvie et e et e e et e e eeeeeeaee e easseesesbeeansanesersstesshnre sareen srnassansenesrrann $ 4767565 $§ 4,767,565
Convertible subordinated NOtES(C) ..o ereeeeerrerrieierieiririreires e 1,992,022 1,992,022
Senior debentures......co.coerveeevenennee 129,247 129,247
Pay-in-Kind nOtes ..vevrveiveeirennnnniioeicnii e 31.847 31,847
Total parent debt 6,920,681 6,920,681
Subsidiary debt:
Secured:
Notes payable 10 DANKS ........cocuveeeriririiniecriiie st e 2,240,313 2,240,313
Unsecured:
OMIOT NOES v ievveiicneeissescereeeerree e es s sae s s ssresseseeesneerssmnesasseresaebeeshubssenanserranssntsesors 1,105,538 1,105,538
SenIOr AISCOUNE MOLES . evrirveirereereriesierreeeererrssserrrrsreenieeesesretsssssesasessesanmresnrs st sessnssnsass 342,830 342,830
Zero couport Seior diSCOUNE NMOLES. .......coviiriiier i et 755,031 755,031
Senior subordinated notes................. 208,976 208,976
Other subsidiary debt..........cccccvreeeoniiein e s s 121,523 121,523
Total SUbSIAIATY Aebt........cceeiieeeriti et st e e 4774211 4,774.211
Deferred financing fees(d) (134,208) (134.208)
Parent and subsidiary debt before Co-Borrowing Facilities (Note 2) ... $ 11,560.684 $ 11.560.684
Co-Borrowing Facilities(e) (NOLE 2) .......ooviiiieiii e e s $§ 4576375 §  4,576.375

(a) First Extended DIP Facility

In connection with the Chapter 11 filings, Adelphia and certain of its subsidiaries, (collectively, the "Loan Parties”)
entered into the $1,500,000,000 DIP Facility. On May 10, 2004, the Loan Parties entered into the $1,000,000,000 First Extended
DIP Facility, which superseded and replaced, in its entirety, the DIP Facility, The First Extended DIP Facility was superseded
and replaced in its entirety by the Second Extended DIP Facility, which is described below.

The First Extended DIP Facility was scheduled to mature upon the earlier of March 31, 2005, or upon the occurrence of
certain other events, as described in the First Extended DIP Facility. Upon the closing of the First Extended DIP Facility, the
Company borrowed an aggregate of $390,750,000 under the First Exiended DIP Facility, and used all such proceeds to repay all
of the then outstanding principal, accrued interest and certain related fees and expenses under the DIP Facility. The proceeds
from the borrowings under the First Extended DIP Facility were permitted to be used for general corporate purposes and
investments, as defined in the First Extended DIP Facility. The First Extended DIP Facility was secured with a first priority lien
on all of the Loan
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Parties' unencumbered assets, a priming first priority lien on all assets of the Loan Parties securing their pre-petition bank debt
and a junior lien on all other assets of the Loan Parties. The First Extended DIP Facility was comprised of an $800,000,000
Tranche A Loan and a $200,000,000 Tranche B Loan. The applicable margin on loans extended under the First Extended DIP
Facility was reduced (when compared to the DIP Facility). Loans under the First Extended DIP Facility accrued interest at the
Alternative Base Rate as defined in the First Extended DIP Facility plus 1.50%, or the Adjusted London interbank offered rate
("LIBOR™, as defined in the First Extended DIP Facility plus 2.50%. In addition, under the First Extended DIP Facility, the
commitment fee with respect to the unused portion of the Tranche A Loan was reduced (when compared to the DIP Facility) to a
range of 0.50% to 0.75% depending upon the amount of the unused portion of the Tranche A Loan.

The terms of the First Extended DIP Facility contained certain restrictive covenants, which included limitations on the
ability of the Loan Parties to: (i) incur additional guarantees, liens and indebtedness; (ii) sell or otherwise dispose of certain
assets; and (iii) pay dividends or make other distributions or payments with respect to any shares of capital stock, subject to
certain exceptions set forth in the First Extended DIP Facility. The First Extended DIP Facility also required compliance with
certain financial covenants with respect to operating results and capital expenditures. Thesc financial covenants became effective
for periods beginning May 1, 2003. From time to time, the Loan Parties and the DIP lenders entered into certain amendments to
the terms of the First Extended DIP Facility. In addition, from time to time, the Company received waivers to prevent or cure
certain defaults under the First Extended DIP Facility.

On June 29, 2004, and July 30, 2004 certain Loan Parties made mandatory prepayments of principal on the First
Extended DIP Facility in connection with the consummation of certain asset sales. As a result, the total commitment for the
entire First Extended DIP Facility was reduced to $996,425,000, with the total commitment of the Tranche A Loan being
reduced to $796,822,000 and the total commitment of the Tranche B Loan being reduced to $199,603,000. As of December 31,
2004, $427,573,000 under the Tranche A Loan has been drawn and letters of credit totaling $117,452,000 have been issued
under the Tranche A Loan, leaving availability of $251,797,000 under the Tranche A Loan. Furthermore, as of December 31,
2004, the entire Tranche B Loan has been drawn.

Second Extended DIP Facility

On February 25, 2005, the Loan Parties entered into the $1,300,000,000 Second Extended DIP Facility, which
supersedes and replaces in its entirety the First Extended DIP Facility. The Sccond Extended DIP Facility was approved by the
Bankruptcy Court on February 22, 2005 and closed on February 25, 2005. Except as set forth below, the material terms and
conditions of the Second Extended DIP Facility are substantially identical to the material terms and conditions of the First
Extended DIP Facility, including the covenants and collateral securing the Second Extended DIP Facility.

The Second Extended DIP Facility matures upon the earlier of March 31, 2006 or the occurrence of certain other
events, as described in the Second Extended DIP Facility. The Second Exiended DIP Facility consists ofan $800,000,000
Tranche A Loan (including a $500,000,000 letter of credit subfacility) and a $500,000,000 Tranche B Loan. The proceeds from
borrowings under the Second Extended DIP Facility are permitted to be used for general corporate purposes and investments, as
defined in the Second Extended DIP Facility. The Second Extended DIP Facility is secured with a first priority lien on all of the
Loan Parties' unencumbered assets, a priming first priority lien on all assets of the Loan Parties securing their pre-petition bank
debt and a junior lien on all other assets of the Loan Parties. The applicable margin on loans extended under the Second
Extended DIP Facility was reduced (when compared to the First Extended DIP Facility) to 1.25% per annum in the casc of
Alternate Base Rate loans and 2.25% per annum in the case of Adjusted LIBOR Rate Joans, In addition, under the Second
Extended DIP Facility, the commitment fee with respect to the unused portion of the Tranche A Loan was changed from a
commitment fee of between 0.50% and 0.75% per annum to 0.50% per annum.

In connection with the closing of the Second Extended DIP Facility, on February 25, 2005, the Loan Parties borrowed
an aggregate of $578,000,000 and used all such proceeds and a portion of available cash and cash equivalents to repay all of the
indebtedness outstanding under the First Extended DIP Facility, including accrued and unpaid interest and certain fees and
expenses. In addition, all of the participations in the letters of credit outstanding under the First Extended DIP Facility were
transferred to certain lenders under the Second Extended DIP Facility.
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From time to time, the Loan Parties and the DIP lenders entered into certain amendments to the terms of the Second
Extended DIP Facility. In addition, from time to time, the Company received waivers to prevent or cure certain defaults under
the Second Extended DIP Facility. These waivers and amendments are effective through the maturity date of the Second
Extended DIP Facility.

(&) Parent Debt

All debt of Adelphia is structurally subordinated to the debt of its subsidiaries such that the assets of an indebted
subsidiary are used to satisfy the applicable subsidiary debt before being applied to the payment of parent debt.

(¢) Convertible Subordinated Noies

At December 31, 2004 and Dccember 31, 2003, the convertible subordinated notes included: (i) $1,029,876,000
aggregate principal amount of 6% convertible subordinated notes; (i) $975,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 3.25%
convertible subordinated notes; and (iii) unamortized discounts aggregating $12,854,000. Other Rigas Entities hold
$167,376,000 aggregate principal amount of the 6% notes and $400,000,000 aggregate principal amount of the 3.25% notes. The
terms of the 6% notes and 3.25% notes provide for the conversion of such notes into Class A Common Stock (Class B Common
Stock in the case of notes held by the Other Rigas Entities) at the option of the holder any time prior to maturity at an initial
conversion price of $55.49 per share and $43.76 per share, respectively.

Pursuant to the Forfeiture Order, all right, title and interest of the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities in any
securities of the Company were forfeited to the United States on June 8, 2005, and such securities are expected to be conveyed
(subject to forfeiture proceedings before a federal judge to determine if there are any superior claims) to the Company pursuant
to the Non-Prosecution Agreement. The Company will recognize the benefits of such conveyance when it occurs. For additional
information, see Notc 17.

(d) Deferred Financing Fees

Pursuant to the requirements of SOP 90-7, deferred financing fees related to pre-petition debt have been included as an
adjustment of the net carrying value of the related pre-petition debt at December 31, 2004 and 2003 and are no longer being
amortized. Amortization of deferred financing fees related to pre-petition debt obligations was terminated effective on the
Petition Date and the unamortized amount at the Petition Date ($134,208,000) has been included in liabilities subject to
compromise as an adjustment of the net carrying value of the related pre-petition debt.

(e} Co-Borrowing Facilities

The Co-Borrowing Facilities represent the aggregate amount outstanding pursuant to three separate Co-Borrowing
Facilities dated May 6, 1999, April 14, 2000 and September 28, 2001. Each co-borrower is jointly and severally liable for the
entire amount of the indebtedness under the applicable Co-Borrowing Facility regardless of whether that co-borrower actually
borrowed that amount under such Co-Borrowing Facility. All amounts outstanding under Co-Borrowing Facilities at
December 31, 2004 represent pre-petition liabilities of the Debtors and have been classified as liabilities subject to compromise
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Collection of amounts outstanding under the Co-Borrowing Facilities from the
Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities has not been stayed and actions may be taken to collect such borrowings from the Rigas
Co-Borrowing Entities.

The table below sets forth amounts outstanding for the Co-Borrowing Facilities at December 31, 2004 and
December 31, 2003 (amounts in thousands):

Co-Borrowing

Facilities

Attributable to Rigas Co-Borrowing ENfiIEs .........ccrvroriiiiniiiinie et e $ 2,846,156
Attributable to non-Rigas Co-Borrowing ENHHES .....oeceiie oo, 1,730,219
Total included as debt of the COMPANY ....e.vcuevvireireriicierre et n s an e e sae e § 4,576,375
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Other Debt Matters

The fair value, as determined using third party quoted market prices or rates available for debt with similar terms and
maturities, and weighted average interest rate of the Company's debt, including the Company's pre-petition debt, is summarized
below as of the indicated periods (dollars in thousands):

2004 2003 2002
Fair value.....cccocevivcinnireeccseionensessee i ssenennneenenenens 9 15,585,467 $ 14,611,503 § 8,908,761
Weighted average interest rate.......oeoverveeeeeectencnrceercreesesseeenes 7.4%% 7.02% 7.12%

The table below sets forth the contractual principal maturities, without consideration for default provisions, of the
Company's debt. Such maturities exclude net discounts of $311,326,000 and deferred financing fees of $134,208,000 (amounts
in thousands):

2005 AN PIIOT YEATS ... .evrvviavenvirseeeererrreseeee st raeserssreseeressaesaeentansessessesers sevent emsemseeseenteshssussssansansessasession $ 4,515,737
2006 ..o e $ 2,998,234
2007 ..... reteereesseesherressbisrerasisessaeheesaetbeire et raseeheearesteate s ereaen e e aesae ke neesaenes nreebesseeereentes $ 2,130,590
2008 et r ket bt et e e et e eate e beaeteebeaessastessaaasaeasetesaeatb e ta sseeenasant s o beerebe s reeine $ 1,617,550
2009 < et ent et e et aR Y e b e ea T e v e sataesbeeabe R seeebe e b eeaRreehEenenete bt enae s e b e e be s ehteaene $ 2,598,925
2000 AN IRETCAMET ... civvviiiet e ci et te v a e et s re i e es s raaee e e e esbeseasen srssae e e bbasaeaen e beesenrst bt by e s e neten s $ 3,389,302

The foregoing maturities and interest rates include significant pre-petition obligations, which as discussed below, are
stayed and any action taken with regard to defaults under the pre-petition debt obligations is prevented. Therefore, these
commitments do not reflect actual cash outlays in future periods.

Due to the commencement of the Chapter 11 proceedings and the Company's failure to comply with certain financial
covenants, the Company is in default on substantially all of its pre-petition debt obligations. Except as otherwise may be
determined by the Bankruptcy Court, the automatic stay protection afforded by the Chapter 11 proceedings prevents any action
from being taken against any of the Debtors with regard to any of the defaults under the pre-petition debt obligations. With the
exception of the Company's capital lease obligations and a portion of other subsidiary debt, all of the pre-petition obligations are
classified as liabilities subject to compromise in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. For additional information, see
Note 2.

Interest Rate Derivative Agreements

Prior to the Petition Date, the Company entered into interest rate swaps, caps and collar agreements with financial
institutions to reduce the impact of changes in interest rates on its debt. The Company entered into swap agreements pursuant to
which it paid either a fixed rate ("Fixed Rate Swap™) or a variable rate ("Variable Rate Swap") to reduce the risk of incurring
higher interest costs in periods of rising and falling interest rates, respectively. Interest rate cap and interest rate collar ("Interest
Rate Collar") agreements were used to reduce the impact of increases in interest rates on variable-rate debt. The Company did
not designate the foregoing derivative financial instruments as hedging instruments pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 133.
Accordingly, changes in the fair value of these instruments were recognized currently and included in other expensc, net through
the Petition Date. Changes in the fair value of these instruments subsequent to the Petition Date have not been recognized, as
these agreements have been stayed and the amount to be received or paid in connection with these instruments will be
determined by the Bankruptcy Court.

At the Petition Date, all of the Company's derivalive financial instruments had been settled or have since been settled
except for one Fixed Rate Swap, one Variable Rate Swap and one Interest Rate Collar, which remain outstanding at
December 31, 2004. As the settlement of the remaining derivative financial instruments will be determined by the Bankruptcy
Court, the $3,486,000 fair value of the liability associated with the derivative financial instruments at the Petition Date has been
classified as a liability subject to compromise in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Losses resulting from changes
in the fair value of interest rate exchange agreements aggregated $159,000 during 2002 (pre-petition), and such amount is
included in other expense, net in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
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Note 12: Redeemable Preferred Stock
13% Cumulative Exchangeable Preferred Stock

On July 7, 1997, Adelphia issued 1,500,000 shares of Series A 13% Cumulative Exchangeable Preferred Stock due
July 15, 2009 ("Series A Preferred Stock”). The Series A Preferred Stock, which was exchanged in November 1997 for Series B
13% Cumulative Exchangeable Preferred Stock due July 15, 2009 (“Series B Preferred Stock"), had an aggregate liquidation
preference of $150,000,000 on the date of issuance and was recorded net of issuance costs of $2,025,000. Upon exchange, the
shares of Series A Preferred Stock were returned to their original status of authorized but unissucd preferred stock. Dividends are
payable semi-annually at 13% of the liquidation preference of the outstanding Series B Preferred Stock. Dividends are payable
in cash with any accumulated unpaid dividends bearing interest at 13% per annum. The Series B Preferred Stock ranks junior in
right of payment to all indebtedness of Adelphia. Adelphia has the right to redeem, at its option, all or & portion of the Series B
Preferred Stock at redemption prices that begin at 106.5% of the liquidation preference thereof on July 15, 2002 and decline to
100% of the liquidation preference thereof on July 15, 2008. Adelphia is required to redeem all of the shares of the Series B
Preferred Stock outstanding on July 15, 2009 at a redemption price equal to 100% of the liquidation preference thereof. Any
redemption of the Series B Preferred Stock would require the payment, without duplication, of all accumulated and unpaid
dividends and interest to the date of redemption. The Series B Preferred Stock provides for voting rights in certain circumstances
and contains restrictions and limitations on: (i) dividends and certain other payments and investments; (i) indebtedness; (jii)
mergers and consolidations; and (iv) transactions with affiliates.

Adelphia may, at its option, on any dividend payment date, exchange in whole or in part (subject to certain restrictions),
the then cutstanding shares of Series B Preferred Stock for 13% Senior Subordinated Exchange Debentures due July 15, 2009
whick have provisions consistent with the provisions of the preferred stock. Adelphia accrued cash dividends of $9,480,000
during the year ended December 31, 2002. As a result of the filing of the Debtor’s Chapter 11 Cases, the Company, as of the
Petition Date, discontinued accruing dividends on all of its preferred stock issuances. For additional information, sec Note 2. In
addition, as the Company is not current in its periodic reporting obligations under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the "Exchange Act"), the Company is not in compliance with certain covenants contained in the certificate of
designation for the Series B Preferred Stock. The Series B Preferred Stock and the related accrued dividends are classified as a
liability subject to compromise in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Note §3: Stockholders' Deficit
Common Stock

The Certificate of Incorporation of Adelphia authorizes two classes of $0.01 par value common stock, Class A
Common Stock and Class B Common Stock. Holders of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock vote as a single
class on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders, with each share of Class A Common Stock entitled to one vote and
each share of Class B Common Stock entitled to ten votes, except as described below with respect to the election of one director
by the holders of Class A Common Stock, and as otherwise provided by law. In the annual election of directors, the holders of
Class A Comumon Stock voting as a separate class are entitled to elect one of Adelphia's directors. In addition, each share of
Class B Common Stock is convertible into a share of Class A Common Stock at the option of the holder. In the event a cash
dividend is paid, the holders of Class A Common Stock will be paid 105% of the amount payable per share for each share of
Class B Common Stock. Upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of Adelphia, the holders of Class A Common Stock are
entitled to a preference of $1.00 per share and the amount of all unpaid declared dividends thereon from any funds available
after satisfying the liquidation preferences of preferred sccurities, debt instruments and other senior claims on Adelphia’s assets.
After such amount is paid, holders of Class B Common Stock are entitled to receive $1.00 per share and the amount of all
unpaid declared dividends thereon. Any remaining amount would then be shared ratably by both classes. As of December 31,
2004, there were 74,913,196 shares of Class A Common Stock and 12,159,768 shares of Class B Common Stock reserved for
issuance pursuant to conversion rights of certain of the Company's debt and preferred stock instruments and exercise privileges
under outstanding stock options. In addition, one share of Class A Common Stock is reserved for each share of Class B
Common Stock.

55

F-55



ADELPHIA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Debtors-In-Possession)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—Continued

Outstanding shares of common stock are as follows for the indicated periods:

Class A Class B

Common Stock Common Stock

Outstanding shares, January 1, 2002 ......coccvivmiivniniern v 186,679,834 25,055,365
ISSUANCES .....ooiiieieeieeitetee et ee e e e aeeeere e oe e s eaaen e e eeee s e ees et e s eea e e e eaenraen 40,000,000 —
Acquisitions ............... 2,012,305 —
Exercise of options 100 —
QOutstanding shares, December 31, 2002.........ccocociviiinniniiin e 228,692,239 25,055,365
(8117 SRR 175 —
Outstanding shares, December 31, 2003.......coccoiveineriiinecri oo 228,692,414 25,055,365
Outstanding shares, December 31, 2004 ... 228,692,414 25,055,365

Preferred Stock

General, Adelphia was authorized to issue 50,000,000 shares of $0.01 par value preferred stock at December 31, 2004,
including; (i) 1,500,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock, all of which were exchanged for Series B Preferred Stock in 1997;
(ii) 1,500,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock, all of which were issued and outstanding at December 31, 2004; (iii) 20,000
shares of 8 1/8% Series C Cumulative Preferred Stock ("Series C Preferred Stock™), none of which were outstanding at
December 31, 2004; (iv) 2,875,000 shares of 5 1/2% Series D Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series D Preferred Stock"), all of
which were issued and outstanding at December 31, 2004; (v) 15,800,000 shares of Series E Preferred Stock, 13,800,000 of
which were issued and outstanding at December 31, 2004; and (vi) 23,000,000 shares of 7 1/2% Series F Mandatory Convertible
Preferred Stock ("Series F Preferred Stock™), all of which were issued and outstanding at December 31, 2004.

With respect to dividend distributions and distributions upon liquidation: (i) all series of Adelphia's preferred stock rank
junior to debt instruments and other claims on Adelphia's assets; (ii) the Series B Preferred Stock ranks senior to the Series D
Preferred Stock; (iii) the Series D Preferred Stock ranks senior to the Series E Preferred Stock and Series F Preferred Stock; (iv)
the Series B Preferred Stock ranks equally with the Series F Preferred Stock; and (v) all series of preferred stock rank senior to
the Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock. Although the certificate of designation relating to the Series D
Preferred Stock indicates that the Series D Preferred Stock ranks equally with the Series B Preferred Stock, the Company has not
been able to locate the consent that would have been required to have been obtained from the holders of the Series B Preferred
Stock for this to be the case.

As a result of the filing of the Debtors' Chapter 11 Cases, Adelphia, as of the Petition Dats, discontinued accruing
dividends on all of its outstanding preferred stock. Had the Debtars not filed voluntary petitions under Chapter 11, the total
annual dividends that Adelphia would have accrued on all series of its preferred stock during 2004, 2003 and 2002 would have
been $120,125,000, $120,125,000 and $117,279,000, respectively.

The certificates of designation relating to the Series B Preferred Stock, Series D Preferred Stock, Series E Preferred
Stock and Series F Preferred Stock provide for voting rights in certain limited circumstances, On August 11, 2003, the Company
initiated an adversary proceeding against the holders of such preferred stock seeking, among other things, to enjoin those holders
from exercising purported rights to elect directors to Adelphia's Board due to Adelphia's failure to pay dividends and alleged
breaches of certain covenants contained in applicable certificates of designation. On August 13, 2003, certain preferred
stockholders filed an action in the Delaware Chancery Court seeking a declaratory judgment of their purported right to appoint
two directors to Adelphia's Board (the "Delaware Action”) and the Bankruptcy Court granted Adelphia a temporary restraining
order, which, among other things, stayed the Delaware Action and temporarily enjoined preferred stockholders from exercising
their purported rights to elect direclors to Adelphia's Board. The Delaware Action has since been withdrawn.

The terms of the Series B Preferred Stock are discussed in Note 12, and the terms of the Series D, Series E and Series F
Preferred Stock are discussed below.

Series D Preferred Stock. The Series D Preferred Stock accrues dividends at a rate of 5 1/2% per annum, has an

aggregate liquidation preference of $575,000,000 and is convertible at any time into 7,059,546 shares of Class A Common
Stock. The conversion ratio is subject to adjustment in certain circumstances. Dividends have been accrued in accordance with
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past management practices. Adelphia accrued aggregate cash dividends on the Series D Preferred Stock of $15,285,000 during
2002.

Series I Preferred Stock. The Series E Preferred Stock accrues dividends at a rate of 7 1/2% per annum, has an
aggregate liquidation preference of $345,000,000, subject to adjustment, and is convertible at any time into shares of the
Company's Class A Common Stock at $25.37 or 13,598,700 shares. All outstanding shares of Series E Preferred Stock were
scheduled to be converted into shares of Class A Common Stock on Novemnber 15, 2004, at the then applicable conversion ratio.
The conversion ratio is based upon the prior 20-day average market price of the Company's Class A Common Stock, subject to a
minimum of 13,598,700 shares and a maximum of 16,046,500 sharcs at average market prices above $25.37 or below $21.50,
respectively. Adelphia has entercd into several stipulations postponing, to the extent applicable, the conversion date of both the
Series E Preferred Stock and the Series F Preferred Stock. As a result of the continuing impact of the June 2002 bankruptcy
filing on the Company’s common stock price, the Company expects that the Series E Preferred Stock would convert into the
maximum number of Class A Common Stock shares into which the Series E Preferred Stock may be converted, to the extent
such conversion was not stayed by the commencement of the Chapter 11 Cases, Accordingly, the Company recognized a
beneficial conversion feature of $2,553,500 based upon the expected $21.50 conversion price on its Series E Preferred Stock.
Such deemed dividend has been allocated from the preferred stock carrying value to additional paid-in capital and is being
accrcted, on the interest method, through February 1, 2005, The accretion of the beneficial conversion feature was $1,059,000,
$960,000 and $458,000 in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and has been recorded as part of net loss applicable to common
stockholders in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Dividends have been accrued in accordance with past
management practices. Dividends accrued on the Series E Preferred Stock aggregated $12,578,000 during 2002.

Series F Preferved Stock. On January 22, 2002, and in a related transaction on February 7, 2002, Adelphia issued
23,000,000 shares of Series F Preferred Stock with a liquidation preference of $575,000,000, subject to adjustment. The Series F
Preferred Stock accrues dividends at a rate of 7 1/2% per annum and is convertible at any time into shares of the Company's
Class A Common Stock at $29.99 or 19,172,800 shares. All outstanding shares of Series F Preferred Stock were scheduled to be
converted into shares of Class A Common Stock on February 1, 2005, at the then applicable conversion ratio. The conversion
ratio is based upon the prior 20-day average markei price of the Company's Class A Common Stock, subject to a minimum of
19,172,800 shares and a maximum of 22,818,300 shares at average market prices above $29.99 or below $25.20, respectively.
Adelphia has entered into several stipulations postponing, to the extent applicable, the conversion date of both the Series E
Preferred Stock and the Series F Preferred Stock. As a result of the continuing impact of the June 2002 bankruptcy filing on the
Company's common stock price, the Company expects that the Series F Preferred Stock would convert into the maximum
mumber of Class A Common Stock shares into which the Series F Preferred Stock is convertible. Accordingly, the Company
recognized a bencficial conversion feature of $16,866,000 based upon the expected $25.20 conversion price on its Series F
Preferred Stock. Such deemed dividend has been allocated from the preferred stock carrying value to additional paid-in capital
and is being accreted, on the interest method, through February 1, 2005. The accretion of the beneficial conversion feature was
$6,948,000, $6,357,000 and $3,054,000 in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and has been recorded as part of net loss
applicable to common stockholders in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Dividends have been accrued in
accordance with past management practices. Dividends accrued on the Series F Preferred Stock aggregated $18,208,000 during

2002.
Note 14: Stock Compensation and Employee Benefit Plans
1998 Adelphia Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan

During October 1998, Adelphia adopted its 1998 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan (the "1998 Plan"). The
1998 Plan, which was approved by the Adelphia stockholders, provides for the granting of: (i) options which qualify as
“incentive stock options” within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code; (ii) options which do not so qualify;
(iii) share awards (with or without restriction on vesting); (iv) stock appreciation rights; and (v) stock equivalent awards or
phantom units. The number of shares of Class A Commeon Stock authorized for issuance under the 1998 Plan is 7,500,000.
Options, awards and units may be granted under the 1998 Plan to directors, officers, emplayees and consultants of the Company.
The 1998 Plan provides that incentive stock options must be granted with an exercise price of not less than the fair market value
of the underlying Class A Common Stock on the date of grant. Options outstanding under the 1998 Plan may be exercised by
paying the exercise price per share through various alternative settlement methods. Certain options granted under the 1998 Plan
vested immediately and others vest over periods of up to four years. Generally, options were granted with a purchase price equal
to the fair value of the shares to be purchased as of the date of grant and the options had a maximum term of ten years. Since
2001, no awards have been granted pursuant to the 1998 Plan and the Company does not intend to grant any new awards
pursuant to the 1998 Plan.

57

F-57



ADELPHIA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Debtors-In-Possession)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—Continued

The following table summarizes the Company's stock option activity:

2004 2003 2002
Options WAEP* Options WAEP* Options WAEP*
Options outstanding, beginning of
VAL cereeerermrenerenr e oo e eeeenean 314,374 $42.83 696,663 $48.28 2,482,076 $45.28
Exercised ...ocovvererirerenerenennninnnens — —- — — (100) 8.68
Cancelled........ccovvreicerininnicinns (9,728) 40.51 (382,289) 52,77 (1,785,313) 44.12
Options outstanding, end of year... 304,646 $42.90 314,374 $42.83 696,663 $48.28
Exercisable at end of year............. 292,646 $42.80 278,587 $42.65 544,359 $50.18
* WAEP represents weighted average exercise price.

The following table summarizes information about the Company's outstanding stock options at December 31, 2004:

Options outstanding Options exercisable

Weighted average Weighted average

remaining remaining

Exercise price Number contractual Number of contractual
per share of shares life (years) WAEP* per share shares life (years) WAEP* per share
$8.04-8.68 11,487 45 $8.42 11,487 4.5 $8.42
44.25......... 293.159 6.1 44.25 281,159 6.1 44.25
304,646 6.0 $42.90 292,646 6.0 $42.80

* WAEP represents weighted average exercise price.

Phantom Stock Awards

The Company awarded phantom units for 1998 and 1999 to certain management employees which represented
compensation bonuses based on Class A Common Stock performance. Such awards vested over three years from the date of
grant. A decrease to compensation expense relaled to these phantom units of $1,607,000 was recorded by the Company during
the year ended December 31, 2002. No phantom units were awarded during 2004, 2003 or 2002.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted and instituted an Employee Stock Purchase Plan ("ESPP"). Under the
terms of the ESPP, eligible employees were able to authorize payroll deductions of up to 10% of their base compensation, as
defined, to purchase Class A Common Stock at a price equal to the fair market value of Class A Common Stock as of the last
trading day of each calendar quarter. Shares of Class A Common Stock to be acquired by Participants under the ESPP were
purchased in open market transactions. At the end of the first stock purchase period under the ESPP, the quarter ended March
31, 2002, employees purchased 19,172 shares of Class A Common Stock. The ESPP was terminated effective April 2002.

40! (k) Employee Savings Plan

The Company sponsors a tax-qualified retirement plan governed by Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code,
which provides that eligible full-time employees may contribute up to 25% of their pre-tax compensation subject to certain
limitations. For 2003 and 2002, the Company made matching contributions not exceeding the lesser of 8750 or 1.5% of each
participant's pre-tax compensation. Effective January 1, 2004, the Company's matching contribution was increased to 100% of’
the first 3% and 50% of
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the next 2% of each parlicipant's pre-tax compensation. The Company's contributions were $13,941,000, $4,294,000 and
$3,883,000 during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Short-Term Incentive Plan

The Company maintains a short-term incentive plan (the "STIP"), which is a calendar-year program that provides for
the payment of annual bonuses to employees of the Company based upon the satisfaction of qualitative and quantitative metrics,
as approved by the Compensation Committee of the Board. In general, in addition to certain general/area managers, full-time
employees with a title of director and above are eligible to participate in the STIP. For 2004 and 2003, approximately 350 and
300 employees, respectively, were eligible to participate. Target awards under the STIP are based on a percentage of each
participant's base pay. During the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company accrued $9,614,000 and $7,353,000,
respectively, related to the STIP.

Performance Retention Plan

The Company maintains the Performance Retention Plan (as amended, the "PRP"), which serves to replace
equity-based long-term incentive plans previously maintained by the Company and to encourage key employees to remain with
the Company by providing annual cash incentive awards based on the Company’s performance. Adelphia's CEO and COO do
not pariicipate in the PRP. Target awards range from 25% to 200% of a participant's base salary, and the amount of each award
is dependent on the Company's achievement of certain financial targets. Initial awards vest in 36 monthly installments starting at
the end of each month one year following the month in which the participant begins participaticn in the PRP. Subsequent awards
vest in 36 monthly installments starting as of January 31 of the year immediately following the plan year in which the award was
granted. The PRP provides that in the event of a Change in Control (as defined in the PRP), the Compensation Committee of the
Board may provide, in its discretion, that all awards (both vested and unvested) will be paid in cash on the date of such
consummation of the Change in Control, In the event that the Compensation Committee of the Board makes such a
determination, the unvested portion of all awards will be paid based on either the value established for each annual grant based
on performance or 100% achievement of any unvalued grants. During the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the
Company accrued $8,822,000 and $2,323,000, respectively, related to the PRP.

Key Employee Retention Programs

On September 21, 2004, the Bankruptcy Court entered orders avthorizing the Debtors to implement and adopt (i) the
Adeclphia Communications Corporation Key Employee Continuity Program (as amended, the "Stay Plan”) and (ii) the Adelphia
Communications Corporation Sale Bonus Program (as amended, the "Sale Plan"). On April 20, 20035, the Bankruptcy Court
entered an order authorizing the Debtors to implement and adopt the Adelphia Communications Corporation Executive Vice
President Continuity Program (the "EVP Stay Plan" and, together with the Stay Plan and the Sale Plan, the "Continuity
Program"), and authorized the Executive Vice Presidents participation in the Sale Plan (the "EVP KERP Order"). The
Continuity Program is designed to motivate certain employees (other than the CEO and COO of the Company) to remain with
the Company. With respect to the Continuity Program, in the event that a Change in Control (as defined in the EVP Stay Plan,
the Stay Plan and the Sale Plan) occurs, and all of the bonuses under the Continuity Program are payable, the total cost of the
Continuity Program could reach approximately $34,100,000 (including approximately $1,400,000 payable under the EVP Stay
Plan, approximately $9,800,000 payable under the Stay Plan, approximately $19,900,000 payable under the Sale Plan (including
$1,850,000 payable to certain Executive Vice Presidents under the Sale Plan pursuant to the EVP KERP Order) and a
$3,000,000 pool from which the CEO of Adelphia may grant additional stay or sale bonuses).

EVP Stay Plan. Subject to the terms of the EVP Stay Plan, certain cmployees of the Company with the title of
Executive Vice President (the "EVP Stay Participants”) are participants in the EVP Stay Plan and are eligible to receive a cash
payment in the form of a bonus (the "EVP Stay Bonus"} if, subject to certain limited exceptions, the EVP Stay Participants
continue their active employment with the Company from the date such EVP Stay Participants are notified in writing that they
have been selected for coverage under the EVP Stay Plan to the payroll date immediately following the carlier of the Effective
Date or 2 Change in Control Date (as defined in the EVP Stay Plan). The CEO of Adelphia selects the EVP Stay Participants
and, subject to the review and approval of the Compensation Committee of the Board, establishes the amount of each EVP Stay
Participant's EVP Stay Bonus.
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Stay Plan. Subject to the terms of the Stay Plan, certain employees of the Company (other than employees who
participate in the EVP Stay Plan) (the "Stay Participants") may be eligible to receive a cash payment in the form of a bonus (the
"Stay Bonus") if, subject to certain limited exceptions, the Stay Participants continue their active employment with the Company
or their successors from the date such Stay Participants are notified in writing that they have been selected for coverage under
the Stay Plan to the payroll date immediately following the nine-month anniversary of such date. The CEO of Adelphia selects
the Stay Participants and, subject to the review and approval of the Compensation Committee of the Board, establishes the
amount of each Stay Participant's Stay Bonus. During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company accrued $3,302,000
related to the Stay Plan.

Sale Plan. Under the terms of the Sale Plan, certain employees of the Company (the "Sale Participants”) may be
eligible to receive cash payments in the form of a bonus (the "Sale Bonus") if, subject to certain limited exceptions, the Sale
Participants continue their active employment with the Company or its successors until, and following, a Change in Control (as
defined in the Sale Plan). Subject to certain exceptions, 50% of the Sale Bonus will be paid to eligible Sale Participants within
10 business days of the effective date of the Change in Control and the remaining 50% of the Sale Bonus will be paid to eligible
Sale Participants upon a date that is within 10 business days of the six-month anniversary of such effective date. However, ifa
Sale Participant is terminatcd following a Change in Control without cause or due to death or disability or by the Sale Participant
for "good reason” (as defined in the Sale Plan) after the required payment date for the first installment of the Sale Bonus, but
prior to the payment date for the second installment of the Sale Bonus, then the Sale Participant will be entitled to receive any
unpaid amounts of such bonus. The CEO of Adelphia will select the Sale Participants and, subject to the review and approval of
the Compensation Cominittee of the Board, will establish the amount of each Sale Participant's Sale Bonus, subject to any
aggregate amounts available under the Sale Plan. As of December 31, 2004, no bonuses had been granted under the Sale Plan,

Form of Amended and Restated Employment Agreement and New Form of Employment Agreement. The Company is seeking to
(i) amend and restate all existing employment agreements ("Existing Employment Agreements”) that the Company has with
Vice Presidents ("VP") and Senior Vice Presidents (“SVP") by entering into the Form of Amended and Restated Employment
Agreements (as approved by the Bankruptcy Court) with such VPs and SVPs and (ii) enter into a New Form Employment
Agreement (as approved by the Bankruptcy Court) with VPs that are not currently a party to an Existing Employment
Agreement and all new employees hired at the level of VP or SVP. As a result, all eligible VPs and SVPs will have agreements
that reflect certain recently approved modifications, including (i) severance benefits upon resignation for "good reason” (as such
term is defined in the relevant agreement); (ii) non-competition covenants (subject to applicable lawy); (iii) reimbursement for
certain relocation expenses in the case of certain VPs and SVPs that are new hires or have relocated since March 2003 and are
terminated under certain circumstances; and (iv) healthcare continuation coverage following a termination by the Company
without Cause or by the VP or SVP with "good reascn” for a period that is coterminous with their respective severance benefit.
Certain VPs and SVPs that enter into the Form of Amended and Restated Employment Agreement or the New Form
Employment Agreement, as the case may be, may also be eligible to participate in the Continuity Program and/or the PRP.

Amended and Resiated Severance Program. Employees of the Company are cutrently afforded severance benefits
either pursuant to Adelphia's existing severance plan, the Amended and Restated Adelphia Communications Corporation
Severance Plan (the "Severance Plan"), or pursuant to an Existing Employment Agreement with the Company. Except for
certain limited exceptions, all full-time employees of Adelphia and certain affiliates that do not have Existing Employment
Agreements are covered by the Severance Plan, which provides for severance pay in the event of a termination without "Cause”
(as defined in the Severance Plan). The modifications to the Severance Plan and the form of employment agreements (as
described in the above paragraph) that were approved by the Bankruptcy Court pursuant to the order cntered September 21, 2004
could cost the Company a maximum of $9,973,000 (including $5,723,000 in enhanced severance benefits and healthcare
continuation, and $4,250,000 in rclocation reimbursement expenses) if all Director-level employees, VPs and SVPs are to be
involuntarily separated from the Company and all eligible VPs and SVPs qualified for the maximum amount of relocation
reimbursement. Certain executive officers of Adelphia are not eligible to participate in the Severance Plan.

Note 15: Income Taxes

The Company files a consolidated federal income tax return with all of its 80%-or-more-owned subsidiaries.
Consolidated subsidiaries in which the Company owns less than 80% each file a separate income tax return. The income tax
expense of two of the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities which are subject to income tax has been included below. The components
of income tax benefit (expense) are as follows (amounts in thousands):
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Year ended December 31
2004 2003 2002
Current:

FOAETAL . ....oiiiiiiieiecrieriee ettt e s ese s s e tae s st beebe s avtas sascevesssnesnren $ — — $ 1,957
AR vveeceeeieiree e bt escenert e eeeenree s et ae e bae s e b baeebe e i b s e e eree s e rbe e ersaeneneeenren 8,796 8,468 1,585

Deferred:
T 1<) o OO O U USSR (5,220) (109,858) (83,848)
SHALE ..ot eirr i erieesireeeserererrasan s rerasseeeesbeaassaenerresnsbaeassarenrreresenrtenrerasiaenes (776) (15,396) 3.854
Income tax benefit (EXPEnse) ....coovveeeririierirnerceerreree e e resr e 3 2,800 (116.786) $ (76,452)

Income tax benefit (expense) is included in the consolidated financial statements as follows (amounts in thousands):

Year ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Loss from continuing operations before cumulative effects of accounting
CRATIZES ..o civvirriveiie e et s e e te e ces e et ae e s rbeessssesnebssas ssesesenbenrenssanntnnen $ 2,843 $ (117,378) $ (76,620)
Other comprehensive INCOME (10SS) ..veerereririnereireesrenes e e e enrereenes 43 592 168
Income tax benefit (EXPense) ...ovveeverrricirnincerinreressrre s eeeesiceearinnsns $ 2,800 $ (116,786) $ (76,452)

Significant components of the Company's net deferred tax liability are as follows (amounts in thousands):

December 31,
2004 2003
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and SQUIPIENL. .......covirrivrietinrn oo saraees $  (433,035) $  (333,290)
Intangible assets other than goodwill....................c... (702,013) (691,831)
Interest expense not accrued due to bankruptcy filing... (705,322) (473,465)
INVESHMIENLS .. eeieree et cr e e ettt e e e st e st sae s e s cecen e ea s ae e (39.962) (32,154)
(1,880.332) (1.530,740)
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss ("NOL") Carryforwards..........cccovmeeenererieniniesinsecresneccennnens 4,187,286 3,381,295
Provision for uncollectible amounts due from the Rigas Family and Rigas
Family ENHHIES. .....oooveeein ittt 891,174 1,146,072
Reorganization expenses due to bankruptcy 62,289 43,691
Deferred programming launch incentives ........cocovvrceine e 42,341 60,650
GoodWill With taX DasiS.........ccieiirirerirsiesiiree e eecersere e snesee e e e s enenessrneas 356,562 369,484
Capital loss carryforward 54,660 54,660
Govemnment settlement............. 247,361 —
OLher....c.coivereenene v 28.846 31,378
5,870,519 5,087,230
Valualion alloWanCe......ccc. et et re s rsesss s e b i {4.715.603) (4.275.754)
1,154916 811,476
Net deferred tax Hability.......ccovrceviecrimminnrecrenieennns $ (725.416) $ (719,264)
Current portion of net deferred tax liability........... 4,065 3,380
Noncurrent portion of net deferred tax liability {729.481) (722.644)
Net deferred tax HabIlity.........ccccovierirnrenr ettt s § (725416) 3 (719.264)
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The net change in the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets is as follows (amounts in thousands):

December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Change in valuation allowance, beginning of year 3 — 3 — (729,479)
Other changes in valuation allowance ........ccooeenveirivirnvceiieceecine. (438.602) (291,168) (1,691,143)
Change in valuation allowance included in income tax expense....... (438,602) (291,168) (2,420,622)
Acquisitions and dispositions — — 838,576
Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities 1.247) — —
Total change in valuation allowance............eevinininnicencannnn, $ (439,849) $ (291,168) (1,582,046)

Due to a lack of earnings history, current bankruptcy situation, and impairment charges recognized with respect to
franchise costs and goodwill, the Company cannet rely on forecasts of future earnings as a means to realize its deferred tax
assets. The Company has determined that it is more likely than not that it will not realize certain deferred tax assets and,
accordingly, has recorded valuation allowances associated with these deferred tax assets. As a result of the adoption of SFAS
No. 142, effective January 1, 2002, the period of reversal for deferred tax liabilities related to franchise costs and goodwill can
no longer be reasonably estimated. Consequently, the Company recorded an additional valuation allowance of $729,479,000 as
the Company may not rely on the reversal of deferred tax liabilities associated with franchise costs and goodwill as a means to
realize the Company's deferred tax assets.

During 2004, the Company re-evaluated the impact on its valuation allowance due to the timing of its reversing
temporary differences, including its policy of netting the effect of reversing temporary differences associated with customer
relationship intangible assets with intangible assets that have indefinite lives. As a result of this evaluation, the Company
changed the expectations for scheduling the expected reversal of its deferred tax liabilities associated with these intangible assets
and included in its income tax benefit for 2004 a $166,000,000 reduction in the valuation allowances on deferred tax assets
related to current expectations for the reversal of its deferred tax liabilities.

SFAS No. 109, dccounting for Income Taxes, requires that any valuation allowance established for an acquired entity's
deductible temporary differences at the date of acquisition that is subsequently recognized, first reduces goodwill and other
noncurrent assets related to the acquisition and then reduces income tax expense. The amount of the valuation allowance for
which subsequently recognized tax benefits will be allocated to reduce goodwill or other intangible assets of an acquired entity is

$638,136,000.

The difference between the expected income tax benefit at the U.S. statutory federal income tax rate of 35% and the
actual income tax benefit (expense) is as follows (amounts in thousands):

Year ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Expected income tax benefit at the statutory federal income tax
TALE .. ceeeeeeire et veetbasreses e renneeeneseesb e re st bn s st e es ek s $ 670475 - 8§ 246,948 $ 2,492,735
Change in valuation allowance—federal ...........ccoooeoieveniniecnne (371,196) (287,998) (2,136,135)
Change in valuation allowance—state.......o.cooreiieiinniein e (67,406) (3,170) (284,487)
State tax benefit, net of federal expense........c.ccocvvvvieeeiciie s 72,394 (6,798) 289,350
Nondeductible goodwill amortization and impairment....... — — (328,900}
Minority's interest and share of losses of equity afﬁllates (14,186) (8,338) (22,428)

Cumulative effect of accountmg change duc to new accountmg
pronouncement... (206,074) — —
Expiration of NOL (79,942) (61,678) (24,796)
(07111 U TITOU (1.265) 4,248 (61.791)
Income tax benefit (EXPENSe) ........oovmvvicriiniieiiienieececenenns : 3 2800 $ (116,786) $  (76,452)

In the event the Debtors emerge from bankruptcy: (i) these NOL carryforwards are expected to be reduced or
completely climinated by debt cancellation income that might result under the bankruptcy proceedings; (ii) other tax attributes,
including the
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Company's tax basis in its property and equipment, could be reduccd; and (iii) a statutory ownership change, as defined in
Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code, would occur upon issuance of new common stock to claimholders pursvant to any
approved plan of reorganization. This ownership change may limit the annual usage of any remaining tax attributes that were
generated prior to the change of ownership. The amount of the limitation will be determinable at the time of the ownership

change.

As of December 31, 2004, the Company had NOL carryforwards of approximately $10,700,000,000 and
$8,500,000,000 for federal and state income tax purposes, respectively, expiring from 2005 to 2023. In addition, the Company
has a capital loss carryforward of approximately $136,000,000, expiring from 2006 to 2008. Consolidated subsidiaries in which
the Company owns less than an 80% interest had NOL carryforwards of $89,000,000 for federal and state income tax purposes
expiring from 2004 to 2023. These amounts are based on the income tax returns filed for 2003 and certain adjustments to be
reflected in amended returns that are expected to be filed for the 2003 tax year and prior periods. The Company expects to file
amended federal and state income tax returns for 1999 through 2004. Such returns are subject to examination by federal and
state taxing authorities, generally, for a period of three years after the NOL carryforward is utilized.

The Company believes that adequate provision has been made for tax positions that may be challenged by taxing
authorities. While it is often difficult to predict the final outcome or the timing of resolution of any particular tax matter, the
Company believes that the reserves reflect the probable outcome of known tax contingencies. Unfavorable settlement of any
particular issue would require the use of cash. Favorable resolution could result in reduced income tax expense reported in the
consolidated financial statements in the future. The tax reserves are generally presented in the balance sheet within other
noncurrent liabilities. Certain tax reserve items may be settled through the bankruptcy process which could result in reduced
income tax expense reported in the consolidated financial staternents in the future.

The Company's income tax benefit (expense) for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 has been
calculated assuming the Company will continue as a going concern and does not reflect the impact the Sale Transaction may
have on the Company's ability to utilize its NOL carryforwards or other tax attributes. If the Sale Transaction is consummated, a
significant portion of the deferred tax assets will be realized and a significant portion of the valuation allowance will be released.

Note 16: Segments

The Company's only reportable operating segment is its "cable” segment. The cable segment includes the Company's
cable system operations (including consolidated subsidiaries, equity method investments and variable interest entities) that
provide the distribution of analog and digital video programming and HS! services to customers for a monthly fee through a
network of fiber optic and coaxial cables. This segment also includes the Company's media services (advertising) sales business.
Upon the adoption of FIN 46-R on January 1, 2004, the reportable cable segment also includes the operations of the Rigas
Co-Borrowing Entities. See Note 5 for additional information. The reportable cable segment includes five operating regions that
have been combined as one reportable segment, because all of such regions have similar economic characteristics. The Company
identifies reportable segments as those consolidated segments that represent 10% or more of the combined revenue, net earnings
or loss, or total assets of all of the Company's operating segments as of and for the period ended on the most recent balance sheet
date presented. Operating segments that do not meet this threshold are aggregated for segment reporting purposes within the
"corporate and other" column.
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Selected financial information concerning the Company's current operating segments is presented below for the
indicated periods (amounts in thousands): :

Corporate

Cable and other Eliminations Total

Operating and Capital Expenditure
Data:

Year ended December 31, 2004:
REVENUE..ceieireitree e ereeirncenren eeenns $ 4,103,339 $ 40,049 b — $ 4,143,388
Operating 10Ss .....ccocceeuennn. (117,073) 47,931) — (165,004)
Capital expenditures (764,315) (56,598) — (820,913)
Year ended December 31, 2003:
REVENUE....cocvemiiieicriireieeeercearee e ean $ 3,524,021 $ 449% $ — $ 3,569,017
Operating 10SS ......covceeomrceviieiiniies (120,788) (27,701) — (148,489)
Capital expenditures .........c.ccovivceinennn. (721,588) (1,933) — (723,521)
Year ended December 31, 2002:
REVENUE......ovevierierareie e $ 3,167,680 $ 48271 3 — $  3,215951
Operating loss .......... (2,870,017) (1,839,672) — (4,709,689)
Capital expenditures (1,225,644) (10,240) — (1,235,884)
Balance Sheet Information:
Total asscts
As of December 31, 2004 $ 12,584,147 $ 4,889,623 $ (4,375,582) $ 13,098,188
As of December 31, 2003 12,672,473 4,250,691 (3,726,423) 13,196,741

The Company did not derive more than 10% of its revenue from any one customer during 2004, 2003 and 2002. The
Company's long-lived assets related to its foreign operations and investments were $6,394,000 and $9,837,000, as of December
31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The Company's revenue related to its foreign operations was $13,412,000, $10,159,000 and
$7,235,000 doring 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The Company's assets and revenue related Lo its foreign operations and
investments were not significant to the Company's financial position or results of operations, respectively, during any of the
periods presented.
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Note 17: Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments

Future minimum lease payments under noncancelable capital and operating leases as of December 31, 2004, are set
forth below (amounts in thousands):

Minimum Lease Commitments

Year ended December 31, Capital Operating
2005 .1 ettt etee et re e e e e e e a e e et ek e e e e er e st b oo ne e eb s et £ et et e an $ 23,801 $ 20,550
2006, ..ottt et er et e e s et e st et et st e e e ee e et ehe st e b et e et ems e e b e e e enneen e aeae 17,206 16,744
2007 - etttk h e ae et et e ne g e e Rt et e b et e sen e e e e sre e n e ae e 259 13,638
2008 etireeetriiiererr e e bt eae e e et e sa e b pa b e s e saseeaee et e e eneeh e Rt s e ses e r et e anesResan e anean e 10,911
20090 e e s — 8,412
Thereafter.....ovveeeeiiee s esaees e srae e senr e e e s esee e — 40,157

Total minimum 1€aS€ PAYIIENIS ......ovvviiriiiiiires it e e s e $ 41266 § 110412

Less:

Amount representing interest ... e (1,609
Total.ecoee e $ 39,657
Less current portion ... $ (39657

Noncurrent portion .... $ —

Subject to the approval of the Bankruptcy Court, the Company may reject pre-petition executory contracts and
unexpired leases. As such, the Company expects that its liabilities pertaining to lcases, and the related amounts, may change
significantly in the future. In addition, it is expected that, in the normal course of business, expiring leases will be renewed or
replaced by Icases on other properties.

The Company rents office and studio space, tower sites, and space on utility poles under leases with terms which are
generally one to five years. Rental expense for the indicated periods is set forth below (amounts in thousands):

Year ended December 31

$ 64,135
$ 61,160
§ 59,758

The Company's cable systems are typically constructed and operated under the authority of nonexclusive permits or
"franchises" granted by local and/or state governmental authorities. Franchises contain varying provisions relating to the
construction and/or operation of cable systems, including, in certain cases, the imposition of requirements to rebuild or upgrade
cable systems or (o extend the cable network to new residential developments. The Company's franchiscs also typically provide
for periedic payinents of fees of not more than 5% of gross revenue in the applicable franchise area to the governmental
authority granting the franchise. Additionally, many franchises require payments to the franchising authority to find the
construction or improvement of facilities that are used to provide public, education and governmental ("PEG") access channels.
The Company's minimum commitments under franchise agreements, including the estimated cost of fulfilling rebuild, upgrade
and network extension commitments, and the fixed minimum amounts payable to franchise authorities for PEG access channels,
are set forth in the following table. The amounts set forth in the table below do not include the variable franchise fee and PEG
commitments that are described in the paragraph following this table (amounts in thousands):
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Year ended December 31,

25,485
18,387
37,658
12,497
10,185

1,707

(=R R R I )

TRETCATIET. v eteeereve et cen e eeeees ettt e s e e s s s een easmeeees e s e ssseeaassaeseasmee e seasssssaeenns e nsaeass s e e enaeesrbarennreresebas s baeesasennn

As described above, the Company is also obligated to make variable payments to franchise authorities for franchise
fees and PEG access channels that are dependent on the amount of revenue generated or the number of subscribers served within
the applicable franchise area. Such variable payments aggregated $130,073,000, $114,725,000 and $106,767,000 during 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively.

The Company pays programming and license fees under multi-year agreements with expiration datcs ranging through
2014. The amounts paid under these agreements are typically based on per customer fees, which may escalate over the term of
the agreements. In certain cases, such per customer fees are subject to volume or channel line-up discounts and other
adjustments. The Company incurred total programming expenses of $1,149,168,000, $1,056,820,000 and $958,485,000 during
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Contingencies

Reorganization Expenses due to Bankruptcy and Professional Fees

The Company is currently aware of certain success fees that potentially could be paid upon the Company's emergence
from bankruptcy to third party financial advisers retained by the Company and Committees in connection with the Chapter 11
Cases. Currently, these success fees are estimated to be between $6,500,000 and $19,950,000 in the aggregate. In addition, the
CEOQ and the COO of the Company are eligible to receive equity awards of Adelphia stock with a minimum aggregate fair value
of $17,000,000 upon the Debtors' emergence from bankruptcy. The value of such equity awards will be determined based on the
average trading price of the post-emergence common stock of Adelphia during the 15 trading days immediately preceding the
90th day following the date of emergence. These equity awards, which will be subject to vesting and trading rcstrictions, may be
increased up to a maximum aggregate value of $25,500,000 at the discretion of the Board. As no plan of reorganization has been
confirmed by the Bankruptcy Court, no accrual for such contingent payments or equity awards has been recorded in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements,

Letters of Credit

The Company has issued standby letters of credit for the benefit of franchise authorities and other parties, most of
which have been issued to an intermediary surety bonding company. Al such letters of credit will expire when the Second
Extended DIP Facility expires unless adequately collateralized. Unless otherwise amended or extended, the Second Extended
DIP Facility will expire no later than March 31, 2006. At December 31, 2004, the aggregate principal amount of Ictters of credit
issued by the Company was $118,342,000 of which $117,452,000 was issued under the First Extended DIP Facility and
$890,000 was collateralized by cash. Letters of credit issued under the DIP facilities reduce the amount that may be borrowed
under the DIP facilities.

Litigation Matters

General. The Company follows SFAS No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies, in determining its accruals and
disclosures with respect to loss contingencies. Accordingly, estimated losses from loss contingencies are accrued by a charge to
income when information available indicates that it is probable that an asset had been impaired or a liability had been incurred
and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. If a loss contingency is not probable or reasonably estimable, disclosure
of the loss contingency is made in the financial statements when it is reasonably possible that a loss may be incurred.

SEC Civil Action and DoJ Investigation. On July 24, 2002, the SEC Civil Action was filed against Adelphia, certain
members of the Rigas Family and others, alleging various securities fraud and improper books and records claims arising out of
actions allegedly taken or directed by certain members of the Rigas Family who held all of the senior executive positions at
Adelphia and constituted five of the nine members of Adelphia's board of directors (nonc of whom remain with the Company).
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On December 3, 2003, the SEC filed a proof of claim in the Chapter 11 Cases against Adelphia for, among other
things, pcnalties, disgorgement and prejudgment interest in an unspecified amount. The staff of the SEC told the Company's
advisors that its asserted claims for disgorgement and civil penalties under various legal theories could amount to billions of
dollars. On July 14, 2004, the Creditors’ Commiftee initiated an adversary proceeding seeking, in effect, to subordinate the SEC's
claims based on the SEC Civil Action.

On April 25, 2005, after extensive negotiations with the SEC and the U.S. Attorney, the Company entered into the
Non-Frosecution Agreement, pursuant to which the Company agreed, among other things: (i) to contribute $715,000,000 in
value to a fund to be established and administered by the United States Attorney General and the SEC for the benefit of investors
harmed by the activities of prior management (the "Restitution Fund™); (ii) to continue to cooperate with the U.S. Attorney until
the later of April 25, 2007, or the date upon which all prosccutions arising out of the conduct described in the Rigas Criminal
Action (as described below) and SEC Civil Action are final; and (iii) not to assert claims against the Rigas Family except for
John J. Rigas, Timothy J. Rigas and Michael J. Rigas (together, the "Excluded Parties”), provided that Michael J. Rigas wiil
cease io be an Excluded Party if all currently pending criminal proceedings against him are resolved without a felony conviction
on a charge involving fraud or false statements (other than false statements to the U.S. Attorney or the SEC).

The Company's contribution to the Restitution Fund will consist of stock, future proceeds of litigation and, assuming
consummation of the Sale Transaction (or another sale generating cash of at least $10 billion), cash. In the event of a sale
generating both stock and at least $10 billion in cash, as contemplated in the Sale Transaction, the components of the Company's
contribution to the Restitution Fund will consist of $600,000,000 in cash and stock (with at least $200,000,000 in cash) and 50%
of tize first $230,000,000 of future proceeds, if any, from certain litigation against third parties who injured thc Company. If,

~zver, the Sale Transaction (or another sale) is not consummated and instead the Company emerges from bankruptcy as an
independent enfity, the $600,000,000 payment by the Company will consist entirely of stock in the reorganized Adelphia, Unless
extended on consent of the U.S. Attorney and the SEC, which consent may not be unreasonably withheld, the Company must
make these payments on or before the earlier of: (i) October 15, 2006; (ii) 120 days after confirmation of a stand-alone plan of
reorganization; or (iif) seven days after the first distribution of stock or cash to creditors under any plan of reorganization. The
Company recorded charges of $425,000,000 and $175,000,000 during 2004 and 2002, respectively, related to the
Non-Frosecution Agreement. Such amounts are reflecied in other expense, net in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations.

The U.S. Attorney agreed: (i) not to prosecute Adelphia or specified subsidiaries of Adelphia for any conduct (other
than criminal tax violations) related to the Rigas Criminal Action (defined below) or the allegations contained in the SEC Civil
Actior; (i) not to use information obtained through the Company’s cooperation with the U.S, Attorney to criminally prosecute
the Comnpany for tax violations; and (iii) to convey to the Company all of the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities forfeited by the Rigas
Family and Rigas Family Entities, certain specified real estate forfeited by the Rigas Family and any securities of the Company
that were directly or indirectly owned by the Rigas Family prior to forfeiture. The U.S. Attorney agreed with the Rigas Family
not to require forfeiture of Coudersport and Bucktail (which together served approximately 5,000 subscribers (unaudited) in July
2005). A condition precedent to the Company's obligation to make the contribution to the Restitution Fund described in the
preceding paragraph is the Company's receipt of title to the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities, certain specified real estate and any
securities described above forfeited by the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities, free and clear of all liens, claims,
encumbrances, or adverse interests. The forfeited Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities anticipated to be conveyed to the Company,
represent the overwhelming majority of the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities' subscribers and value.

Also on April 25, 2005, the Company consented to the entry of a final judgment in the SEC Civil Action resolving the
SEC's claims against the Company. Pursuant to this agreement, the Company will be permanently enjoined from violating
various provisions of the federal securities laws, and the SEC has agreed that if the Company makes the $715,000,000
contribution to the Restitution Fund, then the Company will not be required to pay disgorgement or a civil monetary penalty to
satisfy the SEC's claims.

Pursuant to letter agreements with TW NY and Comcast, the U.S. Attorney has agreed, niotwithstanding any failure by
the Company to comply with the Non-Prosecution Agreement, that it will not criminally prosecute any of the entities or their
subsidiaries purchased from the Company by TW NY or Comcast (the "Transferred Joint Venture Entities") pursuant to the Sale
Transaction. Under such letter agreements, each of TW NY and Comecast have agreed that following the closing of the Salc
Transaction they will cooperate with the relevant governmental authorities' requests for information about the Company's
operaiions, finances and corporate governance between 1997 and confirmation of the Plan. The sole and exclusive remedy

against
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TW NY or Comcast for breach of any obligation in the letter agreements is a civil action for breach of contract seeking specific
performance of such obligations. In addition, TW NY and Comcast entered into letter agreements with the SEC agreeing that
upon and after the closing of the Sale Transaction, TW NY, Comcast and their respective affiliates (including the Transferred
Joint Venture Entities) will not be subject to, or have any obligation under, the final judgment consented to by the Company in
the SEC Civil Action.

The Non-Prosecution Agreement was subject to the approval of, and has been approved by, the Bankruptcy Court.
Adelphia's consent to the final judgment in the SEC Civil Action was subject to the approval of, and has been approved by, both
the Bankruptcy Court and the District Court. Various parties have challenged and sought appellate review or reconsideration of
the orders of the Bankruptcy Court and the District Court approving these settlements. The order of the District Court approving
Adelphia’s consent to the final judgment in the SEC Civil Action has not been appealed. Although appeals of the Bankruptcy
Court's order are still pending, the appeals of the District Court's approval of the Government-Rigas Settlement Agreement
(defined below) and the creation of the Restitution Fund have been denied by the United States Court of Appeals for the Second
Circuit (the "Second Circuit"). That denial is currently the subject of 2 pending request for full court review by the Second
Circuit.

Adelphia's Lawsuit Against the Rigas Family. On July 24, 2002, Adelphia filed a complaint in the Bankruptcy Court
against John J. Rigas, Michael J. Rigas, Timothy J. Rigas, James P. Rigas, James Brown, Michael C. Mulcahey, Peter L.
Venetis, Doris Rigas, Ellen Rigas Venetis and the Rigas Family Entities (the "Rigas Civil Action"). This action generally alleged
the defendants misappropriated billions of dollars from the Company in breach of their fiduciary duties to Adelphia. On
November 15, 2002, Adelphia filed an amended complaint against the defendants that expanded upon the facts alleged in the
original complaint and alleged violations of the Racketeering Influenced and Corrupt Organizations ("RICO™) Act, breach of
fiduciary duty, sccurities fraud, fraudulent concealment, fraudulent misrepresentation, conversion, waste of corporate assets,
breach of contract, unjust enrichment, fraudulent conveyance, constructive trust, inducing breach of fiduciary duty, and a request
for an accounting (the "Amended Complaint"). The Amended Complaint sought relief in the form of, among other things, treble
and punitive damages, disgorgement of monies and sccurities obtained as a consequence of the Rigas Family's improper conduct
and attorneys' fees.

On April 25, 2005, Adelphia and the Rigas Family entered into a settlement agreement with respect to the Rigas Civil Action
(the "Adelphia-Rigas Settlement Agreement"), pursuant to which Adelphia agreed, among other things: (i) to pay $11,500,000to a
legal defense fund for the benefit of the Rigas Family; (ii) to provide management services to Coudersport and Bucktail for an interim
period through and including December 31, 2005 ("Interim Management Services"); (jii) to indemnify Coudersport and Bucktail, and
the Rigas Family's (other than the Excluded Parties’) interest therein, against claims asserted by the lenders under the Co-Borrowing
Facilities with respect to such indebtedness up to the fair market value of those entities (without regard to their obligations with respect
to such indebtedness); (iv) to provide certain members of the Rigas Family with certain indemnities, reimbursements or other
protections in connection with certain third party claims arising out of Company litigation, and in connection with claims against
certain members of the Rigas Family by any of the Tele-Media Joint Ventures or Century/ML Cable; and (v) within ten business days
of the date on which the Forfeiture Order is entered, dismiss the Rigas Civil Action except for claims against the Excluded Parties. The
Rigas Family agreed: (i) to make certain tax elections, under certain circumstances, with respect to the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities
(other than Coudersport and Bucktail); (i) to pay Adelphia five percent of the gross operating revenue of Coudersport and Bucktail for
the Interim Management Services; and (iii) to offer employment to certain Coudersport and Bucktail employees on terms and
conditions that, in the aggregate, are no less favorable to such employees (other than any employees who were expressly excluded by
written notice to Adelphia received by July 1, 2005) than their terms of employment with the Company.

Pursuant to the Adelphia-Rigas Settlement Agreement, on June 21, 2005, the Company filed a dismissal with prejudice
of all claims in this action except against the Excluded Parties.

This settlemnent was subject to the approval of, and has been approved by, the Bankruptcy Court. Various parties have
challenged and sought appetlate review or reconsideration of the order of the Bankruptey Court appraving this settlement. The
appeals of the Bankruptcy Court's approval remain pending.

Rigas Criminal Action. Tn connection with an investigation conducted by the DoJ, on July 24, 2002, certain members of the
Rigas Family and certain alleged co-conspirators were arrested, and on September 23, 2002, were indicted by a grand jury on charges
including fraud, securities fraud, bank fraud and conspiracy to commit fraud (the "Rigas Criminal Action”). On November 14, 2002,
one of the Rigas Family's alleged co-conspirators, James Brown, pleaded guilty to one count each of conspiracy, securities fraud and
bank fraud. On January 10, 2003, another of the Rigas Family's alleged co-conspirators, Timothy Werth, who had not been arrested
with the others on July 24, 2002, pleaded guilty to one count each of securities fraud, conspiracy to commit securities fraud, wire fraud
and bank fraud. The trial in the Rigas Criminal Action began on February 23, 2004 in the District Court. On July 8,
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2004, the jury returned a partial verdict in the Rigas Criminal Action. John J. Rigas and Timothy J. Rigas were each found guilty
of conspiracy (one count), bank fraud (two counts), and securities fraud (15 counts) and not guilty of wire fraud (five counts).
Michael J. Mulcahey was acquitted of all 23 counts against him. The jury found Michael J. Rigas not guilty of conspiracy and
wire fraud, but remained undecided on the securities fraud and bank fraud charges against him. On July 9, 2004, the court
declared a mistrial on the remaining charges against Michael J. Rigas after the jurors were unable to reach a verdict as to those
charges. The bank fraud charges against Michael J. Rigas have since been dismissed with prejudice. The District Court has set
January 9, 2006 as the date for the retrial of Michael J. Rigas on the securities fraud charges. On March 17, 2005, the District
Court denied the motion of John J. Rigas and Timothy J. Rigas for a new trial. On June 20, 2005, John J. Rigas and Timothy J.
Rigas were convicted and sentenced to 15 years and 20 years in prison, respectively. John J. Rigas and Timothy J. Rigas have
appealed thcir convictions and sentences and remain free on bail pending resolution of their appeals.

The indictment against the Rigas Family included a request for entry of a money judgment in an amount cxcceding
$2,500,000,000 and for entry of an order of forfeiture of all interests of the convicted Rigas defendants in the Rigas Family
Entities. On December 10, 2004, the DoJ filed an application for a preliminary order of forfeiture finding John J. Rigas and
Timothy J. Rigas jointly and severally liable for personal money judgments in the amount of $2,533,000,000.

On April 25, 2003, the Rigas Family and the U.S. Attorney entered into a seitlement agreement (the
"Government-Rigas Settlement Agreement™), pursuant to which the Rigas Family agreed to forfeit: (i) all of the Rigas
Co-Borrowing Entities with the exception of Coudersport and Bucktail; (ii) certain specified real estate and (iii) all securities in
the Company dircctly or indirectly owned by the Rigas Family. The U.S. Attorney agreed: (i) not to seek additional monetary
penalties from the Rigas Family, including the request for a money judgment as noted above; (ii) from the proceeds of certain
assets forfeited by the Rigas Family, to establish the Restitution Fund for the purpose of providing restitution to holders of the
Company's publicly traded securities; and (iii) to inform the District Court of this agreement at the sentencing of John J. Rigas
and Timothy J. Rigas.

Pursuant to the Forfeiture Order, all right, title and interest of the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities in the Rigas
Co-Borrowing Entities (other than Coudersport and Bucktail), certain specified real estate and any securities of the Company were
forfeited to the United States on June 8, 2005, and such asscts and securities are expected to be conveyed (subject to forfeiture
proceedings before a federal judge to determine if there are any superior claims) to the Company pursuant to the Non-Prosecution
Agreement. On August 19, 2005, the Company filed a petition with the District Court secking an order conveying title to these assets
and securities to the Company. A status report from the government to the District Court regarding the forfeiture proceedings is due on
November 4, 2005. To date, one other petition has been filed, asserting a claim against certain real property.

The Company was not a defendant in the Rigas Criminal Action, but was under investigation by the Dol regarding matters
related to alleged wrongdoing by certain members of the Rigas Family. Upon approval of the Non-Prosecution Agreement, Adelphia
and specified subsidiaries are no longer subject to criminal prosecution (other than for criminal tax violations) by the U.S. Attomey for
any conduct related to the Rigas Criminal Action or the allegations contained in the SEC Civil Action so long as the Company complies
with its obligations under the Non-Prosecution Agreement.

Securities and Derivative Litigation. Ceriain of the Debtors and certain former officers, directors and advisors have been
named as defendants in 2 number of lawsuits alleging violations of federal and state securities laws and related claims. These actions
generally allcge that the defendants made materially misleading statements understating the Company's liabilities and exaggerating the
Company's financial results in violation of securities laws.

In particular, beginning on April 2, 2002, various groups of plaintiffs filed more than 30 class action complaints, purportedly
on behalf of certain of the Company's shareholders and bondholders or classes thereof in federal court in Pennsylvania. Several
non-class action lawsuits were brought on behalf of individuals or small groups of security holders in federal courts in Pennsylvania,
New York, South Carolina and New Jersey, and in state courts in New York, Pennsylvania, California and Texas. Seven derivative
suits were also filed in federal and state courts in Pennsylvania, and four derivative snits were filed in state court in Delaware. On May
6, 2002, a notice and proposed order of dismissal without prejudice was filed by the plaintiff in onc of these four Delaware derivative
actions. The remaining three Delaware derivative actions were consolidated on May 22, 2002. On February 10, 2004, the parties
stipulated and agreed to the dismissal of these consolidated actions with prejudice.

The complaints, which named as defendants the Company, certain former officers and directors of the Company and, in some
cases, the Company's former auditors, lawyers, as well as financial institutions who worked with the Company, generally aliege that,

among other improper statements and omissions, defendants misled investors regarding the Company's liabilities and carnings in the
Company's public filings. The majority of these actions assert claims under Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Exchange
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Act and SEC Rule 10b-5. Certain bondholder actions assert claims for violation of Section 11 and/or Section 12(a) (2) of the
Securities Act of 1933. Certain of the state court actions allege various state law claims.

On July 23, 2003, the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation issued an order transfetring numerous civil actions to
the District Court for consolidated or coordinated pre-trial proceedings (the "MDL Proceedings").

On September 15, 2003, proposed lead plaintiffs and proposed co-lead counsel in the consolidated class action were
appointed in the MDL Proceedings. On December 22, 2003, lead plaintiffs filed a consolidated class action complaint. Motions
to dismiss have been filed by various defendants. On May 27, 2005 and August 16, 2005, the District Court granted in part and
denied in part some of the pending motions and provided the plaintiffs limited ability to replead the dismissed claims. As a result
of the filing of the Chapter 11 Cases and the protections of the automatic stay, the Company is not named as a defendant in the
amended complaint, but is a non-party. The consolidated class action complaint seeks monctary damages of an unspecified
amount, rescission and reasonable costs and expenses and such other and future relief as the court may deem just and proper.
The individual actions against thc Company also seek damages of an unspecified amount.

Pursuant to section 362 of the Bankruptcy Code, all of the securities and derivative claims that were filed against the
Company before the bankruptcy filings are automatically stayed and not proceeding as to the Company.

The Company cannot predict the outcome of the pending Iegal proceedings or estimate the possible effects on the
financial condition or results of operations of the Company.

Acquisition Actions. After the alleged misconduct of certain members of the Rigas Family was publicly disclosed,
three actions were filed in May and June 2002 against the Company by former shareholders of companies that the Company
acquired, in whole or in part, through stock transactions. These actions allege that the Company improperly induced these former
shareholders to enter into these stock transactions through misrepresentations and omissions, and the plaintiffs seek monetary
damages and equitable relief through rescission of the underlying acquisition transactions.

Two of these proceedings have been filed with the American Arbitration Association alleging violations of federal and
state securitics laws, breaches of representations and warranties and fraud in the inducement. One of these proceedings seeks
rescission, compensatory damages and pre-judgment relief, and the other seeks specific performance. The third action alleges
fraud and seeks rescission, damages and attorneys' fees. This action was originally filed in a Colorado State Court, and
subsequently was removed by the Company to the United States District Court for the District of Colorado. The Colorado State
Court action was closed administratively on July 16, 2004, subject to reopening if and when the automatic bankruptcy stay is
lifted or for other good cause shown. These actions have been stayed pursuant to the automatic stay provisions of section 362 of
the Bankruptcy Code.

The Company cannot predict the outcome of these logal proceedings or estimate the possible effects on the financial
condition or results of operations of the Company.

Equity Committee Shareholder Litigation. Adelphia is a defendant in an adversary proceeding in the Bankruptcy Court
consisting of a declaratory judgment action and a motion for a preliminary injunction brought on January 9, 2003 by the Equity
Commmittee, seeking, among other relief; a declaration as to how the shares owned by the Rigas Family and Rigas Family
Entities would be voted should a consent solicitation to elect members of the Board be undertaken. Adelphia has opposed such

requests for relief.

The claims of the Equity Committee are based on shareholder rights that the Equity Committee asserts should be
recognized even in bankruptcy, coupled with continuing claims, as of the filing of the lawsuit, of historical connections between
the Board and the Rigas Family. Motions to dismiss filed by Adelphia and others are fully briefed in this action, but no argument
date has been set. If this action survives these motions to dismiss, resolution of disputed fact issues will occur in two phases
pursuant to a schedule set by the Bankruptcy Court. Determinations regarding fact questions relating to the conduct of the Rigas
Family will not occur until, at a minimum, after the resolution of the Rigas Criminal Action.

No pleadings have been filed in the adversary proceeding since September 2003.

The Company cannot predict the outcome of these legal proceedings or estimate the possible effects on the financial
condition or results of operations of the Company.

ML Media Litigation. Adelphia and ML Mcdia have been involved in a Jongstanding dispute concerning Century/ML
Cable's management, the buy/sell rights of ML Media and various other matters.
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In March 2000, ML Media brought suit against Century, Adelphia and Arahova Communications Inc. ("Arahova"), a direct
subsidiary of Adelphia and Century's immediate parent, in the Supreme Court of the State of New York, seeking, among other things:
(1) the dissolution of Century/ML Cable and the appointment of a receiver to sell Century/ML Cable's assets; (if) if no receiver was
appointed, an order authorizing ML Media to conduct an auction for the sale of Century/ML Cable's assets to an unrelated third party
and enjoining Adelphia from interfering with or participating in that process; (iii) an order directing the defendants to comply with the
Century/ML, Cable joint venture agreement with respect to provisions relating to governance matters and the budget process; and
(iv) compensatory and punitive damages. The parties negotiated a consent order that imposed various consultative and reporting
requirements on Adelphia and Century as well as restrictions on Century's ability to make capital expenditures without ML Media's
approval. Adelphia and Century were held in contempt of that order in early 2001.

In connection with the December 13, 2001 settlement of the above dispute, Adelphia, Century/ML Cable, ML Media
and Highland entered into the Recap Agreement, pursuant to which Century/ML Cable agreed to the Redemption on or before
September 30, 2002 for a purchase price between $275,000,000 and $279,800,000 depending on the timing of the Redemption,
plus interest. Among other things, the Recap Agreement provided that: (i) Highland would arrange debt financing for the
Redemption; (i) Highland, Adelphia and Century would jointly and severally guarantee debt service on debt financing for the
Rederaption on and after the closing of the Redemption; and (jii) Highland and Century would own 60% and 40% interesis,
respectively, in the recapitalized Century/ML Cable. Under the terms of the Recap Agreement, Century's 50% interest in
Century/ML Cable was pledged to ML Media as collateral for the Company's obligations.

On September 30, 2002, Century/ML Cable filed a voluntary petition to rcorganize under Chapter 11 in the Bankruptcy
Court. Century/ML Cable is operating its business as a dcbtor-in-possession.

By an order of the Bankrupicy Court dated September 17, 2003, Adelphia and Century rejected the Recap Agreement,
effective as of such date. If the Recap Agreement is enforceable, the effect of the rejection of the Recap Agreement is the same
as a pre-petition breach of the Recap Agreement. Therefore, Adelphia and Century arc potentially exposed to "rejection
damages,” which may include the revival of ML Media's claims under the state court actions described above.

Adelphia, Century, Highland, Century/ML Cable and ML Media are engaged in litigation regarding the enforceability
of the Recap Agreement. On April 15, 2004, the Bankruptcy Court indicated that it would dismiss all counts of Adclphia's
challenge to the enforceability of the Recap Agreement except for its allegation that ML Media aided and abetted a breach of
fiduciary duty in connection with the exccution of the Recap Agreement. The Bankruptcy Court also indicated that it would
allow Century/ML Cable's action to avoid the Recap Agreement as a fraudulent conveyance to proceed.

ML Media has alleged that it is entitled to elect recovery of either $279,800,000 plus costs and interest in exchange for
its interest in Century/ML Cable, or up to the difference between $279,800,000 and the fair market value of its interest in
Century/ML Cable, plus costs, interest and revival of the state court claims described above. Adelphia, Century and Century/ML
Cable have disputed ML Media's claims, and the Plan contemplates that ML Media will receive no distribution until such
dispute is resolved.

On June 3, 2003, Century and ML Media entered into the TAA to sell their interests in Century/ML Cable for $520,000,000
(subject to certain potential purchase price adjustments as defined in the IAA) to San Juan Cable. Consummation of the sale is subject
to approval by the Bankruptcy Court in Century/ML Cable's separate Chapter 11 case, confirmation of a plan of reorganization of
Century/ML Cable, the receipt of financing by the buyers and other customary conditions, many of which are outside the control of
Century/ML Cable, Century and ML Media. There can be no assurance whether or when such conditions will be satisfied. The sale of
Century/ML Cable will not resolve the pending litigation among Adelphia, Century, Highland, Century/ML Cable and ML Media,

On August 9, 2005, Century/ML Cable filed its Century/ML Plan and Century/ML Disclosure Statement with the
Bankruptcy Court. By order dated August 18, 2005, the Bankruptcy Court approved the Century/ML Disclosure Statement. On
September 7, 2005, the Bankruptcy Court confirmed the Century/ML Plan. The Century/ML Plan is designed to satisfy the
conditions of the IAA with San Juan Cable and provides that all third-party claims will either be paid in full or assumed by San
Juan Cable under the terms set forth in the IAA. Consummation of the Century/ML Plan is subject to certain conditions,
including the concurrent sale of the interests in Century/ML Cable pursuant to the JAA. There can be no assurance whether or
when such conditions will be satisfied, The Century/ML Plan, if consummated, will not resolve the pending litigation among
Adelphia, Century, Highland, Century/ML Cable and ML Media.

The Company cannot predict the outcome of these Jegal proceedings or estimate the possible effects on the financial
condition or results of operations of the Company.
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The X Clause Litigation. On December 29, 2003, the Ad Hoc Committee of holders of Adelphia's 6% and 3.25%
subordinated notes (collectively, the "Subordinated Notes"), together with the Bank of New York, the indenture trustee for the
Subordinated Notes (collectively, the "X Clause Plaintiffs"), commenced an adversary proceeding against Adelphia in the Bankruptcy
Court, The X Clause Plaintiffs' complaint sought a judgment declaring that the subordination provisions in the indentures for the
Subordinated Notes were not applicable to an Adelphia plan of reorganization in which constituents receive common stock of Adelphia
and that the Subordinated Notes are entitled to a share pari passu in the distribution of any common stock of Adelphia given to holders
of senior notes of Adelphia. Recently, the X Clause Plaintiffs have asserted that the subordination provisions in the indentures for the
Subordinated Notes also are not applicable to an Adelphia plan of reorganization in which constituents receive common stock of Time
Wamer and that the Subordinated Notes would therefore be entitled to share pari passu in the distribution of any such Time Wamner
stock given to holders of senior notes of Adelphia. The Debtors dispute this position and have agreed to present the issue to the
Bankruptcy Court prior to confirmation of a plan of reorganization,

The basis for the X Clause Plaintiffs' claim is a provision in the applicable indentures, commonly known as the "X Clause,"
which provides that any distributions under a plan of reorganization comprised solely of "Permitted Junior Securities" are not subject to
the subordination provision of the Subordinated Notes indenture. The X Clause Plaintiffs asserted that, under their interpretation of the
applicable indentures, a distribution of a single class of new common stock of Adelphia would meet the definition of "Permitted Junior
Securities” set forth in the indentures, and therefore be exempt from subordination.

On February 6, 2004, Adelphia filed its answer to the complaint, denying all of its substantive allegations. Thereafter, both the
X Clausc Plaintiffs and Adelphia cross-moved for summary judgment with both parties arguing that their interpretation of the X Clause
was correct as a matter of law. The indenture trustee for the Adelphia senior notes also intervened in the action and, like Adelphia,
moved for summary judgment, arguing that the X Clause Plaintiffs were subordinated to holders of senior notes with respect to any
distribution of common stock under a plan. In addition, the Creditors' Committee also moved to intervene and, thereafter, moved to
dismiss the X Clause Plaintiffs' complaint on the grounds, among others, that it did not present a justiciable case or controversy and
therefore was not ripe for adjudication. In a written decision, dated April 12, 2004, the Bankruptcy Court granted the Creditors’
Committee's motion to dismiss without ruling on the merits of the various cross-motions for summary judgment. The Banlauptcy
Court's dismissal of the action was without prejudice to the X Clause Plaintiffs' right to bring the action at a later date, if appropriate.

Verizon Franchise Transfer Litigation. On March 20, 2002, the Company commenced an action (the "California Cablevision
Action") in the United States District Court for the Central District of California, Western Division, seeking, among other things,
declaratory and injunctive relief precluding the City of Thousand Oaks, California (the "City") from denying permits on the grounds
that the Company failed to seek the City's prior approval of an asset purchase agreement (the "Asset Purchase Agreement"”), dated
December 17, 2001, between the Company and Verizon Media Ventures. Pursuant to the Asset Purchase Agreement, the Company
acquired certain Verizon Media Ventures cable equipment and network system assets (the "Verizon Cable Assets") located in the City
for use in the operation of the Company's cable business in the City.

On March 25, 2002, the City and Ventura County (the "County") commenced an action (the "Thousand Oaks Action")
against the Company and Verizon Media Ventures in California State Court alleging that Verizon Media Ventures' entry into the Asset
Purchase Agreement and conveyance of the Verizon Cable Assets constituted a breach of Verizon Media Ventures' cable franchises
and that the Company's participation in the transaction amounted to actionable tortious interference with those franchises. The City and
the County sought injunctive relief to halt the sale and transfer of the Verizon Cable Assets pursuant to the Asset Purchase Agreement
and to compel the Company to treat the Verizon Cable Assets as a separate cable systemn.

On March 27, 2002, the Company and Verizon Media Ventures removed the Thousand Oaks Action to the United States
District Court for the Central District of California, where it was consolidated with the Califomia Cablevision Action.

On April 12, 2002, the district court conducted a hearing on the City's and County's application for a preliminary injunction
and, on April 15, 2002, the district court issued a temporary restraining order in part, pending entry of a further order. On May 14,
2002, the district court issued a preliminary injunction and entered findings of fact and conclusions of law in support thereof (the
"May 14, 2002 Order"). The May 14, 2002 Order, among other things: (i) enjoined the Company from integrating the Company's and
Verizon Media Ventures' system assets serving subscribers in the City and the County; (ii) required the Company to return "ownership"
of the Verizon Cable Assets to Verizon Media Ventures except that the Company was permitted to continue to "manage” the assets as
Verizon Media Ventures' agent to the extent necessary to avoid disruption in services until Verizon Media Ventures chose to reenter the
market or sell the assets; (i) prohibited the Company from eliminating any programming options that had previously been selected by
Verizon Media Ventures or from raising the rates charged by Verizon Media Ventures; and (iv) required the Company and Verizon
Media Ventures to grant the City and/or the County access to system records, contracts,
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personnel and facilities for the purpose of conducting an inspection of the then-current "state of the Verizon Media Ventures and
the Company systems” in the City and the County. The Company appealed the May 14, 2002 Order and on April 1, 2003, the
U.S. Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit reversed the May 14, 2002 Order, thus removing any restrictions that had been
imposed by the district court against the Company's intcgration of the Verizon Cable Assets, and remanded the actions back to
the district court for further proceedings.

I September 2003, the City began refusing to grant the Company's construction permit requests, claiming that the
Company conld not integrate the acquired Verizon Cable Assets with the Company's existing cable system assets because the
City had not approved the transaction between the Company and Verizon Media Ventures, as allegedly required under the City's
cable ordinance.

Accordingly, on Oclober 2, 2003, the Company filed 2 motion for a preliminary injunction in the district court seeking
to enjoin the City from refusing to grant the Company's construction permit requests. On November 3, 2003, the district court
granted the Company’s moticn for a preliminary injunction, finding that the Company had demonstrated "a strong likelihood of
success on the merits." Thereafter, the parties agreed to informally stay the litigation pending negotiations between the Company
and the City for the Company’s renewal of its cable franchise, with the intent that such negotiations would also lead to a
settlernent of the pending litigation. However, on September 16, 2004, at the City's request, the courl set certain procedural
dates, including a trial date of July 12, 2005, which has effectively re-opened the case to active litigation. Subsequently, the
July 12, 2005 trial date was vacated pursuant to a stipulation and order. On July 11, 2005, the district court referred the matter to
a United States magistrate judge for settlement discussions. On September 6, 2005, the magistrate judge scheduled a seftlement
confzrence for October 20, 2005.

The Company cannot predict the outcome of these actions or estimate the possible effects on the financial condition or
resuiis of operations of the Comipany.

Dibbern Adversary Proceeding. On or about August 30, 2002, Gerald Dibbern, individually and purportedly on behalf
of a class of similarly situated subscribers nationwide, commenced an adversary proceeding in the Bankruptcy Court against
Adelphia asserting claims for violation of the Pennsylvania Consumer Protection Law, breach of contract, fraud, unjust
enrichiment, constructive trust, and an accounting. This complaint alleges that Adelphia charged, and continues to charge,
subscribers for cable set-top box cquipment, including set-top boxes and remote controls, that is unnecessary for subscribers that
receive only basic cable service and have cable-ready televisions. The complaint further alleges that Adelphia failed to
adequately notify affected subscribers that they no longer needed to rent this equipment. The complaint seeks a number of
remedies tachiding treble money damages under the Pennsylvania Consumer Protection Law, declaratory and injunctive relief,
imposition of a constructive trust on Adelphia's assets, and punitive damages, together with costs and attomeys' fecs.

On or about December 13, 2002, Adelphia moved to dismiss the adversary proceeding on several bases, including that
the complaint fails to state a claim for which relief can be granted and that the matters alleged therein should be resolved in the
claims process. The Bankruptcy Court granted Adelphia's motion to dismiss and dismissed the adversary proceeding on May 3,
2005. In the Bankruptcy Court, Mr. Dibbern has also objected to the provisional disallowance of his proofs of claim which
comprised a portion of the Bankruptcy Court's May 3, 2005 order. Mr. Dibbern appealed the May 3, 2003 order dismissing his
claims to the District Court. In an August 30, 2005 decision, the District Court affirmed the dismissal of Mr. Dibbern's claims for
violation of the Pennsylvania Consumer Protection Law, a constructive trust and an accounting, but reversed the dismissal of
Mr. Dibbern's breach of contract, fraud and unjust enrichment claims. These three claims will proceed in the Bankruptcy Court
and an answer is due from Adelphia by October 7, 2005.

The Company cannot predict the outcome of these legal proceedings or estimate the possible effects on the financial
condition or results of operations of the Company.

Tele-Media Examiner Motion. By motion filed in the Bankruptcy Court on August 5, 2004, Tele-Media Corporation of
Delaware ("TMCD") and certain of its affiliates sought the appointment of an examiner for the following Debtors: Tele-Media
Company of Tri-States, L.P., CMA Cablevision Associates V1I, L.P., CMA Cablevision Associates X1, L.P.,, TMC Holdings
Corporation, Adelphia Company of Western Connecticut, TMC Holdings, LLC, Tele-Media Investment Limited Partnership, L.
P., Eastern Virginia Cablevision, L.P., Tele-Media Company of Hopewell Prince George, and Eastern Virginia Cablevision
Holdings, LLC (collectively, the "JV Entities"). Among other things, TMCD alleged that management and the Board breached
their fiduciary obligations to the creditors and equity holders of those entities. Consequently, TMCD sought the appointment of
an examiner to investigate and make recommendations to the Bankruptcy Court regarding various issues related to such entities.
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On April 14, 2005, the Debtors filed a motion with the Bankruptcy Court seeking approval of a global scttlement
agreement (the "Tele-Media Settlement Agreement™) by and among the Debtors and TMCD and certain of its affiliates (the
"Tele-Media Parties™), which, among other things: (i) transfers the Tele-Media Parties’ ownership interests in the JV Entities to
the Debtors, leaving the Debtors 100% ownership of the JV Entities; (ii) requires the Debtors to make a settlement payment to
the Tele-Media Parties of $21,650,000; (iii) resolves the above-mentioned examiner motion; (iv) settles two pending avoidance
actions brought by the Debtors against certain of the Tele-Media Parties; (v) reconciles 691 separate proofs of claim filed by the
Tele-Media Parties, thereby allowing claims worth approximately $5,500,000 and disallowing approximately $1.9 billion of
claims; (vi) requires the Tele-Media Parties to make a $912,500 payment to the Debtors related to workers' compensation
policies; and (vii) effectuates mutual releases between the Debtors and the Tele-Media Parties. The Tele-Media Settlement
Agreement was approved by an order of the Bankruptcy Court dated May 11, 2005 and closed on May 26, 2005.

Creditors' Committee Lawsuit Against Pre-Petition Banks. Pursuant to the Bankruptcy Court order approving the DIP
Facility (the "Final DIP Order"), the Company made certain acknowledgments (the "Acknowledgments") with respect to the
extent of its indebtedness under the pre-petition credit facilities, as well as the validity and extent of the liens and claims of the
lenders under such facilities. However, given the circumstances surrounding the filing of the Chapter 11 Cases, the Final DIP
Order preserved the Debtors' right to prosecute, among other things, avoidance actions and claims against the pre-petition
lenders and to bring litigation against the pre-petition lenders based on any wrongful conduct. The Final DIP Order also
provided that any official commitiee appointed in the Chapter 11 Cases would have the right to request that it be granted
standing by the Bankruptcy Court to challenge the Acknowledgments and to bring claims belonging to the Company and its
estates against the pre-petition lenders.

Pursuant to a stipulation among the Company, the Creditors' Committee and the Equity Committee, which is being
challenged by certain pre-petition lenders, the Bankruptcy Court granted the Creditors' Committee leave and standing to file and
prosecute claims against the pre-petition lenders, on behalf of the Company, and granted the Equity Committee leave to seek to
intervene in any such action. This stipulation also preserves the Company's ability to compromise and settle the claims against
the pre-petition lenders. By motion dated July 6, 2003, the Creditors' Committee moved for Bankruptcy Court approval of this
stipulation and simultaneously filed a complaint (the "Bank Complaint”) against the agents and lenders under certain pre-petition
credit facilities, and related entities, asserting, among other things, that these entities knew of, and participated in, the alleged
improper aclions by certain members of the Rigas Family and Rigas Family Entities (the "Pre-petition Lender Litigation"). The
Debtors are nominal plaintiffs in this action.

The Bank Complaint contains 52 claims for relief to redress the claimed wrongs and abuse committed by the agents,
lenders and other entities. The Bank Complaint seeks to, among other things: (i) recover as fraudulent transfers the principal and
interest paid by the Company to the defendants; (ii) avoid as fraudulent obligations the Company's obligations, if any, to repay
the defendants; (iii) recover damages for breaches of fiduciary duties to the Company and for aiding and abetting fraud and
breaches of fiduciary dutics by the Rigas Family; (iv) equitably disallow, subordinate or recharacterize each of the defendants’
claims in the Chapter 11 Cases; (v) avoid and recover certain allegedly preferential transfers made to certain defendants; and
(vi) recover damages for violations of the Bank Holding Company Act.

Numerous motions seeking to defeat the Pre-petition Lender Litigation were filed by the defendants and the
Bankruptcy Court held a hearing on such issues. The Equity Committee has filed a motion seeking authority to bring additional
claims against the pre-petition lenders pursuant to the RICO Act. The Bankruptcy Court heard oral argument on these motions
on December 20 and December 21, 2004. The Bankruptcy Court has not yet ruled on the motions to dismiss. In 2 memorandum
decision dated August 30, 2005, the Bankruptcy Court granted the motions of both the Creditors' Comnittee and the Equity
Commiltee for standing to prosecute these claims.

Under the Plan, the Debtors may seek to compromise and settle, in part, the Pre-petition Lender Litigation, including
through the dismissal of certain claims and the release of certain defendants.

The Company cannot predict the cutcome of these legal proceedings or estimate the possible effects on the financial
condition or results of operations of the Company.

Devon Mobile Claim. Pursuant to the Devon Mobile Limited Partnership Agreement, the Company owned a 49.9%
limited partnership interest in Devon Mobile, which, through its subsidiaries, held licenses to operate regional wireless telephone
businesses in several states. Devon Mobile had certain business and contractual retationships with the Company and with former
subsidiaries or divisions of the Company, which were spun off as TelCove in January 2002.
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In late May 2002, the Company notified Devon G.P., the general partner of Devon Mobile, that it would likely
terminate certain discretionary operational funding to Devon Mobile. On August 19, 2002, Devon Mobilc and certain of its
subsidiaries filed voluntary petitions for relief under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code with the Devon Mobile Bankruptey

Court.

On January 17, 2003, the Company filed proofs of claim and interest against Devon Mobile and its subsidiaries for
approximately $129,000,000 in debt and equity claims, as well as an additional claim of approximately $35,000,000 relating to
the Company's guarantee of certain Devon Mobile obligations (collectively, the "Company Claims"). By order dated October 1,
2003, the Devon Mobile Bankmptcy Court confirmed Devon Mobile's First Amended Joint Plan of Liquidation (the "Devon
Plan"). The Devon Plan became effective on October 17, 2003, at which time the Company's limited partnership interest in
Devon Mobile was extinguished.

On or about January 8, 2004, Devon Mobile filed proofs of claim in the Chapter 11 Cases seeking, in the aggregate,
approximately $100,000,000 in respect of, among other things, certain cash transfers alleged to be either preferential or
fraudulent and claims for deepening insolvency, alter ego liability and breach of an alleged duty to fund Devon Mobile
operations, all of which arose prior to the commencement of the Chapter 11 Cases (the "Devon Claims”). On June 21, 2004,
Devon Mobile commenced an adversary proceeding in the Chapter 11 Cases (the "Devon Adversary Proceeding") through the
filing of a complaint (the "Devon Complaint"), which incorporates the Devon Claims. On August 20, 2004, the Company filed
an answer and counterclaim in response to the Devon Complaint denying the allegations made in the Devon Complaint and
asserling various counterclaims against Devon Mobile, which encompassed the Company Claims. On November 22, 2004, the
Company filed a motion for leave (the "Motion for Leave™) to file a third party complaint for contribution and indemnification
against Devon G.P. and Lisa-Gaye Shearing Mead, the sole owner and President of Devon G.P. By endorsed order entered
January 12, 2005, Judge Robert E. Gerber, the judge presiding over the Chapter 11 Cases and the Devon Adversary Proceeding,
granted a recusal request made by counsel to Devon G.P. On January 21, 2005, the Devon Adversary Proceeding was reassigned
from Judge Gerber to Judge Cecelia G. Morris. By an order dated April 5, 2005, Judge Morris denied the Motion for Leave and
a subsequent motion for reconsideration. On May 13, 2005, the court entered an Amended Pretrial Scheduling Order extending
the time for discovery and scheduled a prefrial conference for March 1, 2006, with a five day trial to be scheduled thereafier.
Discovery is ongoing.

The Company cannot predict the outcome of these legal proceedings or estimate the possible effects on the financial
condition or results of operations of the Company.

NFHLP Claim. On January 13, 2003, NFHLP and certain of its subsidiaries (the "NFHLP Debtors") filed voluntary
petitions to reorganize under Chapter 11 in the United States Bankruptcy Court of the Western District of New York (the
"NFHLP Bankruptcy Court") seeking protection under the U. S. bankruptcy laws. Certain of the NFHLP Debtors entered into an
agreement dated March 13, 2003 for the sale of certain assets, including the Buffalo Sabres National Hockey League team, and
the assumption of certain liabilities. On October 3, 2003, the NFHLP Bankruptcy Court approved the NFHLP joint plan of
liquidation, The NFHLP Debtors filed 2 complaint, dated November 4, 2003, against, among others, Adelphia and the Creditors'
Committee secking to enforce certain prior stipulations and orders of the NFHLP Bankruptcy Court against Adelphia and the
Creditors' Commilee related to the waiver of Adelphia’s right to participate in certain sale proceeds resulting from the sale of
assets. Certain of the NFHLP Debtors' pre-petition lendcrs, which are also defendants in the adversary proceeding, have filed
cross-complaints against Adclphia and the Creditors' Committee asking the NFHLP Bankruptcy Court to enjoin Adelphia and
the Creditors' Committee from prosecuting their claims against those pre-petition lenders. Proceedings as to the complaint itself
have been suspended. With respect to the cross-complaints, motion practice and discovery are proceeding concurrently; no
hearing on dispositive motions has been scheduled.

The Company cannot predict the outcome of these legal proceedings or estimate the possible effects on the financial
condition or results of operations of the Company.

Preferred Shareholder Litigation. On August 11, 2003, Adelphia initiated an adversary proceeding in the Bankruptcy
Court against the holders of Adelphia's preferred stock (the "Preferred Stockholders"), seeking, among other things, to enjoin the
Preferred Stockholders from exercising certain purported rights to elect directors to the Board due to Adelphia's failure to pay
dividends and alleged breaches of covenants contained in the certificates of designations relating to Adelphia's preferred stock.
On August 13, 2003, certain of the Preferred Stockholders filed the Delaware Action. On August 13, 2003, the Bankruptcy
Court granted Adelphia a temporary restraining order, which, among other things, stayed the Delaware Action and temporarily
enjoined the Preferred Stockholders from exercising their purported rights to elect dircctors to the Board. Thereafter, the
Delaware Action was withdrawn.
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The Company cannot predict the outcome of these legal proceedings or estimate the possible effects on the financial
condition or results of operations of the Company.

Adelphia's Lawsuit Against Deloitte. On November 6, 2002, Adelphia sued Deloitte & Touche LLC ("Deloitte"),
Adelphia's former independent auditors, in the Court of Common Pleas for Philadelphia County. The lawsuit seeks damages
against Deloitte based on Deloitte's alleged failure to conduct an audit in compliance with generally accepted auditing standards,
and for providing an opinion that Adelphia's financial statements conformed with GAAP when Deloitte allegedly knew or
should have known that they did not conform. The complaint further alleges that Deloitte knew or should have known of alleged
misconduct and misappropriation by the Rigas Family, and other alleged acts of self-dcaling, but failed to report these alleged
misdeeds to the Board or others who could have and would have stopped the Rigas Family's misconduct. The complaint raises
claims of professional negligence, breach of contract, aiding and abetting breach of fiduciary duty, fraud, negligent
misrepresentation and contribution.

Deloiite filed preliminary objections secking to dismiss the complaint, which werc overruled by the court by order
dated June 11, 2003. On September 15, 2003, Deloiite filed an answer, a new matter and various counterclaims in response to
the complaint. In its counterclaims, Deloitte asserted causes of action against Adelphia for breach of contract, fraud, negligent
misrepresentation and contribution. Also on September 15, 2003, Deloitte filed a related complaint naming as additional
defendants John J. Rigas, Timothy J. Rigas, Michael J. Rigas, and James P. Rigas. In this complaint, Deloitte alleges causes of
action for fraud, negligent misrepresentation and contribution. The Rigas defendants, in turn, have claimed a right to
contribution and/or indemnity from Adelphia for any damages Deloitte may recover against the Rigas defendants. On January 9,
2004, Adelphia answered Deloitte's counterclaims. Deloitte moved to stay discovery in this action until completion of the Rigas
Criminal Action, which Adclphia opposed. Following the motion, discovery was effectively stayed for 60 days but has now
commenced. Deloitte and Adelphia have exchanged documents and have begun substantive discovery. On June 9, 2005, the
court entered a case management order stating that (i) all discovery shall be completed by December 5, 2005 and (ii) the case be
ready for trial by April 3, 2006.

The Company cannot predict the outcome of these legal proceedings or estimate the possible effects on the financial
condition or results of operations of the Company.

Series E and F Preferred Stock Conversion Postponements. On October 29, 2004, Adelphia filed 2 motion to postpone
the conversion of Adelphia's Series E Preferred Stock into shares of Class A Common Stock from November 15, 2004 to
February 1, 2005, to the extent such conversion was not already stayed by the Debtors' bankruptcy filing, in order to protect the
Debtors' NOL carryovers. On November 18, 2004, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order approving the postponement effective
November 14, 2004.

Adelphia has subsequently entered into several stipulations further postponing, to the extent applicable, the conversion
date of the Series E Preferred Stock. Adelphia has also entered into several stipulations postponing, to the extent applicable, the
conversion date of the Series F Preferred Stock which was initially convertible into shares of Class A Common Stock on
February 1, 2005.

EPA Self Disclosure and Audit. On June 2, 2004, the Company orally sclf-disclosed potential violations of
environmental laws to the United States Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") pursuant to EPA's Audit Policy, and notified
EPA that it intended to conduct an audit of its operations to identify and correct any such violations. The potential violations
primarily concern reporting and recordkeeping requirements arising from the Company's storage and use of petroleurn and
batteries to provide backup power for its cable operations. This matter is at an carly stage, but based on current facts, the
Company does not anticipate that this matter will have a material adverse effect on the Company's results of operations or
financial condition.

Other. The Company is subject to various other legal proceedings and claims which arise in the ordinary course of
business. Management believes, based on information currently available, that the amount of ultimate liability, if any, with
respect to any of thesc other actions will not materially affect the Company's financial position or results of operations.
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Note 18: Other Financial Information
Supplemental Cash Flow Information
The table below sets forth the Company's supplemental cash flow information (amounts in thousands):

December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Cash paid for interest $ 392,053 $ 379,423 $ 660,801
Capitalized interest ............. . 8§ (10401) $ (21,643) $ (37,010)
Cash paid for INCOMIE tRXES. ...v.vvivirrreriiissisnser st 5 100 $ 461 3 175

Significant non-cash investing and financing activities are summarized in the table below. There were no significant
non-cash transactions in 2003. The summarized information in the table should be read in conjunction with the more detailed
information included in the referenced Notes (amounts in thousands):

Year ended December 31,

2004 2002
Net property and equipment distributed to TelCove in the Global Settlement (Note 7)............... $ 37,144 —
Net assets of entities acquired in exchange for issnance of Class A Common Stock (Note 8)...... 8 — 46,470
Purchase of Adelphia 3.25% Notes by Other Rigas Entities (NOt€ 6) ..o $ — 393,569
increase in additional paid-in capital due to TelCove Spin-off (Note TYeeicere et e $ — 1,346,500
Assets acquired under capital TeaSES. ...t $ — 11,244

Cost and Other Investments

The Company's investments in available-for-sale securities, common stock and other cost investments aggregated
$3,569,000 and $8,188,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively and are included in other noncurrent assets, net in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

The fair value of the Company's available-for-sale equity securities and the related unrealized holding gains and losses
are summarized below. Such unrealized gains and losses are included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive loss,
net in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets (amounts in thousands):

December 31,
2004 2003 2002
FaIT VAIUC .. o1 e e eeveeeeeeee e seesees e seeeen e enseeasae smeem e s meaese s b asbbes s s e b aaasbbas sme s abenns s rresn e an s on v s $ 1,966 $ 2,159 8 739
Gross unrealized holding gains................. $ 1,388 $ 1,495 8§ 15

Gross unrealized holding losses S O $ @ § —
The Company recognized impairment losses as a result of other-than-temporary declines in the fair value of the
Company's investments in available-for-sale securities, common stock and other cost investments of $3,801,000, $8,544,000 and

$6,531,000 in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The Company recognized gains (losses) of $292,000, $3,574,000 and
($4,077,000) in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, related to the sale of cost and other investments. Such impairments and gains
(losses) are reflected in other expense, net in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
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Accrued Liabilities

The details of accrued liabilities are set forth below (amounts in thousands):

December 31,
2004 2003
PrOZIAIMIMNE COSIS ....cveveecireereiesireeseeeeeenrcecassreeseseressrssreemeseneasassassese ses casessassonsnsiossnssussnsases $ 106,511 $ 82,100
Interest......cocccvvreeennen 67,671 29,642
Payroll ............ 62,591 46,868
FraNCHISE TEES. ..eeeiiiiei ettt e e re e sne e e ae e ssan e e ban e e s aeaeras ermaesrsnbnesbre s s s bt semtnesernt e e 58,178 53,653
Other.......ocecevees 240,973 199,808
Total ...... $ 535,924 $ 412,071

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net included in the Company's consolidated balance sheets and consolidated
statements of stockholders' equity reflect the aggregate of foreign currency translation adjustments and unrealized holding gains
and losses on securities. The change in the components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes, is set
forth below (amounts in thousands):

Foreign currency
translation Unrealized gains (losses)

adjustments on securitics Total
Balanceat January 1, 2002 ... $  (8,453) S (242 $ (8,695)
Other comprehensive income (loss)... (10,310) 251 (10.059)
Balance at December 31, 2002 (18,763) 9 (18,754)
Other comprehensive iNCOME ........cooivicimiiniicice e iceeeencs 8.193 881 9,074
Balance at December 31, 2003 ... (10,570) 890 (9,680)
Other comprehensive J0SS .....c.ccoiveeirenni e (1,821) (64) (1,885)
Balance at December 31, 2004 .....ooccoininiinninn, $ (12,391) b 826 $ (11,565)

Transactions With Other Officers and Directors

In a letter agreement between Adelphia and FPL Group, Inc. ("FPL Group") dated January 21, 1999, Adelphia agreed
to (i) repurchase 20,000 shares of Series C Preferred Stock and 1,091,524 shares of Class A Common Stock owned by Telesat
Cablevision, Inc., a subsidiary of FPL Group ("Telesat") and (ii) transfer all of the outstanding common stock of West Boca
Security, Inc. ("WB Security"), a subsidiary of Olympus Communications, L.P. ("Olympus"), to FPL Group in exchange for
FPL Group's 50% voting interest and 1/3 economic interest in Olympus. The Company owned the economic and voting interests
in Olympus that were not then owned by FPL Group. At the time this agreement was entered into, Dennis Coyle, then a member
of the Adelphia Board of Directors, was the General Counsel and Secrctary of FPL Group. WB Security was a subsidiary of
Olympus and WB Security's sole asset was a $108,000,000 note receivable (the "WB Note") from a subsidiary of Olympus that
was secured by the FPL Group's ownership interest in Olympus and due September 1, 2004. On January 29, 1999, Adelphia
purchased all of the aforementioned shares of Series C Preferred Stock and Class A Common Stock described above from
Telesat for aggregate cash consideration of $149,213,000, and on October 1, 1999, the Company acquired FPL Group's intercst
in Olympus in exchange for all of the outstanding common stock of WB Security. The acquired shares of Class A Common
Stock are presented as treasury stock in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The acquired shares of Series C
Preferred Stock were returned to their original status of authorized but unissued. On June 24, 2004, the Creditors’ Committee
filed an adversary proceeding in the Bankruptcy Court,
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among other things, to avoid, recover and preserve the cash paid by Adelphia pursuant to the repurchase of its Series C Preferred
Stock and Class A Common Stock fogether with all interest paid with respect to such repurchase. A hearing date relating to such
adversary proceeding has not yet been set. Interest on the WB Note is calculated at a rate of 6% per annum (or after defaultata
variable rate of LIBOR plus 5%). FPL Group has the right, upon at least 60 days prior written notice, to require repayment of the
principal and accrued interest on the WB Note on or afier July 1, 2002. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the aggregate
principal and interest due to the FPL Group pursuant to the WB Note was $127,537,000. The Company has not accrued interest
on the WB Note for periods subsequent to the Petition Date. To date, the Company has not yet received a notice from FPL
Group requiring the repayment of the WB Note.

From May 2002 until July 2003, the Company engaged Conway, Del Genio, Gries & Co., LLC ("CDGC") to provide
certain restructuring services pursuant to an engagement letter dated May 21, 2002 (the "Conway Engagement Letter"). During
that time, Ronald F. Stengel, Adelphia's former and interim Chief Operating Officer and Chief Restructuring Officer, was a
Senior Managing Director of CDGC. The Conway Engagement Letter provided for Mr. Stengel's scrvices to Adelphia while
remaining a full-time employee of CDGC. In addition, other employces of CDGC were assigned to assist Mr. Stengel in
connection with the Conway Engagement Letter, Pursuant to the Conway Engagement Letter, the Company paid CDGC a total
of $4,298,000 for its services in 2002 and, $2,827,000 for its services in 2003 (which includes the services of Mr. Stengel). The
Company also paid CDGC a total of $173,000 in 2002 and $104,000 in 2003 for reimbursement of CDGC's out-of pocket
expenses incurred in connection with the engagement. These amounts are included in reorganization expenses duc to bankruptcy
in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Sale of Security Monitoring Business

In November 2004, the Company entered into an asset purchase agreement to sell its security monitoring business in
Pennsylvania, Florida and New York for approximately $38,000,000. Pursuant to the bidding procedures order filed with the
Bankruptcy Court on November 22, 2004, qualified bidders had the opportunity to submit higher or otherwise better offers with
a bid deadline of January 17, 2005. The Company received a better offer within the bid deadline and, as a result, conducted an
auction for the sale of the security monitoring business on January 21, 2005. The sale of the security monitoring business to the
winning bidder was approved by the Bankruptcy Court on January 28, 2005. On February 28, 2005, the transaction closed based
on a preliminary adjusted purchase price of $40,200,000.

Note 19: Quarterly Financial Information (unaudited) (amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

Quarter Ended 2004

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

REVEIUE ......coooeeeeeeeceeett e e enveeeveses e nsesressesassessanes $ 1,007,330 $ 1,036,470 $ 1,041,366  $ 1,058,222

Operating income (10SS) vovverrereerivers i $ (42,981) $ (28,346) $ (107,961) $ 14284
Loss from continuing operations before cumulative

effects of accounting changes(1)......ccooviimreciveinicnnen $ (503,442) $ (168,147) $ (260,797) $ (126,287)

Gain (loss) from discontinued operations ..........c..coceveeee $ 499 §  (1,070) $ — $ —

Loss before cumulative effects of accounting changes ... $ (502,943) § (169,217) $ (260,797) $ (126,287)

Cumulative effects of accounting changes(2)........oovevnvene $ (851,629) S — $ — 8 —

NELIOSS 1 oviiveieiire e e e st sesnsn e ebs st s e b eaae $(1,354,572)  $(169,217) $ (260,797) $ (126,287)

Basic and diluted loss per weighted average share of
common stock:
From continuing operations before cumulative effect

of accounting Change ...........ocovvivvenriierinsenneecs $ (199 $ (067) $  (1.04) $ (050)
Cumulative effects of accounting changes ................ g (3.36) $ — $ — 3 —
Net loss applicable to common stockholders............. $ (535 $ (067) 3  (1.04) $ (050)
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Quarter Fnded 2003
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
REVENUE ....ceeievreeieeeceeiieeceeeeeeeeesaecseesestsesenssesssnasmneeesesns $ 841,573 $ 886,467 $ 901,334 $ 939,643
OPEratiBZ 10SS ...vvvevivereerivnrerrreeesnsrees e e eseeenesenesbesesans $ (41,000) 3 (7,691) $ (20,501) $(79,297)
Loss from continuing operations before cumulative effect
of accounting change..........coecoevieenienieneneninseeoien $(174,880) $(136,410) $(173,016) $(240,354)
Loss from discontinued operations..........c.coceeveviiiininninnn $ (4,245) $ (4,948) $ (4,154) $ (94,605)
Loss before cumulative effect of accounting change........... $(179,125) $(141,358) $(177,170) $(334,959)
INELIOSS(3). s eveeeenietiriereer e ettt e 8(179,125) $(141,358) $(177,170) $(334,959)
Basic and diluted loss per weighted average share of
common stock:
From continuing operations before cumulative effect of
accounting Change..........ccoceevve e e $(0.69) $(0.54) $(0.70) $(0.95)
Loss from discontinued operations................... $(0.02) $(0.02) $(0.01) $(0.38)
Net loss applicable to common stockholders 50.71) $(0.56) §(0.71) $(1.33)

(0)) The Company recorded a $425,000,000 charge during the quarter ended March 31, 2004 related to the Government
Settlement Agreements.

@) As a result of the consolidation of the Rigas Co-Borrowing Entities, the Company recorded a $588,782,000 charge as a
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle during the quarter ended March 31, 2004. The application of the new
amortization method to customer relationships acquired prior to 2004 resulted in an additional charge of $262,847,000 which
has been reflected as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.

3 The Company recorded a $97,902,000 charge related to the Global Settlement with TelCove during the quarter ended
December 31, 2003. This charge has been included in discontinued operations in the consolidated statement of operations.
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Note 20: Subsequent Events (unaudited)
On October 31, 2005, the sale of Century/ML Cable to San Juan Cable was consummated and the Century/ML Plan

became effective. Neither the sale of Century/ML Cable to San Juan Cable nor the effectiveness of the Century/ML Plan
resolves the pending litigation among Adelphia, Century, Highland, Century/ML Cable and ML Mcdia.
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CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to
be disclosed in our reports filed under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include controls and procedures designed
to ensure that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our CEO, CFO and CAOQ,
as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required financial disclosure.

Our management, under the supervision and with the participation of our CEO, CFO and CAO, has completed an
evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosurc controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 3a-
15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004. Based on our evaluation of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, which included consideration of the
material weaknesses described below and our inability to file this Annual Report on Form 10-K within the statutory time
period, our management, including our CEO, CFO and CAO, concluded that as of December 31, 2004, the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures were not effective. In light of the material weaknesses, we performed additional analyses
and other post-closing procedures to ensure the consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with GAAP.
Accordingly, we believe thal the consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K fairly
present, in all material respects, the Company’s financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the periods
presented.

MANAGEMENT’S ANNUAL REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting.
Internal control over financial reporting is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) promulgated under the Exchange Act as a process
designed by, or under the supervision of, the Company’s CEO and CFO and effected by the Company’s Board of Directors,
management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with GAAP. The process includes those policies and
procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the Company, (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with the authorization of management and the Board of Directors, and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’s assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectivencss to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions.

Our management, under the supervision and with the participation of our CEO, CFO and CAO, has completed an
evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004. In assessing the Company’s internal control over financial reporting, management used the criteria
established by the Commiltee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control -
Integrated Framework.

Pursuant to the auditing and related professional practice standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board and the rules of the SEC, a “control deficiency” exists when the design or operation of an internal control over
financial reporting does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A “material weakness” is a control deficiency, or combination of control
deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial
statements will not be prevented or detected.  As of December 31, 2004, we identified the following material weaknesses in
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Access to Financial Applications and Data

The Company did not maintain effective controls over access to financial applications and data, including financial
applications and data related to property and equipment, general ledger and financial reporting. Specifically, ineffective
controls included unrestricted access for information technology and accounting personnel to programs and data, the lack of
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periodic, independent review and monitoring of such access, and a lack of policies and procedures that govern security and
access. This control deficiency did not result in adjustments to the annual or interim financial statements. The existence of
this control deficiency could result in a material misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements that would not be
prevented or detected. Accordingly, management determincd that this control deficiency constitutes a material weakness.

Property and Equipment Accounting

The Company did not maintain effective controls over the accounting for property and equipment. Specifically, the
Company had (i) ineffective controls over its quarterly physical inventory of construction materials, repair and maintenance
supplies and customer premise equipment, including lack of effective inventory count tag control, ineffective or inaccurate
inventory counts, and instances of non-compliance with the Company’s policy regarding the conduct of physical inventories,
(ii) incffective controls over the commencement of depreciation expense for capital assets placed in service, (iii) ineffective
controls over the appropriate review and approval of contractor work and materials used in connection with capital projects,
and (iv) inconsistent application of its limits of authority policy pursuant to which contractual or other payment obligations
associated with capital projects are approved. These control deficiencies resulted in immaterial audit adjustments to the
annual and interim financial statements. The existence of these control deficiencies could result in the misstatement of
properly and equipment, depreciation expense as well as repair and maintenance expense that could result in a material
misstatement of our annual or intcrim financial statements that would not be prevented or detected. Accordingly,
management determined that these control deficiencies, in the aggregate, constitute a material weakness.

Period-End Financial Reporting Process

The Company did not maintain effective controls over its period-end financial reporting process. Specifically, the
Company had (i) ineffective controls over the documentation, authorization and review of journal entries, (ii) ineffective
controls to ensure the accuracy of and restricted access to spreadsheets used to support journal entries reflected in our general
ledger and in our financial reporting process, and (iii) ineffective controls to ensure the completeness of certain general ledger
account reconciliations conducted in connection with the period-end financial reporting process. These control deficiencies
resulted in immaterial audit adjustments to the annual and interim financial statements. These conirol deficiencies could
result in a material misstatement to annual or interim financial statements that would not be prevented or detected.
Accordingly, management has concluded that these control deficiencies, in the aggregate, constitute a material weakness.

Because of the material weaknesses described above, management has concluded that the Company did not maintain
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 based on the criteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the COSO.

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s intcrnal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as
stated in their report which appears elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. -

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

In connection with our evaluation of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting at
December 31, 2004, we have taken a number of steps that have materially affected, or arc reasonably likely to materially
affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Throughout 2004, the Company, assisted by significant outside resources that supplemented our accounting and
internal audit functions, carried out documentation and testing of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as
required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and Audit Standard No. 2 as promulgated by the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board. During this documentation and testing process, we preliminarily identified a substantial
number of internal control deficiencies, including, to the extent they still existed, the material weaknesses and/or reportable
conditions discussed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003. As part of our
Sarbanes-Oxley Section 404 efforts, we reviewed these deficiencies, including identification of those that relate to key
internal controls over financial reporting, and determined the level of significance of each such key deficiency. As of the
filing of this Annual Report, we have successfully remediated a portion of these control deficiencies. We will continue our
efforts to remediate internal control deficiencies identified as part of management’s assessment of intemal control over
financial reporting for 2004, including the material weaknesses described above. Following is a discussion of specific
changes that we have made in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting relating to the material weaknesses
described above.
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With respect to the access to financial applications and data material weakness described above, subsequent to
December 31, 2004, we have substantially completed our remediation efforts. We have implemented controls, including
policies and procedures that govern security and access to our IT systems, programs and data, including those supporting our
financial data relating to property and equipment and our general ledger and financial reporting applications. In addition, all
cmploycces arc currently required to complete training and acknowledge an understanding of the Company’s Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics, which addresses proper use of Company assets, including requirements for security/access
controls.

With respect to the property and equipment accounting material weakness described above, subsequent to December
31, 2004, we have continued our remediation efforts. In December 2004, the Company’s limits of authority policy was
updated and communicated to all employees. In April 2005, through the execution of the Company’s physical inventory
procedures, we completed an accurate physical inventory of our construction materials, repair and maintenance supplies and
cusfomer premise equipment. In addition, during 2005, policies and procedures have been implemented to improve controls
over capital projects. We will continue to monitor and test our property and equipment processes throughout the remainder
of 2005 and will determine if additional remediation efforts are required.

With respect to the period-end financial reporting process material weakness described above, subsequent to
December 31, 2004, we have substantially completed our remediation efforts. Controls have been implemented to ensure
that all journal entries recorded in the Company’s general ledger have adequate supporting documentation and are
appropriately reviewed and approved prior to being recorded in the general ledger. In addition, all general ledger accounts
have been assigned to specific accounting personnel who are accountable for ensuring that the general ledger accounts are
reconciled and reviewed on a timely basis and that adequate supporting documentation is maintained for general ledger
accounts. We are also in the process of completing an inventory of all spreadsheets used in our financial reporting process
and implementing internal controls over spreadsheets, inchuding requiring data integrity, version controls and restricted
access.

We continue to dedicate substantial resources to this effort and believe that we have made considerable progress in
establishing effective internal control over financial reporting. However, our management is unable to provide assurance as

to when we and our independent registered public accountants will be able to determine that the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting is effective.
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